
  
 

 
Page 1 of 2 - Posted 04/19/2023 

 

Notice of Public Meeting 
 

The Board of Retirement 
 

  of the San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association will meet on 

Tuesday, April 25, 2023, at 10:00 A.M.   
 

 

PUBLIC SESSION – The Board will meet in Public Session at 10:00 a.m. 
1. Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business      
2. Oral Communications 

 2.1 Oral Communications from the Board 
 2.2 Oral Communications from the Public 

3. Approval of the Minutes 
 3.1 Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes from March 28, 2023 

4. Approval of the Consent Agenda*  
 4.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
4.3 
 

Disability Retirements (9) 
• Louise Alioto-Perez 
• Janine Brewer 
• Craig Cullen 
• Richard Daly 
• Victoria Galanter 
• Bradley Martin 
• Mark Perez 
• Jason Pfarr 
• LaDonna Shuttleworth 

Survivor Death Benefits 
Service Retirements 
 

4.4      Continuances 
4.5 Deferred Retirements 
4.6 Member Account Refunds 
4.7 Member Account Rollovers 
4.8 Member Account Redeposits 
4.9 Report of Trustee Education Received 
4.10 Reaffirm CEO Authority to Take Action in a 

Declared Emergency 
4.11 Reaffirm CEO Authority to Execute Investment 

Documentation 
4.12 Reaffirm Placement Agent Policy 
4.13   Trustee Special Request to Attend an Educational Event 

 5. Benefit & Actuarial Services  
 5.1 Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda  

6. Investment Services 
 6.1 

6.2 
6.3 
6.4 
6.5 
 

Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended March 31, 2023 
Approval of Asset Allocation Policy Implementation Plan 
Report on Cash Overlay (Parametric) Annual Review 
Report on Custodian (Northern Trust) Annual Review 
Approval of Proposed Alternative Investment (Confidential Under Gov. Codes 
§54956.81 and §7928.710, to be heard in Closed Session, C2) 

7. Board & Management Support  
 7.1 

7.2 
7.3 
7.4 
7.5 

Approval of SamCERA’s Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget  
Approval of Amendments to the Felony Forfeiture Policy 
Approval of SamCERA’s Strategic Plan 
Selection of and Direction for SamCERA Voting Delegates at the SACRS Spring Business Meeting  
Presentation on the SamCERA Disability Process 



 
Notice of Public Meeting 
Page 2 of 2  

 

Page 2 of 2 - Posted 04/19/2023 
 
 

8. Management Reports 
 8.1 Chief Executive Officer's Report 
 8.2 Assistant Executive Officer’s Report 
 8.3 Chief Investment Officer’s Report 
 8.4 Chief Legal Counsel's Report   

CLOSED SESSION – The Board may meet in closed session prior to adjournment 
C1 
C2 

 
9. 

Consideration of Disability Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda 
  Approval of Proposed Alternative Investment to be heard in Closed Session, Confidential Under Gov. 
  Code §54956.81 and §7928.710, see item 6.5) 
Report on Action Taken in Closed Session 

10. Adjournment in Memory of the Following Deceased Members: 
 

Souza, James March 12, 2023 General Services    
White, William March 14, 2023 Library    
Edmonds, Isabel March 19, 2023 Social Services    
Caceres, Elizabeth March 23, 2023 Social Services    
Charan, Daya March 26, 2023 Hospital    
Speierer, Beatrix March 26, 2023 Public Health    
Boklund, Eugene March 27, 2023 Sheriff’s    
Witzel, Lynda March 28, 2023 Health    
Aquino, Amelia March 31, 2023 Courts    
Kofoed, Reese April 1, 2023 Sheriff’s    
Gonzales, John April 5, 2023 Probation    
Kelly, Parker April 5, 2023 District Attorney’s Office    
Myers, Brenda Jo April 11, 2023 Human Services    
      

 

  
Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Posted:  April 19, 2023 

 (* ALL ITEMS ON THE CONSENT AGENDA ARE APPROVED BY ONE ROLL CALL MOTION UNLESS A REQUEST IS MADE BY A BOARD 
MEMBER THAT AN ITEM BE WITHDRAWN OR TRANSFERRED TO THE REGULAR AGENDA.  ANY ITEM ON THE REGULAR AGENDA MAY BE 
TRANSFERRED TO THE CONSENT AGENDA.  ANY 4.1 ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN UP UNDER CLOSED 
SESSION; ALL OTHER ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN UP UNDER ITEM 5.1.)  
 
THE BOARD MEETS AT 100 MARINE PARKWAY, SUITE 160, WHICH IS LOCATED ON THE SE CORNER OF TWIN DOLPHIN & MARINE PARKWAY IN 
REDWOOD CITY.  Detailed directions are available on the “Contact Us” page of the website www.samcera.org.  Free Parking is 
available in all lots in the vicinity of the building.   A copy of the Board of Retirement’s open session agenda packet is available 
for review at the SamCERA offices and on our website unless the writings are privileged or otherwise exempt from disclosure 
under the provisions of the California Public Records Act. Office hours are Monday through Thursday 7 a.m. – 6 p.m. 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE AND THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  SamCERA’s facilities and board and 
committee meetings are accessible to individuals with disabilities.  Contact SamCERA at (650) 599-1234 at least three 
business days prior to the meeting if (1) you need special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in this meeting; or (2) you have a disability and wish to receive the 
agenda, meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be distributed at the meeting in an alternative format.  
Notification in advance of the meeting will enable SamCERA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure full accessibility to 
this meeting and the materials related to it. 

http://www.samcera.org/


Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 28, 2023  Page 1 of 6 

 SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION  
MARCH 28, 2023 – REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

                                                                                              
2303.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business 
  
Call to Order:  Ms. O’Malley, Chair, called the Regular Meeting of the Board of Retirement to order at 
8:34 a.m. 
  
Roll Call: 
Present:  Sandie Arnott, Mark Battey, Al David, Kurt Hoefer, Kimathi Marangu, Katherine O’Malley, 
Robert Raw, and Alma Salas. 
Absent: Elaine Orr. 
Alternates:  April Decarsky and Nicole McKay. 
Staff:  Tariq Ali, Michael Coultrip, Lili Dames, Scott Hood, JulieAnne Nagal, Doris Ng, Paul Okada and 
Gladys Smith. 
Consultants and speakers:  Joe Abdou, Jeff MacLean, John Nicolini and Ian Toner (Verus), and Nick 
Collier (Milliman, Inc.). 
 

2303.2.1 Oral Communications from the Board: None. 
 

2303.2.2 Oral Communications from the Public:  Ms. Smith congratulated Ms. O’Malley on the news of her 
expectant second child.     
 

2303.3.1 Approval of Special Board Meeting Minutes from February 28, 2023:  Ms. O’Malley asked if there 
were any changes or corrections, or objections, to the minutes from the special meeting held on 
February 28, 2023.  There were no changes, corrections, or objections presented. 
 
Action:  Mr. David moved to approve the minutes from the special meeting on February 28, 2023.  The 
motion was seconded by Ms. Raw and carried with a vote of 7-0, with trustees Arnott, Battey, David, 
Marangu, O’Malley, Raw and Salas all in favor; trustee Hoefer abstained; none opposed. 
 

2303.3.2 Approval of Board Meeting Minutes from February 28, 2023:  Ms. O’Malley asked if there were any 
changes or corrections, or objections, to the minutes from the regular meeting held on February 28, 
2023.  There were no changes, corrections, or objections presented.  
 
Action:  Mr. Battey moved to approve the minutes from the February 28, 2023 regular Board meeting.  
The motion was seconded by Ms. Salas and carried with a vote of 7-0, with trustees Arnott, Battey, 
David, Marangu, O’Malley, Raw and Salas all in favor; trustee Hoefer; none opposed. 
 

2303.4.0 Approval of the Consent Agenda:  Ms. O’Malley asked if there were any items to be removed for 
discussion from the Consent Agenda.  No items were removed. 
 
Action:  Mr. Marangu moved to approve the remaining items on the Consent Agenda.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. David and carried with a vote of 8-0, with trustees Arnott, Battey, David, Hoefer, 
Marangu, O’Malley, Raw, and Salas all in favor; none opposed. 
 

2303.4.1 Disability Retirements: 
 

a) The Board found that Gregory Barth (1) is permanently incapacitated from the performance 
of his usual and customary duties as a Stationary Engineer II, (2) found that his disability was 
the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment and (3) granted his 
application for a service-connected disability retirement. 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 28, 2023  Page 2 of 6 

 
b) The Board found that John Gonzales (1) is permanently incapacitated from the performance 

of his usual and customary duties as a Sheriff’s Sergeant, (2) found that his disability was the 
result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment and (3) granted his 
application for a service-connected disability retirement. 

 
c) The Board found that Mohini Sharma (1) is permanently incapacitated from the performance 

of her usual and customary duties as a Patient Services Assistant II, (2) found that her disability 
was the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of her employment and (3) granted 
her application for a service-connected disability retirement. 
 

d) The Board found that Han Yun (1) is permanently incapacitated from the performance of her 
usual and customary duties as a Community Worker II, (2) found that her disability was the 
result of an injury arising out of and in the course of her employment and (3) granted her 
application for a service-connected disability retirement. 

 
2303.4.2 

 
Survivor Death Benefits:  None. 

2303.4.3 Service Retirements: 
 

Name Effective Retirement Date Department 
Alvarez, Joann January 19, 2023 Human Services Agency 
Bolanos, Carlos January 3, 2023 Sheriff's Office 
Deal, Pamela January 26, 2023 Sheriff's Office 
Faumuina, Jennifer January 10, 2023 Probation 
Flores, Guadalupe January 19, 2023 Probation 
Forrester, Helen January 9, 2023 QDRO of Forrester, Eric 
Green-Drayton, Monika February 1, 2023 San Mateo County Health 
Groom, Carole January 3, 2023 Board of Supervisors 
Gruber, Eleanor December 20, 2022 Def’d - San Mateo County 

Health 
Guiney, Daniel January 7, 2023 Sheriff's Office 
Hall, Celia December 16, 2022 Deferred- Library 
Howard, Eric January 17, 2023 Probation 
Hunter, William C January 3, 2023 Board of Supervisors 
Javier, Renee-Cindy January 23, 2023 Deferred - Probation 
Koenigsberg, Max February 1, 2022 Human Services Agency 
Manuel, Judy January 17, 2023 San Mateo County Health 
Morales, Carl E January 21, 2023 Correctional Health 
Morrow, Scott January 28, 2023 San Mateo County Health 
Patton, Verdon January 7, 2023 Probation 
Puschendorf, Heinz January 30, 2023 Sheriff's Office 

Rabusa, Dolores January 10, 2023 Human Services Agency 
Ramos, Maria E January 18, 2023 Human Services Agency 
Ranganathan, Shantha January 7, 2023 County Attorney’s Office 
Ridon, Rachel January 14, 2023 Treasurer's Office 
Robbins, Mark January 3, 2023 Sheriff's Office 
Sazo, Edwin January 28, 2023 Public Works 
Starr, Anne Marie December 31, 2022 Deferred - Public Works 
Suzuki, Eric January 13, 2023 District Attorney's Office 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 28, 2023  Page 3 of 6 

Wood, Edward January 10, 2023 Sheriff's Office 

Zamora, Delfina January 10, 2023 Sheriff's Office 
 

2303.4.4 Continuances: 
 

Survivor’s Name:  Beneficiary of: 
Golda, Elizabeth Golda, Voytek 
Poblete, Elisa Poblete, Pepito 

 

2303.4.5 Deferred Retirements: 
 

Name  Retirement Plan Type  
Bor, Valerie G4, Vested– Auto Defer – Code 31700 
Burruto, David G5, Vested - Reciprocity 
Cabada, Mona G7, Vested– Auto Defer – Code 31700 
Cho, Sharon G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Hermosilla, Estefania G5, Vested - Reciprocity 
Houshmandi, Hanieh G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Martin, Erica G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Malmo-Laycock, Julia G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 
Panisi, Longo G7, Vested– Auto Defer – Code 31700 
Porras, Ralna G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Sanford, Michael G7, Vested– Auto Defer – Code 31700 
Santos, Shawnte G7, Vested– Auto Defer – Code 31700 
Sporer, Kevin G5, Vested– Auto Defer – Code 31700 
Tabel, Brittney G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 
Wang, Raziya G5, Vested– Auto Defer – Code 31700 
Xiao, Zhiqin G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 

 

2303.4.6 Member Account Refunds:  
 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding refunds: 
 

Name  Retirement Plan Type  
Bernardo, Bonita G4, Non-vested 
Brennan, John (FBO: Brennan, Ann) G2, Vested 
Brennan, John (FBO: Oliver, WIlliam) G2, Vested 
Chong, Karen  G4, Non-vested 
Fattorini-Ocampo, Giovanna G7, Vested 
Guzman Lopez, Yarely G7, Non-vested 
Madrigal, Katherine G7, Non-vested 
Nguyen, Duoc G7, Non-vested 
Pedrini, Carla G4, Non-vested 
Timberlake, Nathaniel (FBO: Timberlake, 
Braxton) 

G7, Non-vested 

Vinson, Ulysses G7, Non-vested 
 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 28, 2023  Page 4 of 6 

2303.4.7 
 
 
 

 

Member Account Rollovers:  
 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding rollovers: 
 

Name  Retirement Plan Type  
Broderick, Katherine F G7, Non-vested 
Lucas, Shantelle  G7, Non-vested 
Selvidge, Delaney  G7, Non-vested 
Trehan, Michelle G4, Vested 
  

 

2303.4.8 Member Account Redeposits:  None. 
 

2303.4.9 Acceptance of Trustees’ Reports of Educational Activities:  The Board accepted the submitted reports 
for educational activity attended by Mr. Battey and Mr. Raw. 
 

2303.4.10 Report on the County’s Prepayment of Employer Contributions:  The Board accepted the report on the 
County’s prepayment of employer pension contributions totaling $174,503,324 for fiscal yar 2023-24. 
 

2303.4.11 Acceptance of Semi-Annual Compliance Certification Statements for the Period Ended December 31, 
2022:  The Board accepted the semi-annual certification statements for alternative investment 
managers and investment consultants, as of December 31, 2022. 
 

2303.5.1 Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, Removed from the Consent Agenda:  None. 
 

2303.6.1 Report on Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended February 28, 
2023:  Mr. Coultrip reported that SamCERA’s net preliminary return for February was -1.5% bringing the 
preliminary trailing twelve month return ending February 2023 to -2.9% net.  He reported financial 
conditions tightened in February due in part to hawkish statements by the Fed, resulting in risk assets 
being down during the month.  Mr. Coultrip then answered questions from the Board.  This item was 
informational and for discussion only, no action was taken. 
 

2303.8.1  Chief Executive Officer’s Report:  Mr. Hood reported that, on March 14th, in accordance with 
Resolution 20-17 and SamCERA’s Investment Policy, a virtual meeting was held with Ms. O’Malley, Mr. 
Raw, Mr. Shooshani (Verus), Mr. Coultrip, Mr. Okada, Ms. Dames, Ms. Ng and himself to discuss a 
potential private equity opportunity. Following that meeting, SamCERA made a $20 million capital 
commitment to Genstar Fund XI, L.P., as part of SamCERA’s buyout portfolio within Private Equity. 
 
Mr. Hood reported that the employee and employer contribution rates for FY 2023-24 will be brought 
for the Board of Supervisor’s approval at their April 11 meeting.  He mentioned the Pension Bridge 
annual conference will be held at the Fairmont Hotel from April 17-19 and the SACRS Spring Conference 
will be in San Diego from May 9-12.  He also provided the Board with the following items that will be on 
next month’s agenda: Fiscal Year 2023-24 budget, SACRS voting delegate/business meeting packet, 
Placement Agent Policy, Portable Electronic Device policy, CEO Authority to take certain action in a 
declared emergency and the Board’s Strategic Plan. 
 
Mr. Hood informed the Board that there will be a Celebration of Life for Paul Hackleman on May 13th at 
11:30 am at Poplar Creek Golf Course. 
 

2303.8.2  Assistant Executive Officer’s Report:  Ms. Smith updated the Board on the Retirement Executive 
Secretary recruitment and if there are any upcoming seminars or conferences, they would like to 
attend to please contact her. 
 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 28, 2023  Page 5 of 6 

2303.8.3 Chief Investment Officer’s Report:  Mr. Coultrip reported that staff and Verus will hold annual manager 
reviews on Thursday, April 13th with PGIM and Harrison Street.   
 

2303.8.4  Chief Legal Counsel’s Report:  Mr. Okada reminded the Board that the deadline for submitting their 
Form 700 is Monday, April 3.   
 
The Board proceeded into closed session. 

C1 Consideration of Disability Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda:  None. 
 

C2 Conference with Legal Counsel: Existing Litigation (Gov’t Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) SamCERA v. Kerry 
Adams, Ivy Rose Gomez-Greenfeather, Natalie Isaacs, and Does 1 to 20, inclusive, San Mateo County 
Superior Court No. 23-CIV-01309. 

2303.9.0 Reports on Actions Taken in Closed Session:  The Board met in closed session regarding the existing 
litigation listed on the agenda.  There were no reportable actions.  
 

2303.2.3 Retreat Presentations and Discussions: 
 
Economic Outlook 
Mr. Toner, Chief Investment Officer of Verus, discussed his thoughts for 2023 with regards to the 
economy and interest rates, alternative asset classes, traditional asset classes and a broad portfolio 
with the Board.  Mr. Toner commented that restrictive conditions have changed the environment; the 
borrower’s market has turned into a lender’s market. 
 
Board took a break at 9:45 a.m. and reconvened at 10:06 a.m. 
 
Higher Interest Rates, Implications, and Opportunities 
Mr. MacLean, Chief Executive Officer of Verus, discussed with the Board the impact interest rates have 
on expected returns, and the effects of investing in a new environment will have on fixed income, 
public equity, private equity and real estate. 
 
High Level Portfolio Review & Plan Metrics 
Mr. Coultrip, SamCERA’s Chief Investment Officer, provided an annual assessment of SamCERA’s 
Portfolio to the Board. He covered the total portfolio absolute, relative, composite relative and 
historical performance, introduced a two-stage portfolio assessment structure, a summary of individual 
manager performance, a strategy matrix and summarized rebalancing activities. 
 
Board took a break for lunch at 11:55 a.m. and reconvened at 1:00 p.m. 
 
Further Discussion of Funding Scenarios 
Mr. Collier, Consulting Actuary with Milliman, Inc., provided a follow-up to a previous discussion with 
the Board on amortization and addressed post-cliff volatility.  He compared options under different 
scenarios, recognized trade-offs and compared benchmark probabilities. 
 
Mr. Hoefer left the meeting at 1:15 p.m. and returned at 2:47 p.m. 
 
Disability Process Overview 
Ms. LeNguyen was unavailable to present but will provide her presentation at the Board’s April 
meeting. 
 
SamCERA Network Topography Overview 
Mr. Ali, SamCERA’s Chief Technology Officer, provided to the Board a high overview of SamCERA’s 
technology infrastructure. 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 28, 2023  Page 6 of 6 

 
Overview of SamCERA Contracting Process 
Mr. Okada, SamCERA’s Chief Legal Counsel, provided to the Board an overview of SamCERA’s 
contracting process including Board authority, Board policy, current high-value contracts and current 
practices. 
 

2303.10 Adjournment:  Ms. O’Malley adjourned the meeting at 3:08 p.m. in memory of the deceased members 
listed below. 
 

Fennell, Evelyn December 6, 2022 Courts 
Metling, Arleta January 10, 2023 Courts 
Anderson, Marlys February 3, 2023 Crystal Springs Rehab Center 
Koch, Monica February 8, 2023 Health Services 
Farris, Lillian February 22, 2023 Mental Health 
Porter, Willie February 23, 2023 Hospital 
Barlaan, Imelda February 26, 2023 San Mateo County Health 
Hackleman, Paul March 1, 2023 Human Resources 
Gutierrez, Indiana January 26, 2023 Courts 
Koch, Monica February 8, 2023 Health Services 

  

 
 

____________________________                                 
Katherine O’Malley 
Chair       



 
                     

                    SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 
 

April 25, 2023    Agenda Items 4.1- 4.9  
 
    
TO:               Board of Retirement 

FROM:         Elizabeth LeNguyen, Retirement Benefits Manager      
 
SUBJECT:     Approval of Consent Agenda Items 4.1 – 4.9 
 
 
4.1 Disability Retirements 

a) The Board finds that Louise Alioto-Perez (1) is permanently incapacitated from the 
performance of her usual and customary duties as a Hospital Unit Coordinator, (2) find 
that her disability was the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of her 
employment and (3) grant her application for a service-connected disability retirement. 
 

b) The Board refers Janine Brewer’s application for service-connected disability retirement 
to a hearing officer for proposed findings and recommendations.   

 
c) The Board finds that Craig Cullen (1) is able to substantially perform his usual and 

customary duties as a Deputy Sheriff and (2) deny his application for a service-connected 
disability retirement. 
 

d) The Board finds that Richard Daly (1) is permanently incapacitated from the performance 
of his usual and customary duties as a Deputy Sheriff, (2) find that his disability was the 
result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment and (3) grant his 
application for a service-connected disability retirement. 
 

e) The Board finds that Victoria Galanter (1) is able to substantially perform her usual and 
customary duties as a Nurse Practitioner and (2) deny her application for a service-
connected disability retirement. 
 

f) The Board finds that Bradley Martin (1) is permanently incapacitated from the 
performance of his usual and customary duties as a Correctional Officer, (2) find that his 
disability was the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment 
and (3) grant his application for a service-connected disability retirement. 
 

g) The Board finds that Mark Perez (1) is permanently incapacitated from the performance 
of his usual and customary duties as a Stationary Engineer II, (2) find that his disability was 
the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment and (3) grant his 
application for a service-connected disability retirement. 

 

 



   

2 
 

h) The Board finds that Jason Pfarr (1) is permanently incapacitated from the performance 
of his usual and customary duties as a Deputy Sheriff, (2) find that his disability was the 
result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment and (3) grant his 
application for a service-connected disability retirement. 

 
i) The Board finds that LaDonna Shuttleworth (1) is permanently incapacitated from the 

performance of her usual and customary duties as a Legal Office Specialist, (2) find that 
her disability was not a result of an injury/illness arising out of and in the course of her 
employment, (3) deny her application for a service-connected disability and (4) grant her 
a non-service-connected disability retirement. 

   
4.2 Survivor Death Benefits 

None. 
 

4.3 Service Retirements 
The Board ratifies the service retirement for the individuals listed below as follows: 
 

Name Effective Retirement Date Department 

Avalos, Emma February 23, 2023 Probation 

Bautista, Marianella February 3, 2023 Child Support Services 

Bokura, Jeffrey February 4, 2023 Assessor Clerk Recorder Elections 

Cabrera, Leticia December 14, 2022 Def’d - San Mateo County Health 

DeMartini, Matthew February 20, 2023 Sheriff's Office 

Desselle, Susan March 1, 2023 Child Support Services 

Feeney, Edward February 19, 2023 Sheriff's Office 

Howton, Nana February 21, 2023 Def’d - San Mateo County Health 

Johnson, Jane February 4, 2023 Sheriff's Office 

Kellie, Alicia February 26, 2023 Deferred - Human Resources 

Ken, Matthew February 2, 2023 Deferred - Sheriff's Office 

Kinsella, Michael February 16, 2023 Sheriff's Office 

Moody, John February 19, 2023 Sheriff's Office 

Moore, Britt February 3, 2023 Deferred - Human Services Agency 

Parra, Claudia January 6, 2023 San Mateo County Health 

Perez, Delfino February 25, 2023 Public Works 

Radisch, Matthew February 28, 2023 Human Services Agency 

Spiller-Crenshaw, Roena February 19, 2023 Sheriff's Office 

Sullivan, Elisa February 18, 2023 Deferred - Controller's 



   

3 
 

 
4.4 Continuances 
 None.  

4.5 Deferred Retirements 
 The Board ratifies the deferred retirements as listed below for the following individuals: 

Name Retirement Plan Type 

Bissell, Elizabeth G7, Vested 

Canales, David G7, Vested– Auto Defer – Code 31700 

Cromosini, Eric S7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 

Dimen, Dennis G7, Vested 

Guan, Harry G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 

Hill, Diana G4, Vested - Auto Defer – Code 31700 

Kenway, Jennie G7, Vested - Auto Defer – Code 31700 

Nunez, Jackie G4, Vested - Auto Defer – Code 31700 

Purtle, Allison S7, Vested - Reciprocity 

Rodriguez, Melissa G7, Vested - Auto Defer – Code 31700 

Trujillo, LadyAnne G5, Vested - Reciprocity 

Vujicevich, Michael G4, Vested - Auto Defer – Code 31700 

Wong, Kristine G5, Vested - Reciprocity 

 
4.6 Member Account Refunds 
 The Board ratifies the refunds as listed below for the following individuals: 

Name 
 

Retirement Plan Type 

Benavides, Benjamin (FBO: Benavides Quesada, 
Ayla) 

G4, Vested 

Diaz, Daniel B S7, Vested 

Oey, Tony S  G4, Non-vested 

Watt, Kevin G7, Non-vested 

 
4.7 Member Account Rollovers 

Name Retirement Plan Type 

Mork, Clifford G7, Non-vested 

Peermohamed, Zulfikar G7, Non-vested 
Schaff, Tina Marie G7, Non-vested 

 



   

4 
 

  
4.8 Member Account Redeposits 
 None. 
 
4.9 Acceptance of Trustees’ Reports of Educational Activities  
 See attached. 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 
 
April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 4.9 
 
 
TO:  Board of Retirement 
 
FROM: Gladys Smith, Assistant Executive Officer   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
SUBJECT:  Trustee’s Reports of Educational Activities 
 
 
Recommendation 
Accept the following report from a Board of Retirement trustee who has recently 
attended an educational event.   
 
Background 
SamCERA’s Education Policy Section 1D states “Prior to the next regularly scheduled 
meeting of the Board following the Board member’s participation in an educational 
activity, the Board member shall submit for inclusion on the Consent Agenda, a summary 
written report on the content of educational activities.  The report shall substantially 
reflect the information contained in the attached sample report.”   
 
Discussion 
Sandie Arnott attended the following educational event, and her report is attached: 
 
CALAPRS Advanced Principles of Pension Governance for Trustees, March 29-31  
               
Attachments 
Trustee’s Education Proof of Participation Certificate and Summary   





SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 4.10 

TO:  Board of Retirement 

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Authorization for the Chief Executive Officer to Take Certain Actions During 
a Declaration of Emergency 

Recommendation 
Reaffirm the Chief Executive Officer’s authority to take action in the best interests of 
SamCERA during a declaration of emergency. 

Background 
In an emergency, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is authorized by the Board’s “Policy for 
Procurement and Contracting for Certain Goods and Services” to purchase certain goods 
or services on behalf of SamCERA subject to later ratification by the Board.  The CEO’s 
emergency authority, however, did not extend to investment decisions which are covered 
by different Board policies that do not expressly provide such authorization. 

Discussion 
In March 2020, following the rapid spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus and declarations 
of emergency at the federal, state, and local levels, and in recognition of the fact that the 
CEO might need to take actions which could not be foreseen and did not fall within the 
aforementioned procurement or investment authority policies or other prior Board 
authorizations, the Board authorized the CEO to take action in the best interest of the 
fund, including decisions concerning investments, provided that such decisions are 
consistent with applicable Board policies. 

The Board’s resolution provided that such decisions must be made in consultation with 
the Board Chair (or Vice-Chair if the Chair is not available), as well as appropriate staff and 
legal counsel.  For investment decisions, the resolution required the CEO to consult with 
the aforementioned individuals as well as one member of the Investment Committee and 
the Board’s Investment Consultant.  Finally, the Board’s resolution provided that all 
significant actions shall be reported to the Board at its next meeting. 

Staff recommends that the Board reaffirm the CEO’s authorization to take action in the 
best interests of the Retirement Fund during a declared state of emergency. 

Attachment 
Resolution Authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to Take Action in the Best Interests of 
the Retirement Fund During a Declaration of Emergency 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO TAKE ACTION IN THE 
BEST INTERESTS OF THE RETIREMENT FUND DURING A DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 

 
RESOLUTION -___ 

 
WHEREAS, Article XVI, §17 of the Constitution of the State of California vests the Board with "plenary 

authority and fiduciary responsibility for the investment of moneys and the administration of 
the system"; and 

 
WHEREAS, Government Code §31595 vests in the Board ". . . exclusive control of the investment of 

the employees’ retirement fund"; and 
 
WHEREAS, in March 2020, this Board determined that, during those occasions when a federal or 

state or local emergency has been declared by the applicable authority, and if the conditions 
giving rise to the declaration of emergency are such that they prevent the Board from safely 
being able to attend a meeting due to either potential risks to the health and safety of Board 
members or limitations in ability to safely travel within the County and the Brown Act 
provisions regarding moving the site of the meeting or providing teleconferencing are not 
either helpful and or feasible; the CEO shall have the authority to make decisions in the best 
interest of the retirement fund, including investment decisions, so long as such decisions are 
consistent with applicable Board policies; and 

 
WHEREAS, such authorization was necessary insofar as the Board’s existing procurement and 

investment authority policies did not cover the CEO’s authority to make emergency 
investment decisions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that, in connection with a federal, state, or local declared state of 

emergency, the CEO might need to take actions which could not be foreseen and did not fall 
within the Board’s procurement or investment authority policies or other prior Board 
authorizations, and that it is desirable for the CEO to be authorized to take action in the best 
interest of the fund, including making decisions concerning investments, provided that such 
decisions are consistent with applicable Board policies; NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

 
RESOLVED, that during those occasions when a federal or state or local emergency has been declared 

by the applicable authority, and if the conditions giving rise to the declaration of emergency 
are such that they prevent the Board from safely being able to attend a meeting due to either 
potential risks to the health and safety of Board members or limitations in ability to safely 
travel within the County, and the Brown Act provisions regarding moving the site of the 
meeting or providing teleconferencing are not either helpful and or feasible: 
 

(1) The Board of Retirement authorizes the Chief Executive Officer to make decisions 
in the best interest of the retirement fund and consistent with applicable Board 
policy if those decisions must be promptly made and are made in consultation 
with the Board Chair, or if the Chair is not available, the Vice Chair, and 



appropriate staff and legal counsel, and in the case of investment decisions, one 
member of the Investment Committee and the Board’s Investment Consultant; 

 

(2) All significant actions of the Chief Executive Officer authorized by this resolution 
shall be reported to the Board at its next meeting; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede the provisions contained in resolutions 
previously adopted by the Board that are inconsistent with the provisions set forth in this 
resolution. 

 

* * * * * 
Regularly passed and adopted, by the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association, 
Board of Retirement, on April 25, 2023. 
 
Ayes, Trustees: 
  
Noes, Trustees:  
 
Absent, Trustees:  
 
Abstain, Trustees:  
 
__________________________________________ 
Alma Salas, Board Secretary 
SamCERA 

 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 4.11 

TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Authorization for the Chief Executive Officer to Execute Documentation for Investments 
as Required 

Recommendation 
Reaffirm the Chief Executive Officer’s Authority to Execute Documentation for Investments as 
Required 

Background 
After the Board has decided to invest SamCERA funds with external managers, or to increase, 
decrease, or otherwise change the amount of such investments, there is certain documentation that 
must be executed and there are certain actions to be taken regarding day-to-day operations of the 
investments.  In 2012, the Board authorized the Chief Executive Officer to execute such 
documentation and to respond to the ongoing demands of the investment under certain 
circumstances. 

The Board also determined that for certain alternative investments opportunities that, due to the 
timing of such investments, the Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with the Board Chair or if the 
Chair is not available, the Vice Chair, and one member of the Investment Committee, the Board’s 
Investment Consultant, staff, and legal counsel, shall be authorized to make investment decisions 
for those Alternative Investments of $25 million or less if such decision must be made prior to the 
date of the next regularly scheduled Board meeting and as long as such decision is in the best 
interest of the investment fund and consistent with applicable Board policy.  Pursuant to the Board’s 
resolution in 2012, all significant actions of the Chief Executive Officer authorized above are to be 
reported to the Board at a subsequent regularly scheduled meeting. 

Discussion 
In September 2020, staff recommended that the Board increase the dollar limit of the CEO’s 
authorization to $35M and reauthorize the Chief Executive Officer to Execute Documentation for 
Investments as required.  Staff’s recommendation was in light of the increase in the dollar limit of 
individual investments sizes since 2012. 

Staff recommends that the Board reaffirm the CEO’s authority to execute documentation for 
investments as required and is not recommending any changes to the CEO’s authority at this time. 
Minor, non-substantive revisions have been made to the resolution for clarity and readability. 

Attachment 
Authorization for the Chief Executive Officer to Execute Documentation for Investments as Required 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE  

DOCUMENTATION FOR INVESTMENTS AS REQUIRED 
 

RESOLUTION -___ 
 
 
WHEREAS, Article XVI, §17 of the Constitution of the State of California vests the Board with 

"plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for the investment of moneys and the 
administration of the system"; and  

WHEREAS, Government Code §31595 vests in the Board ". . . exclusive control of the investment of 
the employees retirement fund"; and  

WHEREAS, Government Code §31596.1 (d) authorizes the Board to retain investment managers ". . . 
in connection with administration of the Board's investment program . . . "; and  

WHEREAS, the Board’s Investment Consultant and Chief Investment Officer bring investment 
opportunities and investment decisions to the Board for its determination; and 

WHEREAS, after the Board has made a determination to invest SamCERA funds with external 
managers, or to increase, decrease, or otherwise change the amount of such investments, 
there is certain documentation that must be executed on behalf of the Board in order to 
effectuate the Board’s decisions and respond to the demands of the day-to-day operations of 
the investment; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the fund that the Chief Executive 
Officer have the authority to execute any and all documentation with the external manager on 
behalf of the Board in order to effectuate the Board’s investment decisions and to respond to 
the demands of the day-to-day operations of the investment; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that, in regards to certain Alternative Investments 
opportunities, where the timing of an investment is such that it is not feasible for the Board to 
meet to approve such investment at a regular meeting, the Chief Executive Officer should 
have the authority to make the investment decision as long as such decision is consistent with 
the Board’s Investment Policy; NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED that the Board hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with staff 
and legal counsel, to execute any and all documentation with SamCERA’s external 
investment managers, on behalf of the Board, in order to effectuate the Board’s investment 
decisions and respond to the demands of the day-to-day operations of the investments; and 
BE IT FURTHER 

RESOLVED that the Board hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with the 
Board’s Investment Consultant, staff and legal counsel, to make investment decisions for 
those Alternative Investments of $35 million or less if such decision must be made prior to 
the date of the next regularly scheduled Board meeting and as long as such decision is in the 
best interest of the investment fund and consistent with the Board’s Investment Policy; and 
BE IT FURTHER 

RESOLVED that all significant actions of the Chief Executive Officer authorized by this resolution 
shall be reported to the Board at a subsequent regularly scheduled meeting; and BE IT 
FURTHER 

RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede provisions contained in resolutions previously adopted 
by the Board that are inconsistent with the provisions set forth in this resolution. 

 



* * * * * 
Regularly passed and adopted, by the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association, 
Board of Retirement, on April 25, 2023. 
 
Ayes, Trustees: 
  
Noes, Trustees:  
 
Absent, Trustees:  
 
Abstain, Trustees:  
 
__________________________________________ 
Alma Salas, Board Secretary 
SamCERA 
 

 



San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association 
Board of Retirement 

1 

April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 4.12 

TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Placement Agent Disclosure Policy 

Recommendation 
Reaffirm SamCERA’s Placement Agent Disclosure Policy. 

Background 
A placement agent is, generally speaking, a person directly or indirectly retained by an external 
investment manager or an investment fund, who acts as a finder, solicitor, marketer, 
consultant, broker, or other intermediary in connection with the offer or sale of the investment 
to the Board.  

Government Code section 7513.85 requires all public pension systems to adopt a policy 
requiring the disclosure of fees paid to placement agents.  It also prohibits a public pension 
system from entering into any agreement with an external investment manager that does not 
provide written consent to comply with the policy.  An external investment manager or 
placement agent that violates the policy is prohibited from soliciting new investments from the 
system for 5 years from the time of violation, unless the Board reduces this time period.  
Finally, Government Code section 7513.9 requires the disclosure of campaign contributions and 
gifts made by placement agents to retirement board members. 

Discussion 
In 2010, SamCERA adopted its Placement Agent Disclosure Policy in compliance with 
Government Code section 7513.85.  Since Board’s adoption of the Policy, staff has ensured that 
every investment contract (e.g., public equities, private equity or alternatives) requires 
compliance with the Placement Agent Policy and that a completed Placement Agent Disclosure 
Form is timely submitted.  

The Policy was amended in 2011 and 2017, to reflect minor implementation issues that arose in 
the administration of the policy.  Staff recommends various non-substantive revisions to the 
Policy for the purposes of clarity and readability. 

Attachments 
Placement Agent Disclosure Policy (clean) 



San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association 
Board of Retirement 

2 

Placement Agent Disclosure Policy (redline) 
Placement Agent Form (clean) 
Placement Agent Form (redline) 



Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 

PLACEMENT AGENT DISCLOSURE POLICY 
 
 

This amended policy is effective immediately upon its adoption. This policy is intended to 
supplement any applicable provisions of state or federal  law, which shall govern  in the 
event of any inconsistency. 
 
I.  PURPOSE 
 

This Policy is adopted pursuant to the requirements set forth in Government Code 
Section 7513.85  to help ensure  that San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement 
Association’s (SamCERA’s) investment decisions are made solely on the merits of 
the  investment  opportunity.    This  Policy  requires  broad,  timely,  and  updated 
disclosure of all Placement Agents, as well as their relationships, compensation, 
and  fees.    All  capitalized  terms  used  herein  shall  be  defined  as  set  forth  in 
California Government Code section 7513.8. 

 
 
II.  APPLICATION 
 

This  Policy  applies  broadly  to  every  type  of  SamCERA  investment  manager 
including, but not limited to, general partners, sponsors of hedge funds, private 
equity funds, real estate funds, and infrastructure funds, as well as public market 
investment managers. 
 
This Policy, as  last amended, applies  to all agreements with External Managers 
that are: 
 

(1) Entered into after the date this Policy, as last amended, is adopted; or 
(2) Amended to extend the term of the agreement or the investment period, 

increase the commitment of funds by SamCERA, or otherwise change the 
agreement’s  substantive  term,  including  increasing  or  accelerating  the 
fees or compensation payable to the External Manager, to the extent such 
amendments to the agreement (referred to hereafter as “Amendment”) 
are executed subsequent to the adoption of amendments to this Policy.  In 
the case of an Amendment, the disclosure provisions of this Policy shall 
apply to the Amendment and not to the original agreement. 

 



Page 2 of 4 

 
III.  RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A.  The Board is responsible for: 
 

1.  Only  entering  into  agreements with  External Managers which  agree  in 
writing to comply with this policy. 

 
2.  Not  entering  into  any  agreements  with  External  Managers  that  have 
violated this policy within the previous five years.  However, this prohibition 
may be reduced by a majority vote of the Board at a public session upon a 
showing of good cause. 

 
B.  Each External Manager is responsible for: 
 

1. Executing an agreement requiring that the External Manager comply with 
this policy. 
 
2. Providing the following  information to SamCERA  Investment Staff within 
45 days of the date that investment discussions are initiated with the External 
Manager, and, in any event, prior to the completion of due diligence.  In the 
case of Amendments, an updated Placement Agent Information Disclosure is 
required prior to execution of the Amendment. 

 
a.  Disclosure of payments or compensation by the External Manager or 
any of its principals, employees, agents, or affiliates, directly or indirectly, 
to any person or entity  to act as a Placement Agent  in connection with 
SamCERA investments. 
 
b.  A  resume  for  each  officer,  partner,  and  principal  of  the  Placement 
Agent  detailing  their  education,  professional  designations,  regulatory 
licenses, and  investment and work experience.    If any  such person  is a 
current or former SamCERA Board Member, employee, or Consultant, or a 
member of  the  immediate  family of any  such person,  this  fact  shall be 
specifically noted. 
 
c.  A description of any and all  compensation of any kind provided, or 
agreed to be provided, to a Placement Agent, including the nature, timing, 
and value thereof.  Compensation to Placement Agents includes, but is not 
limited  to, compensation  from  the External Manager  to  third parties as 
well  as  the  External Manager’s  own  employees who  solicit  or market 
investments  to  SamCERA,  or  who  are  paid  based  upon  investment 
commitments secured by such employees. 
 



Page 3 of 4 

d.  A description of the services to be performed by the Placement Agent 
and  a  statement  as  to whether  the  Placement Agent  is  utilized  by  the 
External Manager with all prospective clients or only with a subset of the 
External Manager’s prospective clients. 
 
e.  A  written  copy  of  any  and  all  agreements  between  the  External 
Manager and the Placement Agent. 
 
f.  A statement whether the Placement Agent, or any of its affiliates, are 
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Financial 
Industry  Regulatory  Association,  or  any  similar  regulatory  agent  in  a 
country other than the United States, and the details of that registration 
or explanation as to why no registration is required. 
 
g.  A statement whether the Placement Agent, or any of  its affiliates,  is 
registered as a lobbyist with any state or national government. 
 
h.  The  names  of  any  current  or  former  SamCERA  Board  Members, 
employees, or Consultants who suggested the retention of the Placement 
Agent. 
 

3. Providing an update of any changes  to any of  the  information provided 
pursuant to Section B.2 above within 30 calendar days of the date that the 
External  Manager  knew  or  should  have  known  of  the  change  in 
information. 
 

4. Representing and warranting the accuracy of the information described in 
Section B.2 above. 
 

5. Causing  its  engaged  Placement  Agent  to  disclose,  prior  to  acting  as  a 
Placement Agent to SamCERA: 
 
a. All  campaign  contributions  made  by  the  Placement  Agent  to  any 
publicly  elected  SamCERA  Board  Member  during  the  prior  24‐month 
period.   Additionally, any subsequent campaign contribution(s) made by 
the  Placement  Agent  to  any  publicly  elected  SamCERA  Board Member 
during  the  time  the  Placement  Agent  is  receiving  compensation  in 
connection with a SamCERA investment shall also be disclosed. 
 
b.  All gifts, as defined in Government Code Section 82028, given by the 
Placement  Agent  to  any  SamCERA  Board  Member  during  the  prior 
24‐month  period.  Additionally,  any  subsequent  gift(s)  made  by  the 
Placement Agent  to  any  SamCERA  Board Member  during  the  time  the 
Placement Agent is receiving compensation in connection with a SamCERA 
investment shall also be disclosed. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

6. Acknowledging and agreeing that SamCERA reserves the right to deem any 
failure  by  a  Placement  Agent  to  disclose  the  information  required  by 
Sections B.5(a) and B.5(b) as a material breach of the External Manager’s 
agreement with SamCERA. 

 
C.  SamCERA Investment Staff (“Staff”) are responsible for: 

 
1.  Providing External Managers with a copy of  this Policy at  the  time  that 

discussions  are  initiated  with  respect  to  a  prospective  investment  or 
engagement. 

 
2   Confirming, within 45 days of  the  time  the execution of  the  investment 

contract or Amendment, that the information in Section B above has been 
received from the External Manager. 

 
3.  Securing  the  agreement  of  each  External Manager  in  any  contract  or 

Amendment  that  is  entered  into  after  the  date  this  Policy  (as  last 
amended) is adopted, that, in the event that there was or is an intentional 
material  omission  or  inaccuracy  in  the  Placement  Agent  Information 
Disclosure or any other violation of this Policy, SamCERA reserves the right 
to reimbursement of any management or advisory fees paid by SamCERA 
from the date of violation to the date of the imposition of the fees. 

 
4.  Prohibiting any External Manager or Placement Agent from soliciting new 

investments  from  SamCERA  for  five  years after  they have  committed a 
material violation of this Policy; provided, however, that SamCERA’s Board, 
by majority vote at a noticed, public meeting, may reduce this prohibition 
upon a showing of good cause. 

 
5.  Providing  the Board with Placement Agent  information  relating  to each 

investment  at  the  time  the  investment  is  brought  to  the  Board  for  its 
decision. 

 
6  Maintaining Placement Agent  Information Disclosures as a public record 

and reporting to the Board any a material violation of this Policy. 
 
 
Adopted December 14, 2010  
Amended October 25, 2011 
Amended March 28, 2017 
Amended April 25, 2023 



Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 

PLACEMENT AGENT DISCLOSURE POLICY 
 
 

This amended policy is effective immediately upon its adoption. This policy is intended to 
supplement any applicable provisions of state or federal  law, which shall govern  in the 
event of any inconsistency. 
 
I.  PURPOSE 
 

This Policy is adopted pursuant to the requirements set forth in Government Code 
Section 7513.85 to help ensure that the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement 
Association’s (SamCERA’s) investment decisions are made solely on the merits of 
the  investment  opportunity.    This  Policy  requires  broad,  timely,  and  updated 
disclosure of all Placement Agents, as that term is defined by Government Code 
section  7513.8,  as  well  as  their  relationships,  compensation,  and  fees.    All 
capitalized  terms  used  herein  shall  be  defined  as  set  forth  in  California 
Government Code section 7513.8. 

 
 
II.  APPLICATION 
 

This  Policy  applies  broadly  to  every  type  of  SamCERA  investment  managers 
manager including, but not limited to, general partners, sponsors of hedge funds, 
private equity funds, real estate funds, and infrastructure funds, as well as public 
market investment managers. 
 
This Policy, as  last amended, applies  to all agreements with External Managers 
that are: 
 

(1) E entered into after the date this Policy, as last amended, is adopted; or 
(1)(2) Aand all existing agreements if, after the date this amended Policy 

is adopted, the agreement is amended to continue, terminate, or extend 
the  term  of  the  agreement  or  the  investment  period,  increase  the 
commitment of funds by SamCERA, or otherwise change the agreement’s 
substantive term,  including or  increaseing or accelerate accelerating the 
fees or compensation payable to the External Manager, to the extent such 
amendments to the agreement (rReferred to hereafter as “Amendment”.) 
are executed subsequent to the adoption of amendments to this Policy.  In 



Page 2 of 5 

the case of an Amendment, the disclosure provisions of this Policy shall 
apply to the Amendment and not to the original agreement. 

 
 
III.  RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A.  The Board is responsible for: 
 

1.  Only  Not  entering  into  any  agreements  with  an  External  Managers 
whichthat does not agree in writing to comply with this policy. 

 
2.  Not entering into any agreements with an External Managers who hasthat 
have  violated  this  policy  within  the  previous  five  years.    However,  this 
prohibition may be reduced by a majority vote of the Board at a public session 
upon a showing of good cause. 

 
B.  Each External Manager is responsible for: 
 

1. Executing an agreement that providesrequiring that the External Manager 
will comply with this policy. 
 
2. Providing the following  information to SamCERA  Investment Staff within 
45 days of the time date that investment discussions are initiated by with the 
External Manager,  but  and,  in  any  event,  prior  to  the  completion  of  due 
diligence.    In  the  case  of  Amendments,  the  an  updated  Placement  Agent 
Information Disclosure is required prior to execution of the Amendment. 

 
a.  Disclosure of payments or compensation by the External Manager or 
any of its principals, employees, agents, or affiliates, directly or indirectly, 
to any person or entity  to act as a Placement Agent  in connection with 
SamCERA investments. 
 
b.  A  resume  for  each  officer,  partner,  and  principal  of  the  Placement 
Agent  detailing  the  person’stheir  education,  professional  designations, 
regulatory  licenses,  and  investment  and work  experience.    If  any  such 
person  is  a  current  or  former  SamCERA  Board Member,  employee,  or 
Consultant, or a member of the immediate family of any such person, this 
fact shall be specifically noted. 
 
c.  A description of any and all  compensation of any kind provided, or 
agreed to be provided, to a Placement Agent, including the nature, timing, 
and  value  thereof.    Compensation  to  Placement  Agents  shall 
includeincludes, but is not be limited to, compensation from the External 
Manager to third parties as well as the External Manager’s own employees 
of the External Manager who solicit or market investments to SamCERA, 
or who are paid based upon  investment commitments secured by such 



Page 3 of 5 

employees. 
 
d.  A description of the services to be performed by the Placement Agent 
and  a  statement  as  to whether  the  Placement Agent  is  utilized  by  the 
External Manager with all prospective clients or only with a subset of the 
External Manager’s prospective clients. 
 
e.  A  written  copy  of  any  and  all  agreements  between  the  External 
Manager and the Placement Agent. 
 
f.  A statement whether the placement agentPlacement Agent, or any of 
its affiliates, are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
or the Financial Industry Regulatory Association, or any similar regulatory 
agent  in a country other  than  the United States, and  the details of  that 
registration or explanation as to why no registration is required. 
 
g.  A statement whether the placement agentPlacement Agent, or any of 
its  affiliates,  is  registered  as  a  lobbyist  with  any  state  or  national 
government. 
 
h.  The  names  of  any  current  or  former  SamCERA  Board  Members, 
employees, or Consultants who suggested the retention of the Placement 
Agent. 
 

3. Providing an update of any changes  to any of  the  information provided 
pursuant to section Section B.2 above within 30 calendar days of the date 
that the External Manager knew or should have known of the change  in 
information. 
 

4. Representing and warranting the accuracy of the information described in 
section Section B.2 above. 
 

5. Causing  its  engaged  Placement  Agent  to  disclose,  prior  to  acting  as  a 
Placement Agent to SamCERA: 
 
a. All  campaign  contributions  made  by  the  Placement  Agent  to  any 
publicly  elected  SamCERA  Board  Member  during  the  prior  24‐month 
period.   Additionally, any subsequent campaign contribution(s) made by 
the  Placement  Agent  to  any  publicly  elected  SamCERA  Board Member 
during  the  time  the  Placement  Agent  is  receiving  compensation  in 
connection with a SamCERA investment shall also be disclosed. 
 
b.  All gifts, as defined in Government Code Section 82028, given by the 
Placement  Agent  to  any  SamCERA  Board  Member  during  the  prior 
24‐month  period.  Additionally,  any  subsequent  gift(s)  made  by  the 
Placement Agent  to  any  SamCERA  Board Member  during  the  time  the 



Page 4 of 5 

Placement Agent is receiving compensation in connection with a SamCERA 
investment shall also be disclosed. 
 

6. Acknowledging and agreeing that SamCERA reserves the right to deem the 
any failure by a Placement Agent to disclose the information required by 
Sections B.5(a) and B.5(b) as a material breach of the External Manager’s 
agreement with SamCERA with the External Manager. 

 
C.  SamCERA Investment Staff (“Staff”) are responsible for: 

 
1.  Providing External Managers with a copy of  this Policy at  the  time  that 

discussions  are  initiated  with  respect  to  a  prospective  investment  or 
engagement. 

 
2   Confirming, within 45 days of  the  time  the execution of  the  investment 

contract or Amendment, that the information in section Section B above 
has been received from the External Manager within 45 days of the time 
the execution of the investment contract or Amendment. 

 
3.  For new contracts and amendments to contracts existing as of the date of 

the  initial adoption of  this Policy,  sSecuring  the agreement of  the each 
External Manager  in the final written agreement between SamCERA and 
the  External Manager  to  provide  any  contract  or  Amendment  that  is 
entered into after the date this Policy (as last amended) is adopted, that, 
in  the  event  that  there was  or  is  an  intentional material  omission  or 
inaccuracy  in  the Placement Agent  Information Disclosure or any other 
violation of this Policy, SamCERA reserves the right to reimbursement of 
any management  or  advisory  fees  paid  by  SamCERA  from  the  date  of 
violation to the date of the imposition of the fees. 

 
4.  Prohibiting any External Manager or Placement Agent from soliciting new 

investments  from  SamCERA  for  five  years after  they have  committed a 
material violation of this Policy; provided, however, that SamCERA’s Board, 
by majority vote at a noticed, public meeting, may reduce this prohibition 
upon a showing of good cause. 

 
5.  Providing  the Board with Placement Agent  information  relating  to each 

investment  at  the  time  the  investment  is  brought  to  the  Board  for  its 
decision. 

 
6  Maintaining Placement Agent  Information Disclosures as a public record 

and reporting to the Board any a material violation of this Policy. 
 
 
Adopted December 14, 2010  
Amended October 25, 2011 



Page 5 of 5 

Amended March 28, 2017 
Amended April 25, 2023 



Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

PLACEMENT AGENT DISCLOSURE AND SEC COMPLIANCE FORM 
 

 
The Board of Retirement (“Board”) of the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement 
Association (“SamCERA”) has adopted a Placement Agent Policy (“Policy”), a copy of 
which is attached as Attachment I.  For the purposes of compliance with the Policy and 
the proper completion of this form, please refer to the definitions of “External 
Manager”, “Person”, “Placement Agent”, “Investment Fund”, “Investment Vehicle”, and 
“Compensation” as set forth in California Government Code Section 7513.8 and 
reflected in Section IV.  Under the Policy, each External Manager must complete and 
deliver this Disclosure Form to SamCERA within 45 days of the date that investment 
discussions are initiated and, in any event, prior to the completion of due diligence in 
accordance with Section II.B.2 of the Policy. 
 
For purposes of this disclosure, “you” means the External Manager identified below and 
its affiliates, including the External Manager’s and affiliates’ respective officers, 
directors, partners, members, employees, contractors, and agents. 
 
Name of External Manager:   _______________________________________________  
 
Name of Investment Fund:   _______________________________________________ 
 
Contact information for External Manager: 
 
  Address:    _____________________________ 
        _____________________________ 
        _____________________________ 
 
  Contact Person:  _____________________________ 
  Title      _____________________________ 
 
  Phone:     _____________________________ 
  Email      _____________________________ 
 
   



Page 2 of 8 

PART ONE:  DEFINITIONS  
 
The following definitions are excerpted from California Government Code section 7513.8 
and are  current as of April 25, 2023.    Should  the  legislature  subsequently amend  the 
definitions below, the definition of these terms as amended shall supersede the definitions 
contained in this policy.  
 
“External Manager” means either of the following: (1) a Person who is seeking to be, or 
is, retained by a board or an Investment Vehicle to manage a portfolio of securities or 
other assets for compensation; (2) a Person who manages an Investment Fund and who 
offers or sells, or has offered or sold, an ownership interest in the Investment Fund to a 
board or an Investment Vehicle.  (All code section references are to the Government 
Code, unless otherwise noted.) 
 
“Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited partnership, limited 
liability company, or association, either domestic or foreign. 
 
“Investment Vehicle” means a corporation, partnership, limited partnership, limited 
liability company, association, or other entity, either domestic or foreign, managed by 
an External Manager in which a board is the majority investor and that is organized in 
order to invest with, or retain the investment management services of, other External 
Managers. 
 
“Investment Fund” means a private equity fund, public equity fund, venture capital 
fund, hedge fund, fixed income fund, real estate fund, infrastructure fund, or similar 
pooled investment entity that is, or holds itself out as being, engaged primarily, or 
proposes to engage primarily, in the business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding, 
or trading securities or other assets.  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, an 
investment company that is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
pursuant to the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 8a‐1 et seq.) and that 
makes a public offering of its securities is not an Investment Fund. 
 
“Placement Agent” means any Person directly or indirectly hired, engaged, or retained 
by, or serving for the benefit of or on behalf of, an External Manager or an Investment 
Fund managed by an External Manager, and who acts or has acted for compensation as 
a finder, solicitor, marketer, consultant, broker or other intermediary in connection with 
the offer or sale to a board or an Investment Vehicle either of the following: in the case 
of an External Manager as defined in subpart (1) of the definition of an External 
Manager, the investment management services of the External Manager; in the case of 
an External Manager as defined in subpart (2) of the definition of an External Manager, 
an ownership interest in an Investment Fund managed by the External Manager. 
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, an individual who is an employee, officer, 
director, equityholder, partner, member, or trustee of an External Manager and who 
spends one‐third or more of his or her time, during a calendar year, managing the 
securities or assets owned, controlled, invested, or held by the External Manager is not 
a Placement Agent. 



Page 3 of 8 

PART TWO:  USE OF PLACEMENT AGENTS 
 
1.  Have you used a Placement Agent in connection with the Proposed Investment? 
 
            Yes _______    No________ 
 
2.  Will a Placement Agent receive compensation from you if SamCERA invests in 

the Proposed Investment? 
 
            Yes _______    No________ 
 
If you answer “Yes” to either question, complete the remainder of this Disclosure 
Form.   
 
If you answer “No” to both questions, go to directly to PART THREE. 
 
3.  The name of the Placement Agent is: 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
4.  Describe the relationship between you and the Placement Agent. 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
5.  Attach a resume for each officer, partner, or principal of the Placement Agent 
detailing the person’s education, professional designations, regulatory licenses, and 
investment and work experience.  Please identify below all persons whose resumes are 
attached. 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
6.  Describe any and all compensation of any kind provided, or agreed to be 
provided, to the Placement Agent or to a third party at the behest of the Placement 
Agent, in connection with the Placement Agent’s work for the External Manager on the 
Proposed Investment or as a result of SamCERA investing in the Proposed Investment.  
(“Compensation” means remuneration and other benefits or favors of any kind.) 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
   



Page 4 of 8 

7.  Describe the services to be performed by the Placement Agent in connection 
with the Proposed Investment. 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
8.  a.  Is the External Manager solely responsible for payment of the Placement 
Agent’s compensation? 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “No”, explain: 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  b.  Will any part of the compensation be paid or provided directly or 
indirectly by SamCERA, the Investment Vehicle, the Investment Fund, or any investor(s) 
in the Investment Vehicle or in the Investment Fund? 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “Yes”, explain: 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
9.  Please list the name(s) of all current and former Board members, employees, 
and consultants and member(s) of the immediate family of any such person that are 
either employed or receiving compensation of any kind provided, or agreed to be 
provided, directly or indirectly from the Placement Agent in connection with the 
Proposed Investment or as a result of SamCERA investing in the Proposed Investment.  If 
none, enter “none” below. 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
10.  Please list the name(s) of any current or former Board members, employees, and 
consultants who suggested the retention of the Placement Agent in connection with the 
Proposed Investment.  If none, enter “none” below. 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 



Page 5 of 8 

11.  Please confirm that the Placement Agent, and any affiliates, as applicable, is/are 
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Financial Industry 
Regulatory Association or any similar state regulatory agency, or any similar regulatory 
agency in a country other than the United States.  Please describe the details of each 
registration.  If the Placement Agent is not registered with any regulatory agency, please 
explain why no registration is required. 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
Any External Manager or Placement Agent that violates the Policy shall not solicit new 
investments from SamCERA for five years after the violation was committed.  However, 
this prohibition may be reduced by a majority vote of the Board at a public session upon 
a showing of good cause.  
 
Please note, there may be other laws relevant to Placement Agents, and you and any 
Placement Agent you engage with respect to managing or seeking to manage SamCERA 
assets are strongly encouraged to consult your own legal counsel. Please note that San 
Mateo County does not have a policy or ordinance regarding lobbyist registration.  

 
California Government Code section 7513.9: 

 
(a) Any placement agent, prior to acting as a placement agent in connection with 
any potential system investment, shall disclose to the board all campaign 
contributions made by the placement agent to any elected member of the board 
during the prior 24‐month period. Additionally, any subsequent campaign 
contribution made by the placement agent to an elected member of the board 
during the time the placement agent is receiving compensation in connection 
with a system investment shall also be disclosed. 
 
(b) Any placement agent, prior to acting as a placement agent in connection with 
any potential system investment, shall disclose to the board all gifts, as defined 
in Section 82028, given by the placement agent to any member of the board 
during the prior 24‐month period. Additionally, any subsequent gift given by the 
placement agent to any member of the board during the time the placement 
agent is receiving compensation in connection with a system investment shall 
also be disclosed. 

 
   



Page 6 of 8 

PART THREE: SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION COMPLIANCE  
 
You are expected to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations 
pertaining to investment advisers and the use of Placement Agents.  
 
The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) has adopted rules governing 
political contributions by certain investment advisors to certain officials.  “Official” is 
defined in 17 CFR 275.206(4)‐5 as “any person (including any election committee for the 
person) who was, at the time of the contribution, an incumbent, candidate or successful 
candidate for elective office of a government entity, if the office: (i) is directly or 
indirectly responsible for, or can influence the outcome of, the hiring of an investment 
adviser by a government entity; or (ii) has authority to appoint any person who is 
directly or indirectly  responsible for, or can influence the outcome of, the hiring of an 
investment adviser by a government entity.” 
 
Six members of SamCERA’s Board are elected by various member constituencies (two by 
general members, one by safety members, one alternate for safety members, one by 
retired members and one alternate for retired members).   
 
The San Mateo County Board of Supervisors, who are elected by the electorate of the 
County of San Mateo, appoint four members of the Board. The County Treasurer Tax 
Collector is elected by the electorate of the County of San Mateo. 
 
Generally, investment advisers are prohibited from providing investment advisory 
services for compensation within two years after making a political contribution to an 
official in violation of the SEC rule. SamCERA could be adversely affected if you or a 
covered associate made a prohibited political contribution.  
 
1.  Have you or a “covered associate” made a political “contribution” to an 
“official”, as the quoted terms are defined in 17 CFR 205.206(4)‐5 (the “Regulation”) 
that would make it unlawful under the Regulation for you to provide investment 
advisory services for compensation to SamCERA? 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “Yes”, explain: 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
2.  Are you an investment adviser registered (or required to be registered) with the 
SEC?   
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 



Page 7 of 8 

If  “Yes”, go to question 4.  If  “No”, explain below, then answer question 3: 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
3.    Are you unregistered with the SEC in reliance on the exemption available under 
section 203(b)(3) of the Investment Advisor Act of 1940? 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “Yes”, explain: 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
4.  Have you or a “covered associate” as defined in the Regulation engaged in any of 
the conduct described in (a)(2) of the Regulation? If so, when? 
 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “Yes”, explain: 
 
________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
Please note, there are other relevant SEC compliance issues apart from political 
contributions.  You are encouraged to consult your own legal counsel. 
 
By signing below, you are certifying you are in compliance with all SEC rules and 
regulations relating to investment advisers and placement agents. 
 
PART FOUR: CERTIFICATION 
 
This form, completed and signed by you, will be incorporated into and made a part of 
any contract or other agreement pursuant to which you manage assets for SamCERA. 
 
By signing below, you represent and warrant that the information set forth herein, and 
attached hereto, is true and correct.  Furthermore, you understand that SamCERA is 
relying upon your representations and warranties in determining whether to engage 
you to provide investment advisory services to SamCERA.  You agree to update this 
information in writing within ten days of any happenings that render your responses 
untrue or inaccurate. 



Page 8 of 8 

 
The execution and delivery of this form has been duly authorized by all necessary action 
by the undersigned. 
 
Name of External Manager:   __________________________  
 
        By:  ________________________ 
        Name: ________________________ 
        Title:  ________________________ 
        Date:  ________________________ 
 
 
 
Att: SamCERA’s Placement Agent Policy 



Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

PLACEMENT AGENT DISCLOSURE AND SEC COMPLIANCE FORM 
 

 
The Board of Retirement (“Board”) of the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement 
Association (“SamCERA”) has adopted a Placement Agent Policy (“Policy”), a copy of 
which is attached as Attachment I.  For the purposes of compliance with the Policy and 
the proper completion of this form, please refer to the definitions of “External 
Manager”, “Person”, “Placement Agent”, “Investment Fund”, “Investment Vehicle”, and 
“Compensation” as set forth in California Government Code Section 7513.8 and 
reflected in Section IV.  Under the Policy, each External Manager must complete and 
deliver this Disclosure Form to SamCERA prior to SamCERA within 45 days of the date 
that investment discussions are initiated and, in any event, prior to the completion of 
due diligence in accordance with Section II.B.2 of the Policyinvesting any money with 
that manager. 
 
For purposes of this disclosure, “you” means the External Manager identified below and 
its affiliates, including the External Manager’s and affiliates’ respective officers, 
directors, partners, members, employees, contractors, and agents. 
 
Name of External Manager:   _______________________________________________  
 
Name of Investment Fund:   _______________________________________________ 
 
Contact information for External Manager: 
 
  Address:    _____________________________ 
        _____________________________ 
        _____________________________ 
 
  Contact Person:  _____________________________ 
  Title      _____________________________ 
 
  Phone:     _____________________________ 
  Email      _____________________________ 
 
   



Page 2 of 8 

PART ONE:  DEFINITIONS  
 
The following definitions are excerpted from California Government Code section 7513.8 
and are current as of March 28, 2017April 25, 2023.  Should the legislature subsequently 
amend the definitions below, the definition of these terms as amended shall supersede 
the definitions contained in this policy.  
 
“External Manager” means either of the following: (1) a Person who is seeking to be, or 
is, retained by a board or an Investment Vehicle to manage a portfolio of securities or 
other assets for compensation; (2) a Person who manages an Investment Fund and who 
offers or sells, or has offered or sold, an ownership interest in the Investment Fund to a 
board or an Investment Vehicle.  (All code section references are to the Government 
Code, unless otherwise noted.) 
 
“Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited partnership, limited 
liability company, or association, either domestic or foreign. 
 
“Investment Vehicle” means a corporation, partnership, limited partnership, limited 
liability company, association, or other entity, either domestic or foreign, managed by 
an External Manager in which a board is the majority investor and that is organized in 
order to invest with, or retain the investment management services of, other External 
Managers. 
 
“Investment Fund” means a private equity fund, public equity fund, venture capital 
fund, hedge fund, fixed income fund, real estate fund, infrastructure fund, or similar 
pooled investment entity that is, or holds itself out as being, engaged primarily, or 
proposes to engage primarily, in the business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding, 
or trading securities or other assets.  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, an 
investment company that is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
pursuant to the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 8a‐1 et seq.) and that 
makes a public offering of its securities is not an Investment Fund. 
 
“Placement Agent” means any Person directly or indirectly hired, engaged, or retained 
by, or serving for the benefit of or on behalf of, an External Manager or an Investment 
Fund managed by an External Manager, and who acts or has acted for compensation as 
a finder, solicitor, marketer, consultant, broker or other intermediary in connection with 
the offer or sale to a board or an Investment Vehicle either of the following: in the case 
of an External Manager as defined in subpart (1) of the definition of an External 
Manager, the investment management services of the External Manager; in the case of 
an External Manager as defined in subpart (2) of the definition of an External Manager, 
an ownership interest in an Investment Fund managed by the External Manager. 
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, an individual who is an employee, officer, 
director, equityholder, partner, member, or trustee of an External Manager and who 
spends one‐third or more of his or her time, during a calendar year, managing the 
securities or assets owned, controlled, invested, or held by the External Manager is not 
a Placement Agent. 



Page 3 of 8 

PART TWO:  USE OF PLACEMENT AGENTS 
 
1.  Have you used a Placement Agent in connection with the Proposed Investment? 
 
            Yes _______    No________ 
 
2.  Will a Placement Agent receive compensation from you if SamCERA invests in 

the Proposed Investment? 
 
            Yes _______    No________ 
 
If you answer “Yes” to either question, complete the remainder of this Disclosure 
Form.   
 
If you answer “No” to both questions, go to directly to PART THREE. 
 
3.  The name of the Placement Agent is: 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
4.  Describe the relationship between you and the Placement Agent. 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
5.  Attach a resume for each officer, partner, or principal of the Placement Agent 
detailing the person’s education, professional designations, regulatory licenses, and 
investment and work experience.  Please identify below all persons whose resumes are 
attached. 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
6.  Describe any and all compensation of any kind provided, or agreed to be 
provided, to the Placement Agent or to a third party at the behest of the Placement 
Agent, in connection with the Placement Agent’s work for the External Manager on the 
Proposed Investment or as a result of SamCERA investing in the Proposed Investment.  
(“Compensation” means remuneration and other benefits or favors of any kind.) 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
   



Page 4 of 8 

7.  Describe the services to be performed by the Placement Agent in connection 
with the Proposed Investment. 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
8.  a.  Is the External Manager solely responsible for payment of the Placement 
Agent’s compensation? 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “No”, explain: 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  b.  Will any part of the compensation be paid or provided directly or 
indirectly by SamCERA, the Investment Vehicle, the Investment Fund, or any investor(s) 
in the Investment Vehicle or in the Investment Fund? 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “Yes”, explain: 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
9.  Please list the name(s) of all current and former Board members, employees, 
and consultants and member(s) of the immediate family of any such person that are 
either employed or receiving compensation of any kind provided, or agreed to be 
provided, directly or indirectly from the Placement Agent in connection with the 
Proposed Investment or as a result of SamCERA investing in the Proposed Investment.  If 
none, enter “none” below. 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
10.  Please list the name(s) of any current or former Board members, employees, and 
consultants who suggested the retention of the Placement Agent in connection with the 
Proposed Investment.  If none, enter “none” below. 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 



Page 5 of 8 

11.  Please confirm that the Placement Agent, and any affiliates, as applicable, is/are 
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Financial Industry 
Regulatory Association or any similar state regulatory agency, or any similar regulatory 
agency in a country other than the United States.  Please describe the details of each 
registration.  If the Placement Agent is not registered with any regulatory agency, please 
explain why no registration is required. 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
Any External Manager or Placement Agent that violates the Policy shall not solicit new 
investments from SamCERA for five years after the violation was committed.  However, 
this prohibition may be reduced by a majority vote of the Board at a public session upon 
a showing of good cause.  
 
Please note, there may be other laws relevant to Placement Agents, and you and any 
Placement Agent you engage with respect to managing or seeking to manage SamCERA 
assets are strongly encouraged to consult your own legal counsel. Please note that San 
Mateo County does not have a policy or ordinance regarding lobbyist registration.  

 
California Government Code section 7513. 9: 

 
 (a) Any placement agent, prior to acting as a placement agent in connection 
with any potential system investment, shall disclose to the board all campaign 
contributions made by the placement agent to any elected member of the board 
during the prior 24‐month period. Additionally, any subsequent campaign 
contribution made by the placement agent to an elected member of the board 
during the time the placement agent is receiving compensation in connection 
with a system investment shall also be disclosed. 
 
(b) Any placement agent, prior to acting as a placement agent in connection with 
any potential system investment, shall disclose to the board all gifts, as defined 
in Section 82028, given by the placement agent to any member of the board 
during the prior 24‐month period. Additionally, any subsequent gift given by the 
placement agent to any member of the board during the time the placement 
agent is receiving compensation in connection with a system investment shall 
also be disclosed. 

 
   



Page 6 of 8 

PART THREE: SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION COMPLIANCE  
 
You are expected to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations 
pertaining to investment advisers and the use of Placement Agents.  
 
The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) has adopted rules governing 
political contributions by certain investment advisors to certain officials.  “Official” is 
defined in 17 CFR 275.206(4)‐5 as “any person (including any election committee for the 
person) who was, at the time of the contribution, an incumbent, candidate or successful 
candidate for elective office of a government entity, if the office: (i) is directly or 
indirectly responsible for, or can influence the outcome of, the hiring of an investment 
adviser by a government entity; or (ii) has authority to appoint any person who is 
directly or indirectly  responsible for, or can influence the outcome of, the hiring of an 
investment adviser by a government entity.” 
 
Six members of SamCERA’s Board are elected by various member constituencies (two by 
general members, one by safety members, one alternate for safety members, one by 
retired members and one alternate for retired members).   
 
The San Mateo County Board of Supervisors, who are elected by the electorate of the 
County of San Mateo, appoint four members of the Board. The County Treasurer Tax 
Collector is elected by the electorate of the County of San Mateo. 
 
Generally, investment advisers are prohibited from providing investment advisory 
services for compensation within two years after making a political contribution to an 
official in violation of the SEC rule. SamCERA could be adversely affected if you or a 
covered associate made a prohibited political contribution.  
 
1.  Have you or a “covered associate” made a political “contribution” to an 
“official”, as the quoted terms are defined in 17 CFR 205.206(4)‐5 (the “Regulation”) 
that would make it unlawful under the Regulation for you to provide investment 
advisory services for compensation to SamCERA? 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “Yes”, explain: 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
2.  Are you an investment adviser registered (or required to be registered) with the 
SEC?   
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 



Page 7 of 8 

If  “Yes”, go to question 4.  If  “No”, explain below, then answer question 3: 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
3.    Are you unregistered with the SEC in reliance on the exemption available under 
section 203(b)(3) of the Investment Advisor Act of 1940? 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “Yes”, explain: 
 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
4.  Have you or a “covered associate” as defined in the Regulation engaged in any of 
the conduct described in (a)(2) of the Regulation? If so, when? 
 
 
  Yes   _________    No  ________ 
 
If “Yes”, explain: 
 
________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
Please note, there are other relevant SEC compliance issues apart from political 
contributions.  You are encouraged to consult your own legal counsel. 
 
By signing below, you are certifying you are in compliance with all SEC rules and 
regulations relating to investment advisers and placement agents. 
 
PART FOUR: CERTIFICATION 
 
This form, completed and signed by you, will be incorporated into and made a part of 
any contract or other agreement pursuant to which you manage assets for SamCERA. 
 
By signing below, you represent and warrant that the information set forth herein, and 
attached hereto, is true and correct.  Furthermore, you understand that SamCERA is 
relying upon your representations and warranties in determining whether to engage 
you to provide investment advisory services to SamCERA.  You agree to update this 
information in writing within ten days of any happenings that render your responses 
untrue or inaccurate. 



Page 8 of 8 

 
The execution and delivery of this form has been duly authorized by all necessary action 
by the undersigned. 
 
Name of External Manager:   __________________________  
 
        By:  ________________________ 
        Name: ________________________ 
        Title:  ________________________ 
        Date:  ________________________ 
 
 
 
Att: SamCERA’s Placement Agent Policy 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 
 
April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 4.13 
 
 
TO:  Board of Retirement 
 
FROM: Gladys Smith, Assistant Executive Officer   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
SUBJECT:  Trustee’s Special Request To Attend An Educational Event 
 
 
Recommendation 
Approve the following request by a Board of Retirement trustee who has submitted a 
special request to attend an educational event. 
 
Background 
SamCERA’s Education Policy has a list of educational programs and activities under 
Section 2(B) that are approved by the Board of Retirement.  If a trustee would like to 
attend a training/conference not specified under Section 2(B), the trustee must submit a 
Board of Retirement Trustee Special Request To Attend Education Event Form answering 
the following questions listed under Section 3(D) of the policy: 
 

1. Are the conference topics of current interest and importance and related to 
issues facing SamCERA? 

2. Have reports from previous attendees been favorable regarding the content of 
the conference and the continuing value of future attendance? 

3. Will the conference meet the educational needs of the attendee? 
4. Can similar education be received from an already approved provider or that 

provider’s on-line resources? 
5. Does the cost of the event and overnight travel justify the benefits particularly 

if the conference is out of California? 
6. How many overnight trips has the Board member attended and/or is planning 

on attending this fiscal year? 
 
Discussion 
Elaine Orr has requested to attend the Milken Institute Global Conference from April 30 – 
May 3, 2023 at The Beverly Hilton, Beverly Hills, CA. 
               
Attachments 
Trustee’s Special Request To Attend An Educational Event Form – Elaine Orr 







SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023   Agenda Item 6.1   

TO: Board of Retirement   

FROM: Michael Coultrip, Chief Investment Officer 

SUBJECT: Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended 
March 31, 2023 

Recommendation  
Accept the preliminary performance report dated March 31, 2023. 

Background  
This preliminary report is intended to provide a high-level view of the portfolio and its trends.  It is 
not intended to provide short-term performance upon which the Board would act.  The quarterly 
performance metrics are not yet available for our private equity, private credit, private real asset, 
and real estate portfolios.  The performance for these portfolios will be reflected in the quarterly 
performance report generated by Verus.   

The fund’s net preliminary return for March was 1.3%, bringing the preliminary trailing twelve-
month net return ending March 2023 to -2.6%, which is below our assumed earnings rate of 
6.25%. 

SamCERA’s estimated market value as of March was $5.941 billion, while the actuarial funded 
ratio as of June 30, 2022 was 90.7% 

Discussion  
Turmoil in the banking sector (culminating in the failure of SVB and Signature Bank) resulted in 
extreme market volatility in both equity and fixed income markets.  The Fed increased rates by 25 
basis points despite the tighter financial conditions brought about by the banking crisis.  Despite all 
this, risk assets rallied into month-end based on the expectation that we are near (or at) peak 
interest rates and posted mostly positive returns for the month. 

The U.S. equity market (measured by the S&P 500 Index) was up 3.7%, while small-capitalization 
stocks were down 4.8% (partly due to exposure to smaller regional banks).  Developed 
international equity (as measured by MSCI EAFE) was up 2.5% while emerging markets were up 
3.0%.   

Economic activity moderated a bit in March.  Manufacturing softened again and continues to be in 
contraction territory (for the fifth straight month).  Conversely, the labor market was firm, adding 
236,000 jobs in March, but it was the smallest increase since December 2020.  The headline 
unemployment rate decreased to 3.5%, again closing in on decade old record lows.  Inflation (as 



2 
 

measured by the Consumer Price Index - All Urban Consumers) continued to slow, although at a 
smaller rate than the previous few months.  CPI increased 5.0% for the twelve months ended 
March. 
 
The general U.S. fixed income market was up 2.5% in March as interest rates fell across the yield 
curve.  The 10-year U.S. Treasury yield was lower by 45 basis points during the month and ended at 
3.47% by month-end.  High Yield returns were up 1.1% and the Bloomberg Commodity Index was 
down 0.2%. 
 
AttachmentS  

  

Verus Capital Market Update  
Northern Trust Preliminary Monthly Performance Report 
 



����������	
��	��	�������
�	��
�



���������	 


��������������������������������� �!���	"#���������������������$%&�'�$�!��(�#�'����� ��'����'�����(�&����(����)����!�������#� �(��� ������� '����� �$�'��*+,�-�����.�/��.����,�0�'��&���'���������&������� �$��(�����������(���(��'���%�!����1�'#�&����������'�'(�1�$��� ���'��	,2-���$�'�����!������������'(�(��'(�����'������������"�,2-�'��"�,"-,���3���4�(/,�����(��(����5���&����6��'(���'�7�$�8�$�����$��!�&�'�����'���'������'��(��'����'������(����/����'#�����(���'��"�,�������"9,��(��'������'����(��,�0���(�$�8���������'������#� ('��'���������'���/���������(���������� ���$��8���'�'(��������!&�(��������$('(����(��'������������$�:";,2�'��2<,�=,�3���76�����&���'&�(���>�7�:+",	=���/����$���$������'��('���� ��'���/����(������������,�5�����(����������(�$&�'�(�����/���(1������$&��$���'(/('��(�������'����'���'���/�($��&�'����(��'����������/���&����,�������?��@���0�����%����A&('��(�$(������$�$��(�����$���('���8'���(/���($.���'��/���'(�('�,�3���6B>�2���7�$�8������*	,9-����(�/��'�����������$�������'����(1��(���$������C�$��(/�'�$&��'��'���(������(������������'��'�����'���!�(�1�����������'���(1������������$����'����(����(������'��,���3���������������6(�(����D������E��1������� ('������'�.���&��$����$����6(���'&���E��1���$�6(�/����'�E��1�����1�$���������������(�����!��1�$����('������$�(�/��'������(1�,�3���6B>�F��(�����E��1��6����'�GA&('��7�$�8������.�H,�-�(�� ��'� �����'&�&�'&�&�����'������'���!���$���C(����(�������'��,��I�(���'���6B>�2�������(�$�*9,2-�(��'����(��'�A&��'��#�������'����������'�(���$.!��1�J;�G>6���'(��'����/���'������'�'��������'��,�>���C��'6�'#�������'����/����$&��$�J;�G>6���'(��'���!��.",	-��(����)����!���	�'�#�������'���$� � ��$��$%&�'���'�'�����/�����,

����K�L�M���������� �����'���6DE������������������'�$����1�'��8���'�'(����������'���&'��(�'��'����&����'�����,�>�(���'��'�����������#��8���'�'(��������'���C�$N��'���(������'����$����1�$��'����� ��(������2,2-�.2,92-#�!&'�'������&(����(�1.�������'(���'�A&(�1���!��&��'��8���'�'(����!��1�%&�'�!��� �2-�����$����'���CO�5����'(��,�3���C�$�����'�$����2.!�����'���(1����$���('���'�$�('������('���'�'���(��'(���(����'(���$���('�������'�'&���(��(��'���!��1(������'��,�I('��������'�'��'���!��1(������'��#�C�$�5��(�����>� ������'�$�'��'�P('�(��'��������'��$�'���(���'����8'��'����'����������'�#���$�'���������'��������'��'������ �����'�������(������&�$�������$,Q�E��$������(�$���������'����1�'�/���'(�('��R'���E����!����46�0������'��7�$�8���(�!�$�*�,2-���$�������������$���(������'��������,���@�S�T@���TU��TSV�@�W��!����A&('(���:*	,;-=���� �$�!��1�C�!�&��������������(�/��'����!������(������(�������'(�(�'(���!�&'���������'�(�'(/�����'����!��1����(�(��,�0������(�����(�$(������/�$��(�������($�������'����657�4X�7�$�8�:.�,"-=,�����G�����(����'(/('�(�G&�����&���(��$�'��'���&��($��'���&���&'�'������'�,�3����&��.�����������('��>�7������'����;�.���'���(������2+,;,�0����(�(��'����/(�������'�����&���$� ('��'������'(�&�$������������������(�������'�(!&'�$�'��'����657�G&���7�$�8����'(�����*+,;-���'&��,��Y�������������$�(���(��� ('���'�������(�����(�$(���,�G��(����'��8���'�'(�����$����'�������Z���:*�,+-=����'�(!&'�$�(�����'�'����*+,�-���'&�������'����657�Y�����7�$�8,��[\]̂[_��[̀ab̂c��\d[̂b

efghij�klmminjfgo



������������	�
������������������������������
������� �!"#$%&�'()%*+%&�,-./0/�.110,�'0-23-4.$+0�*1�1536$�50-07�80-23-4.$+0�32�'-*9.,0�.110,1�*1�,&'*+.%%&�-0%0.10/�6*,5�.�:;,3�<;43$,5�/0%.&7�=3(-+0>�?3-$*$@1,.-A�.1�32�:B:CBD:� =3(-+0>�?3-$*$@1,.-A�.1�32�:B:CBD: E

F�������G����	�
�����

�HIJKHL��HMNOKP�QIRHKOS�TU!V ST!U VST�UWVSTTUXVST UYVST UZVST UXVSZUZVSWUYVSWU!VS[U\V
S[UWVS!U!VSTU[VSTUTV

S�WV S� V STWV ST V SWV  V WV�]_̂̀�̂�a�bc�defg�dh̀ à__��   �i�_ha�j_kklma�n�okllkp̂qr�dh̀ à__��   �dh̀ à__�T   �s�ktq���cof�e��dh̀ à__��   �s�ktq��cuv�W  �dh̀ à__�T   �i�_ha�j_kklma�n�bc�o�ap̂q�j_kklma�n�bc�wnn�jkxp�j_kklma�n�bc�g�a�̀h�r�j_kklma�n�bc�ok�yU�ẑn��{̂a_p��cof�ew|e�j_kklma�n�bc�wnax�r�fxqa�l

STUZV  UYV UYVTU[V�U V�U�V
[UTVWU VWUYVZU�V\U V

\UWVYUTV T�U�VT[UXV

SWV  V WV T V TWV � V�j_kklma�n�okllkp̂qr�j_kklma�n�bc�g�a�̀h�r�j_kklma�n�bc�wnax�r�fxqa�l�j_kklma�n�bc�wnn�jkxp��cof�e��j_kklma�n�bc�o�ap̂q�j_kklma�n�bc�ok�yU�ẑn��{̂a_p��cof�ew|e�]_̂̀�̂�a�bc�defg�dh̀ à__��   �i�_ha�dh̀ à__��   �dh̀ à__��   �s�ktq��dh̀ à__�T   �i�_ha�cuv�W  �dh̀ à__�T   �s�ktq�



�����������	
����
 �����
��������������������
� ��������������������������
��������� !!�"#$�%�&'(��)*+,-�.(�/#0�(1'&(�2''3�$�4�5'#$�(1&�((�/#�1���4.#3/#6�(5(1�7�.#$�18&#�$�1��/&�(/6�1(�1'9.&$�.�:'1�#1/.2�;�$�:.8(�+��9/<1�6'0�&#7�#1�/#1�&0�#1/'#�/#�1���9.3��'<�1����=>�?'22.:(��2/3�25���2:�$�@8�22�('7��<�.&(�'<�(5(1�7/?�4.#3�<./28&�+���0�#�'<�1���AA�����B"C��(�?1'&(��#$�$�1���7'#1���/6��&+���?�#'2'65�(1'?3(�D)A!+,-E�?'#1/#8�$�1'�2�.$�/#$�%�:�&<'&7.#?�F�<'22'9�$�45�C'778#/?.1/'#���&0/?�(�D)A!+G-E�.#$�H1/2/1/�(�D)G+I-E+�����;/#.#?/.2(�(�?1'&�9.(�1���2.&6�(1�$�1&.?1'&F�<.22/#6�JI+K-+�L�.2�M(1.1��DJA+G-EF�.#$�N.1�&/.2(�DJA+!-E�9�&��1���#�%1�9'&(1�:�&<'&7�&(+�

�����O'9�P'#�(�"#$8(1&/.2�Q0�&.6��D)R+A-E�2.66�$�1������� !!�.#$�SQ�OQT�<'&�.�1�/&$�?'#(�?81/0��7'#1�+���&<'&7.#?���.(�(8<<�&�$�&�?�#125�$8��1'�1���O'9U(���.0/�&�.22'?.1/'#�1'�$�<�#(/0��(�?1'&(�/#?28$/#6�;/#.#?/.2(�.#$�V�.21��C.&�F�.#$�2/6�1�&�.22'?.1/'#�1'���?�#'2'65�.#$�C'778#/?.1/'#���&0/?�(+�����W#�N.&?��A*1�F�1���C4'�="X�"#$�%�'<�/7:2/�$�0'2.1/2/15�?2'(�$�.1�/1(��/6��(1�2�0�2�DRK+ E�(/#?��W?1'4�&�<'22'9/#6�/#0�(1'&(U�<�.&<82�&�(:'#(��1'�(8$$�#�H+�+�4.#3/#6�(1&�((+�='2.1/2/15�&�1&�.1�$�$8&/#6�1���4.?3��.2<�'<�1���7'#1��.#$�1���="X�?2'(�$�.1�AY+,F�JR�:'/#1(�4�2'9�;�4&8.&5�2�0�2(+��
N.&?��R!R*Z[\]̂_̀�ab[[cd_]ef�gh�[i�jkjlkmj� Z[\]̂_̀�nd[_f�gh�[i�jkjlkmj� Z[\]̂_̀�ab[[cd_]ef�gh�[i�jkjlkmj o	pqrspt��puvwsx��qypswRR!!R,!!*R!!*,!!GR!!G,!!

N.&JRA ��:JRA N.&JRR ��:JRR N.&JR* ! A!A R!
R *!* G!
N.&JRA ��:JRA N.&JRR ��:JRR N.&JR*

AI+, AY+* A+, A+,  +A  + ! A!A 
R!R 

�&./2/#6�A�z&��{M ;'&9.&$�A�z&��{M C8&&�#1�O/0+�z2$D-E "7:2/�$�O/0+�z2$D-E �&./2/#6M.&#/#6(z2$�D-E "7:2/�$M.&#/#6(z2$�D-E

|}~}�������������������



����������	
����
���������������� ����������	
�������
�
�����	�
���������
��
����� ������������
	�����
�
�����	�
���������
��
�����

���������� !��"���#��$%&���"'�()*+,-./*0�,+1234�-56737-8�9:688-;;�<===�>+1234�?@ABCD�/1E37E6-F�31�F1G7E*3-�34-�-5673H�;*EF8/*0-A�I�567/J�*EF�F+*837/�847K3�7E�+*3-�-L0-/3*371E8�4-;0-F�86001+3�34-�/1E37E6-F�*8/-E3�1K�,+1234�-56737-8�247;-�83--0�F-/;7E-8�7E�34-�M7E*E/7*;8�8-/31+�06;;-F�N*;6-�831/J8�;12-+�9:688-;;�<===�O*;6-�.=APCDA���(QG*;;./*0�831/J8�9.RABCD�86KK-+-F�*�83+1E,�8-;;.1KK�*EF�;*,,-F�;*+,-./*08�9?SATCDU0*+3;H�F+7N-E�VH�4-*NH-L0186+-�31�+-,71E*;�V*EJ8A�W4-�:-,71E*;�X*EJ8�86V.7EF683+H�+-0+-8-E38�34-�;*+,-83�01+371E�9<=ASCD�1K�34-�:688-;;�T===�*EF�*//16E3-F�K1+�+16,4;H�1E-.347+F�1K34-�V-E/4G*+JY8�F-/;7E-A��
(W4-�16387Z-F�F-/;7E-�7E�8G*;;./*08�-EF-F�*�+-/-E3�837E3�1K�8G*;;./*0�1N-+0-+K1+G*E/-�*EF�,*N-�2*H�31�34-�;*+,-83�G1E34;H�F780*+73H�9?BA=CD�V-32--E�;*+,-�*EF�8G*;;�/1G0*EH�0-+K1+G*E/-�87E/-�[*+/4�T=T=A���(W4-�Q\]�P==�̂56*;�_-7,43-F�̀EF-L�K-;;�.=AaC�*EF�E12�3+*7;8�34-�/*0.2-7,43-F�7EF-L�VH�.RA@C�H-*+.31.F*3-A�W4-�+-/-E3�+-/1N-+H�7E�,+1234�8-/31+8�b247/4�1//60H�*�8G*;;-+�0-+/-E3*,-�1K�34-�-56*;.2-7,43-F�7EF-L�b*;1E,�2734�+-/-E3�V*EJ7E,�36+G17;�2-7,4-F�1E�0-+K1+G*E/-A�

[*+/4�T=TScdefghi�jkclm�noddpqhfrm�st�du�vwvxwyv� cdefghi�jkclm�noddpqhfrm�st�du�vwvxwyv cdefghi�jkclm�noddpqhfrm�st�du�vwvxwyv z�{|}~{���{���~���|�{~�.<PC.<=C.PC=CPC<=C
<PCT=C

=A==AP<A=<APTA=
TAP

:-;*37N-�]�̂�9O*;6-�>+1234D�9)-K3D:-;*37N-�IN-+*,-�O*;6*371E�9)-K3DQ6V8-56-E3�P��-*+�:1;;7E,�̂L/-88�:-36+E8�9O*;6-�>+1234D�9:7,43D .RPC.SPC.TPC.<PC.PC
PC<PCTPC
[*+.=P [*+.=B [*+.<< [*+.<R [*+.<� [*+.T= [*+.TS:<===�O*;6-�G7E68�:<===�>+1234 .TPC.T=C.<PC.<=C.PC=CPC<=C<PC

T=CTPCS=CSPC
[*+.<< [*+.<S [*+.<P [*+.<� [*+.<a [*+.T< [*+.TS:688-;;�T===�G7E68�:688-;;�<===



������������	�	
�������� ���
����	
���� ����������
�����
��������
�������������

�� !"�#$#%&'()*+,�-.''/0+)12�34�'5�6768796� &'()*+,�:');<;14=3)2�34�'5�6768796 &'()*+,�-.''/0+)12�34�'5�6768796 >

?@A���BCAD"�B� EFG�HI�JCK�DLKLDIM�D"F�NKCCBHF O�PQ�R F�ST I�UCAO�@AGFV�WXYZ[\�CTD]F ̂C BFG�D"F�NKCCBHF O�PQ�R F�ST I�W#Y_[\��AG�NKCCBHF O�PQ�R F�ST I�̀a%�bF� ẀYc[\�LAGL!FS��S�LAJFSDC S�BCJFG�DCd� GS�D"F�KCAO�FAG�Ĉ�D"F�ILFKG�!T JFY��?bLFKGS�CA�#aIF� �R F�ST LFS�]F�EFG��D�eY$e[�D"FA�fTL!EKI�̂FKK�BC F�D"�A�̀$$�H]S�HFDdFFA��� !"�gD"�AG��� !"�̀%D"M�B� ELAO�D"F�K� OFSD�D" FFaD �GLAOaG�I�GF!KLAF�̂C �D"F�DFAC �SLA!F�D"F�B� EFD�! �S"�Ĉ�̀_gZY�ĥDF �HCDDCBLAO��D�%YZc[M�D"F�#aIF� � �KKLFG�LA�D"F�SF!CAG�"�K̂�Ĉ�D"F�BCAD"�DC�̂LALS"��D�XY$c[Y�
?R"F�GCKK� � FJF SFG�!CT SF��AG�O�JF�T]�LDS�iFH T� I�O�LASY�R"F�jkb�̂LALS"FG�a#Y%[�CA�D"F�BCAD"M�ACdGCdA�àYX[�IF� aDCaG�DF��AG�à$Ye[�̂ CB�LDS�]F�E�LA�K�DFQF]DFBHF Y�R"F�GCKK� �"�S�SFFA�KCSSFS�LA�̂LJF�Ĉ�D"F�K�SDSLV�BCAD"SY?lCK�DLKLDI�D" CTO"CTD��� !" FSTKDFG�LA�dLGFALAO�! FGLD�S] F�GSY�mLSELF �SFOBFADS�K�OOFG�HTD�SDLKK�]CSDFG�]CSLDLJF� FDT AS�nD"F�NKCCBHF O�PQ�oC ]C �DF�pLO"�bLFKG�@AGFV�Wq̀Ỳ[\�d�S��BCAO�D"F�dC SD�]F ̂C BF SY

rsturv��rwxyuz��s{ruy$[̀[#[%[X[
e[

�� a#% QF]a## �� a##
XY%[ XYg[ eYc[ _Ye[ _Y%[#Y#| %Yc| cYe[ ZYe[}~�[ #Y�|�~#[ �~�| ZYc[ cYX[$[#[X[c[g[

$̀[#̀[
NKCCBHF OPQ�R F�ST I@AGFV NKCCBHF OPQ�hOO�@AGFV NKCCBHF OPQ�o FGLD@AGFV NKCCBHF OPQ�pLO"�bLFKG@AGFV ��N@a�KCH�K@AGFV�� a#% �� a## #$abF� �hJF �OF

%YX[ #Y#[ #Ye[#Yg[ #Y#[ #Y%[
$Y$[$Yc[Ỳ#[Ỳg[
#YX[%Y$[%Yc[

#̀��CAD"S�� LC c��CAD"S�� LC �� a#%eabF� �N F�EFJFA $̀abF� �N F�EFJFA



����������	
	�������	�
���	��� ����������
�����
���

	�������	� ����������������	�
�����������������
��� !��"!#$%&'()*+,-*�./0121.3�45678�97:8�8;<.=�>?@ABC�D+E.<�F1GF.H�-*+;G31<.�I-**1;G�J1.*<3�-KH+33�D-L+H�D-HM.23@�)-1;3�N.H.�,H+-<O�N12F�,+2F�<.E.*+P.<�D-HM.2�./0121.3�4>Q@RBC�-;<�.D.HG1;G�D-HM.2�./0121.3�4>?@SBC�.;<1;G�1;�2F.�GH..;@(62J*.�2H.;<3�N12F1;�1;2.H;-21+;-*�./0121.3�F-E.�*-HG.*J�D1HH+H.<�<+D.321K�./0121.3�2+�32-H2�2F.�J.-H@�TF.�5678�U9VU�)H+N2F�8;<.=�H-**1.<�>R@?B�NF1*.�U9VU�W-*0.�I.**��XS@?B@�TF132H.;<�*1M.*J�H.I*.K23�2F.�H131;G�PH+3P.K2�+I�-3*+N<+N;�1;�H-2.�F1M.3�IH+D�D-L+H�K.;2H-*�,-;M3ONF1KF�N+0*<�,.�30PP+H21E.+I�GH+N2F�32+KM�E-*0-21+;3@

(YH1213F�./0121.3�45678�Z[�8;<.=�XS@\BC�3-N�2F.�+;*J�<.K*1;.3�-D+;G�D-L+H�./012J�D-HM.23�1;�5-HKF@�Z[X*132.<�./0121.3�F-E.�I-K.<�;+2-,*J�N+H3.;1;G�3.;21D.;2�-D+;G�U;G*13FP.;31+;�I0;<3�NF1KF�2H-;3I.HH.<�*1-,1*121.3�2+�1;30H-;K.�K+DP-;1.3�1;�H.K+H<�E+*0D.3�1;�2F.�I1H32�/0-H2.H�+I�QSQ?@(]+K-**JX<.;+D1;-2.<�.D.HG1;G�D-HM.2�<.,2�4̂_5�)Y8XU5�)*+,-*�̀1E.H31I1.<�>a@ABC�L0DP.<�-3�-,H0P2�31G;-*3�+I�-�K*+3.HX2F-;X-;21K1P-2.<P-03.�1;�Z@6@�H-2.�F1M.3�F.*P.<�30PP+H2�G*+,-*�K0HH.;K1.3@�TF.�1;<.=�13�0P�>R@QB�J.-HX2+X<-2.O�-F.-<�+I�-**�D-L+H�I1=.<�1;K+D.�1;<1K.3@�
5-HKF�QSQ?bcdefgh�ijccklgemn�op�cq�rsrtsur bcdefgh�vgwgeoj�xgpgeygn�op�cq�rsrtsur��� bcdefgh�ijccklgemn�op�cq�rsrtsur z�{|}~{���{���~���|�{~�

a@AB ?@RB ?@RB Q@�B Q@�B Q@?B S@aBS@SBS@RBA@SBA@RBQ@SBQ@RB?@SB
?@RBa@SBa@RB

82-*J Z[ Z6 7-;-<- VH-;K. ).HD-;J -̂P-; a@A A�@� Qa@?
A@� R@AA@� Aa@a A�@R ?@Q �@SA@\ AQ@� A�@\ ?@Q �@�SRASARQS

QR?S
_�Y _�U _�V7V 1̀E1<.;<�1.*<�4BCU-H;1;G3�1.*<�4BCZ;12.<�62-2.3 U9VU UD.HG1;G�5-HM.23X\BXaBXQBSBQB

aB\B
\S�SASS
AQSAaS
5-HX�� 5-HX�� 5-HX�\ 5-HXSR 5-HXAa 5-HXQ?Z6�5-L+H�70HH.;KJ�8;<.=�4H.-*C 9E.H-G.�70HH.;KJ�8;<.=�W-*0.60,3./0.;2�AS��.-H��.20H;



�����������	
������������������������������������������������������������ ���!�"#$%&'(��)���*��+�*��������������������%�,��)������+������������������+���"-.%&'(�����������������������!����*��+����+���+�/�����+�������+���*+����������������+���������+������������+��������*������+���������%�	0������1*���"-$%&'(2����+��"-3$%.'(�)+���������������������*�����+���**���"#4%5'(�+��������"#3%5'(�)�����+��+���%� ���+6������������+���!�����)+��+�����+���*+�������������+��������)��������������*��������+�����������+����+�������%��
	7�����������8������1��# ���!*���#9%.'�����������%�:;8�-���!���������+��������������������������!�����*�3���������+�����������+��+����������%��������������+��������*�����������*����+������������������*������+��#<%4'%�,+���+���+��������������*+���"#3.%='(�+�������)��)��#5$%5'���+�#�#�+��%�	7�����������;�������>��+������#����!�"-.%&'(�)+��������������*�����*����������%�;�����������+�/����������#���������+�������+���+�)�+/������+�2����+���*������"-4%3'(�+����������"-3<%9'(�+���+*�#�+����+����������������������������������%��

>+����&$&=?@ABCDE�F@BGHGIJKLBM�LJ�@N�OPOQPRO ?@ABCDE�ST@@UVDBIM�LJ�@N�OPOQPRO W
XYZ[\�]YZ�̂[_̀ab�c[bdabe]Y_[ _aeeaZX̀f�c[bdabe]Y_[

_ghijgk�eglmnjo�phqgjn
ersjt ùZ f̀Z v�fngl w�fngl x�fngl vy�fngl��������������� "$%&( "5%<( "5%<( "3&%5( &$%4� 5%<� "3%z(��������
���������� 3%$� $%$� $%$� "=%9( &=%z� 4%<� "$%5(��������8����� "9%.( "34%z( "34%z( "&5%3( &5%<� "3%5( ".%&(��������{�+��� =%=� "&%<( "&%<( "z%4( &3%5� z%z� "&%$(�������� �������+��>��+�� "$%=( "&%3( "&%3( "&&%3( &3%3� 5%.� &%3���������|������/ "&%=( "<%=( "<%=( "&%4( 9%$� "&%9( "=%$(��������;������� "&%5( "5%.( "5%.( "<%4( <.%<� 9%9� "<%=(��������;�������>��+�� .%&� 9%=� 9%=� "$%<( 4%=� z%3� $%=���������1*�� $%&� .%=� .%=� "&%=( &=%<� z%3� "3%9( $5$3$$35$&$$&5$=$$=5$<$$

<5$5$$55$9$$95$
>+�#&$ }��#&$ 1��#&$ ~��#&$ >+�#&3 }��#&3 1��#&3 ~��#&3 >+�#&& }��#&& 1��#&& ~��#&& >+�#&=:�� {�� ����� ,+���+��{+� 
����������



��������
�	
������ ���������������������



���������	
��������	����
������������������ ! "�#��$%$&'! �(�)$�*(�+�,&��-�$,�.�'� ��/(�)$�*�0+-.1(�2 !%�$ 3�4��$�%3��5�.� 3�6'! !��)$7�'!8�$!�-%,��% �%�'�024.6)-1*)$,%��'��'�,"�.�''�33�9:::(�.�''�33�9:::�; 3��(�.�''�33�9:::�<��=!/(�.�''�33�>:::(�.�''�33�>:::�; 3��(�.�''�33�>:::�<��=!/(�#�4)�6?-6(�#�4)�6#(�@3��8A��&�B��?&&��& !�(�CD@%33�E:�� F(�@3��8A��&�4�88�,%!F(�24.6)-�G��H��!F(�+-.)�-I-(�#�4)�?4J)(�@3��8A��&�<3�A 3�@�$,*�24.6)-�G��H��!F�)$,�K�H��5��8 $���, ! � '��5�9>LM9L>>* NO

PQRS
TUVRS

WXYZ[X\�]X̂_̀[a�bYcX[̀

dOOe dOOf dOOg dOOh dOOi dOOj dOOk dONO dONN dONd dONe dONf dONg dONh dONi dONj dONk dOdO dOdN dOdd lSm gnl̀X̂NOnl̀X̂o��pq�r�s�t�uvw� xyz� �yz� �{zx ��zy �|z} xz� ~|z� �|z� �{z� �}zy {�z� ��zx ��z� ��z~ �~z� yz~ �yz{ �}zx �}z� �yz� �{z{ ��z~ �{zy��wq���w�u��������w� {}zx ��z� ��z{ �yz| �yz� �z{ �~z� �yz| ~z} �}z� �}z} ��z� xz~ ��z� ��z� �z| ��z{ �{zy �~zy |z{ }zx ��z| ��z�o��pq�r�s�����w� {~z� ��z~ ��z� ��zx �xz} �yzx �{zx �{zx �zy �~z| �{zx ��z� �z| �~z� �xz� �z� �}zx ��z� �~z� �zx ~zx ~zx |z�������r�s�t�uvw� {yz� �}z� �{z� ��z� ��z} ���z{ ��zx �|z� �zx �~zx ��zx ��z} �zy ��z� ��z� ��zx �yzx ��z� �yzx �{z~ yz� ~zx }z}y��{��t�u�����u�w�u��u �|z� �yzx ~zx �}z{ ��zy ��xz| �}z{ �yz} �z{ �yz{ ��z� yz� �z� ��z} ��z~ ��zx �xzx �}z� �xz� �~zx xzy xz{ }zx��q�p��p�����qw������w� ��z� �{zx ~z� �yzy ��z| ��}z| �~z� �yz~ �z� �yz� ��zx xzy ��z{ ��z� �~z� �{z} ��z{ �{z� �~z~ ���z� {z� {z~ }z�����u��� �|z| �{z� yz� �xzx ��z� ���z} ��z� �yz� ��z� �xz� ��z� {z| ��z} ��z� �{zy �yz� ��z� ��z� �{z} ��{zx �z� {zx ~z�������r�s�����w� �|z~ ��z| xz� �xz� ~z� ��xzy ��zy �xzx ��z| �{zy ��z� {z� ��z{ }z� ��z~ �}z� �}zy ~z} ��z� ��{zx �z~ {z� xz��q�pq�������u������� �xz� ��z{ {z~ ��z� ~z� ��yz} �|z~ ��z� �{z� ��zx ��z� �z{ ��zx ~z� ~z} �|z� �}z{ ~zx }z| ��~z� �zy �z| xz�r��� ��z| |z� {zy ��z{ xz} ��~zy �}z| ��z� �xzx ��zx |z� �z} ��z} xz~ ~z~ ���z� }z~ {zy yzx ��|z� �z� �zx �z�o��pq�r�s�����q ��zy yz| {zy |z� {z{ ��}z{ ��zx }z� �xz~ {z} �z� �z� �{z{ �zy ~z� ���z� ~z} �z} �z} ���z� �z� �z� �z��q�����w�wq |z� yz� {z� {z} ��z� ��}zx xz| yzx ���z~ {z� ��z� ��z} �~zx �z� �zx ���z| ~z~ �zx �z� ���z{ �z� �z� �z{������r�s�����q {z� {z� �z� {z� ��zy �{�z� �z� xz~ ���z� �z� ��z� �{zx ��{z| �zx �z~ ���z} yz{ �zx ��zx ��yz{ ��z~ �z| �z}ru��u��w�q� �z� �z{ �z{ �z� �|z} �x�z� ��yz| �z� ��}z� ��z� �|zx ��~z� ��{z~ �z� �z| ��{zy �z� ��z� ��zx ��|z� �xz{ ��z| ��z~



��������		�
����������

���������������� �!��"#"$%&'�(�'%��)�*+*,+-*���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������ �!��"#"$%&'�(�'%��)�*+*,+-* ..

/01�2134�10�506�73489

8:;<=:>�7:?@A=B�C;D:=AEFGHIEJGKIEJG�IE�G�I
�GLIMGNI�GFIJG�I

KGFI MHGMI��GFI�MGLI

EM�I �I M�I ��I ��I�OPQ�Q�P�RS�TQU�VW�XU�RY��Z��U�[YPRPYPUS�Z\QS]̂ U��_Y�̀RUS�aU�R�TSY�YU�bQc]SY�P�RS���YU�P�RS�_de�F���Z\QS]̂ U��fPS��UYP\Q��W�gURU�\̂�bQh\�̂�YP\Q�gU��Q\R\VW

EMNGKIEMNGHIEMKGLIEMJG�IEKGKI
EHG�IEHG�IEJGHIE�GKI �G�IMG�I M�GHI

E��I E��I EM�I �I M�I ��I�aU�R�TSY�YU�Z\QS]̂ U��fPS��UYP\Q��W�gURU�\̂�OPQ�Q�P�RS�_de�F�����YU�P�RS�[YPRPYPUS�bQh\�̂�YP\Q�gU��Q\R\VW�XU�RY��Z��U�bQc]SY�P�RS�Z\QS]̂ U��_Y�̀RUS�TQU�VW



����������	��
������	
������������������������ !"#�$�%&'($�#!��)�*+*,+-*. /01234526�7289:5;�<3=25:

>?7@ABC1�@D<CBE FCG@>�CH1?7@7IJ5K DB> EB> /�E:28 L�E:28 M�E:28 /N�E:28 7IJ5K DB> EB> /�E:28 L�E:28 M�E:28 /N�E:28�1I8:�CJ=:O �P8I2=�CJ=:O�QRS�T�� �UV� VUT� VUT� WVUVX YZU[� YYU�� Y�U�� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b��cQ��deSQ �Uf� �U�� �U�� W[UYX YUZ� �Uf� YUT��QRS�T���ghi�]�jakb�lam W�UfX �Uf� �Uf� W[U�X ��UY� Y�U�� YYUn� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�d�a�oi�p�\k]]o �Un� YUY� YUY� �UT� �UZ� YUn� �Uf��qr�esmiol�k�]�tua��ba �UY� �Uf� �Uf� W�U�X YVU�� fU�� YYUY� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�tbb�\̂sm �UT� �U�� �U�� WnUZX W�UZX �Uf� YUn��viooa]]�d̂w���� nUf� ZUV� ZUV� WZU�X YZUn� YYUf� Y�UZ� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�cskua�o�]� �U�� �Uf� �Uf� WnU[X W�U�X YU�� YU[��viooa]]�Y��� �U�� VUT� VUT� WZUnX YZU[� Y�Uf� Y�U�� �>x8254IJ�viooa]]����� WnUZX �UV� �UV� WYYU[X YVUT� nUV� ZU�� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�d�a�oi�p�Yy��z� YU[� YU[� YU[� �U�� W�UZX YUY� �UZ��viooa]]����� �UV� VU�� VU�� WZU[X YZUT� Y�UT� YYUV� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�d�a�oi�p�{̂sb nUV� [U�� [U�� WY[U�X WYYU�X W�UnX YUT��viooa]]��km�|�w WYUTX nUY� nUY� WZUZX YfU�� ZUY� Y�UY� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�d�a�oi�p �Uf� �U�� �U�� WnUTX WnU�X �UV� �Uf��A5}6:�CJ=:O �C;;x:8�viooa]]�Y����~�̂�l� [UZ� YnUn� YnUn� WY�UfX YZU[� Y�UV� YnU[� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ��\Q YUf� �UT� �UT� WnUfX W�U�X �U�� YU���viooa]]�Y������]ia W�UTX YU�� YU�� WTUfX YVUf� VUT� fUY� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�|̂�wU��kb��zka]m YUY� �U[� �U[� W�U�X TUf� �U�� nUY��viooa]]������~�̂�l� W�UTX [UY� [UY� WY�U[X Y�Un� nU�� ZUT� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�tbas�p�esla�_ YUZ� YUf� YUf� WYUYX WYU[X �Uf� �Uf��viooa]]��������]ia WVU�X W�UVX W�UVX WY�U�X �YU�� nUT� VU�� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�cQ�|�amkl �UV� �UT� �UT� WTU�X W�UVX YUT� �U��CHB@�H�BC?H���@D<CBE ?B�@��P8I2=�CJ=:O �CJ=:O��Q|e�t|je �UY� VU�� VU�� WVUnX YTUn� [Uf� ZUY� �\]̂̂ _̀ a�b�|̂__̂ mklp W�U�X WTUnX WTUnX WY�UTX ��UZ� TUn� WYUVX��Q|e�t|je�a��cQ �Un� [Uf� [Uf� WTUYX YYUZ� �UT� nU�� �jk]o�k�a�cQ�vged W�U[X �U�� �U�� W�YU�X YYU�� TUV� TUf���Q|e�gt�g �UT� ZUT� ZUT� WYUnX Y�U�� �UT� TU�� �|Q�{aua��bam�{̂�so W�UYX �UY� �UY� �UY� ZUn� �UT� �Uf���Q|e�g� �U�� nU�� nU�� WY�UVX VUZ� W�UfX �U�� �QRS�~]̂̀ �]�es���ol�i�li�a �Un� �Uf� �Uf� W�UTX YTU[� TUf� [Un���Q|e�gt�g�Q_�]]�|�w� W�U�X nUf� nUf� WfUZX Y�UY� �Uf� TUf� �t]a�k�s��{S W�UVX �Un� �Un� Y�Uf� n[U�� [Uf� �U[��A5}6:�CJ=:O ��:�4IJ26�CJ=:O��Q|e�gt�g�~�̂�l� TU�� YYUY� YYUY� W�UZX Y�Uf� nUf� [U�� �rS��g�\e�~]̂̀ �]�qku YU�� YUf� YUf� W[UfX W�U�X W�U[X �U����Q|e�gt�g���]ia W�U�X TUf� TUf� W�U�X YnU[� YUV� �UV� �rS��~\eyg��~]̂̀ �]�qku nUY� TU�� TU�� W�UVX �Uf� W�UnX WYUTX��:�4IJ26�CJ=:O ��:=�:�FxJ=;��Q|e�c� W�U[X [UY� [UY� W�UZX YnU[� �U�� �Un� ���ve�|̂_ŵokla W�UZX YU�� YU�� W�UYX Y�UT� nUV� nUn���Q|e�r�w�s nU�� [U�� [U�� WTU�X VUn� YU�� TU�� ���ve�����|̂_ŵokla �UY� YU[� YU[� WYUYX VUT� �U�� �U����Q|e�gi�̂ nUY� YTU[� YTU[� VUV� YVUY� �Uf� [U�� �1x88:J�}��A3I5���Q|e�g��tok� �U[� nUZ� nUZ� WfUnX VUY� �UY� nU�� �gi�̂ �UT� YUZ� YUZ� W�UnX W�U�X W�UTX WYUVX��Q|e�g��{�lks�t_a�k��s �UZ� �Uf� �Uf� WYYUYX YZUY� WYUZX WYUfX �Ŝism�Qla�]ksb �UY� �UZ� �UZ� W[UYX W�UYX W�UTX W�U�X�zas �Un� W�UfX W�UfX WZUZX W[UVX WnUnX W�UnX



���������	
��������
���
���
��
���������� ������� !"��# $%&&'(� )��*+,�*-'�.& �/ �'012(.$+3* 45 36,/ $& /��.'(� )��*%.7 '/* ./8 /�3�'9('��)�� -/ *: ��;</,9�=<==>2##� /��.'3.?>�>$�##(�'>@�%.�#�$ '�A�B��/9�C��5/,�DE�3/B�(.$�F ./�� 0(-3/(#>@@%.�#�$ '�0�./��#4G�3 ./ $�H3'/� '' $9�0� $3/�G--��/�.3/3 '9�� .3���H :/�(.$���:��$3.(/ $�0(-3/(#>@@@%.�#�$ '"�37(/ DE�3/BD. �6B9+3*: �(.$?-'/� (*D. �6BI&�B(#/3 '>

JK�	�
��K���K�	�L��M���
�������N
���
��OPQRSTU�VWXQTY�OZZ[U\�]̂̂ _ ��̀USP ��̀USP a�̀USP�b�̀USP OPQRSTU�cPU\QT�OZZ[U\�]̂̂ _ ��̀USP ��̀USP a�̀USP�b�̀USPdefg�e�h�ij�kl�mnoikp�qfqr�s�tl�fuv��p�qouvr� wxyz{ �xy�� x|y�� x}y�� ~yty��ee�h�ij�kl��lgk��� �y�� x�y�� x�y}� xxyz�defg�e�h�ij�kl�mnoikp��i�l�k�qouvr�� w�y�{ �xyx� x�y�� xzy�� OX�[Q��]�\U���Q�U��UQ��TU\�̂UTXP�_~yty�h�ij�kl�mnoikp��i�l�k�qouvr�� w�y�{ �}y�� ��y�� x|y�� tsh����t���~yty��ljl���lv��f�u�x����uvl� w�y�{ xy}� �y�� �y��mo�f�l�h�ij�kl�mnoikp��i�l�k�qouvr�� wxxy}{ x|y�� x�y�� x}yx��ri��h�ij�kl�mnoikp��i�l�k�qouvr�� w�y�{ xxy�� xxy�� x�y��OX�[Q��]�\U���Q�U��UQ��TU\�̂UTXP�_ OPQRSTU�̂US[��__UT_�OZZ[U\�]̂̂ _ ��̀USP ��̀USP a�̀USP�b�̀USP�t����f�ev wx�yz{ }yz� �y�� �yx� defg�e���ko�l��lrfo��lr���� ��y�� �y|� �yx� �yz�tsh���� wx�y�{ �y�� �y�� xxy|� defg�e��u���rk�o�ko�l �y}� x�y�� x�y�� x�y|��t���mo�f�l w�}y�{ wxy|{ wxy�{ �y}� OX�[Q��]�\U���Q�U��UQ��TU\�̂UTXP�_�t�������ri��h��i�i� w�|y|{ wxy|{ w�yz{ �y|� tsh�defg�e���ko��e��lrfo��lr xy�� �yx� �y|� �y}�tsh�defg�e��u���rk�o�ko�l wzy�{ w�yx{ �yx� �y|�OPQRSTU�̂US[�V_TSTU�OZZ[U\�]̂̂ _ ��̀USP ��̀USP a�̀USP�b�̀USP~yty��ee�h�ij�kl��l�e�mrk�kl� x�y|� x�y�� xxy�� x�y��OX�[Q��]�\U���Q�U��UQ��TU\�̂UTXP�_q�tm����m���mnoikp��m�� wxzy}{ w�y�{ �y�� zy��
cS�QTS[��SP�UT_���\STU



��������	�
�������������������������������������������������������������� !"�#$%&'()*�!"�+,$-!#(#�.$,�!).$,'/*!$)/0�+&,+$"("�$)01�/)#�!"�#!,(%*(#�*$�!)"*!*&*!$)/0�%0!()*"�/)#�(0!2!30(�!)"*!*&*!$)/0�%$&)*(,+/,*!("�$)01�/)#�!"�)$*�!)*()#(#�.$,�,(*/!0�!)-("*$,"4�5$* !)2� (,(!)�%$)"*!*&*("�!)-("*'()*6�0(2/06�/%%$&)*!)2�$,�*/7�/#-!%(6�$,�/�,(%$''()#/*!$)�*$�3&16�"(00�$,� $0#�/�"(%&,!*1�$,�+&,"&(�/�+/,*!%&0/,�!)-("*'()*�-( !%0(�$,�/)1�*,/#!)2�"*,/*(214�� !"�#$%&'()*�'/1�!)%0&#(�$,�!'+01�("*!'/*("6�$&*0$$8"6�+,$9(%*!$)"�/)#�$* (,�:.$,;/,#<0$$8!)2�"*/*('()*"4=�5$�/""&,/)%(�%/)�3(�2!-()�* /*�.&*&,(�,("&0*"�#("%,!3(#$,�!'+0!(#�31�/)1�.$,;/,#�0$$8!)2�!).$,'/*!$)�;!00�3(�/% !(-(#4�>)-("*!)2�()*/!0"�,!"8"6�!)%0&#!)2�+$""!30(�0$""�$.�+,!)%!+/04��?##!*!$)/0�!).$,'/*!$)�/3$&*�@(,&"�?#-!"$,16�>)%4�!"�/-/!0/30(�$)�* (�ABCD"�;(3"!*(�/*�;;;4/#-!"(,!).$4"(%42$-4@(,&"�E/0"$�8)$;)�/"�@(,&"�?#-!"$,1F4

GHIJK�LMLN OPQRSTURV�WRXYZU[�\S]RUZ



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������
���������������������������������

���� ���� ����
 !"#� $!"#� %&' (%&'  �%)� $�%)� *�%)� ��%)� +&'&,&-.�(/0'���1)233  �� ��4 ��4 $�* ����  ��$ *�5 ��� ��5&,&-.�(/0'���06"  �$ ��4 ��4 $�� ����  �� *�* ��5 ���7-!89:-�;.-0<908=!-:>  �� ��� ��� $�4 �$�� 4�� ��� 5�� ��49?@633�A06"B ��$ � �4 � �4 ���*  � ��$ ���* ���� ���$

���
���CDE
F���G�H
�I�J��K�������

�� ���� ��� �� ���*  �� �� ��� ���  �� ���  � 
� ����� ������������������������������������

-L)��� !MN��� OPQ��� OPR��� -PS��� 76L��� ,@"��� 02T��� '6@��� OMQ��$ (6U��$ !M)��$���
���CDE

��GG��V�������W�I�X��
�G����
���
9Y8977&,&-.�(/0'7-!89:-�&,&-.�;.-0�;,.+8%�<908=!-:>

���Z*�$Z$�4Z 4��Z*��Z��*Z ��� Z ��5Z���5Z

���Z *��Z  ���Z  *��Z ����Z �*��Z�.+[/+'+&%��\* $]*�$]$���;:+̂-&9�:9-.�-779&7��\$ �]�44]4���;/<.+8�:9-.�-779&7��\���]�� ]*$*�:9-.�97&-&9��\*�$]5 �]*���-<7,./&9�:9&/:0��\$�*]�4*]* 5�;:+̂-&9�9[/+&%��\$�*]��4]�� �(+Y9'�+08,!9��\ ]$ �]� �]��$�+0&9:0-&+,0-.�9[/+&%\ ] ��]�$5]��5�',!97&+8�9[/+&%��\ ]���]*4*]��* X�����XGG�������

 �2_� �`abcdefaghij



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������
	�����������
������������������������� ������� �!
���"� �����# �����# $%& �$%& ��$�# ��$�# '�$�# (�$�# ���$�# )%&*+,�-+./0�102,.3�45/67+3 89:;<98==98>? =@A B@: B@: A@; CB@D =<@= 8@8 D@: D@> D@D*+EF/6+�G0.+7�H7+,�I/,FJE+6K =@< ;@? ;@? A@: CA@D :@? D@< >@; >@< D@:LMF/NN <@A C=@: C=@: C<@8 =@= <@A C<@8 C<@8 C<@; C<@A*+,�-+./0�LMC17OP.0,�45/67+3 898D>9AA?98D= =@A B@: B@: A@A CB@D =<@< 8@8 D@: D@D D@8*+EF/6+�G0.+7�H7+,�I/,FJE+6K =@< ;@? ;@? A@: CA@D :@? D@< >@; >@< D@:LMF/NN <@A C=@: C=@: C<@> =@< <@B C<@D C<@D C<@; C<@;G0.+7�LQ2O.3 B9AAD9?AB9;:B B@A D@B D@B :@? C;@B =8@8 D@: :@B ?@> >@>*+EF/6+�G0.+7�LQ2O.3�I/,FJE+6K B@= D@: D@: =<@= C8@D =D@B >@A =<@< :@8 ?@ALMF/NN <@B C<@> C<@> C<@A =@A C<@> C<@8 C<@? C<@? C<@DROM/S�T,F0E/ =9A=;9<=<9<?A =@B B@8 B@8 <@; C;@8 <@A =@D B@? B@; ;@?*+EF/6+�ROM/S�T,F0E/�I/,FJE+6K B@A A@B A@B B@? CA@B C<@< =@: B@< =@: ;@;LMF/NN C=@= C<@> C<@> CB@; C=@A <@A C<@B <@? <@8 <@8U7./6,+.O5/N >A=9>B;9>8? <@B <@B <@B C;@? CA@; =8@8 =<@A :@D >@8 <@?*+EF/6+�U7./6,+.O5/N�I/,FJE+6K CB@; 8@= 8@= CA@B C;@D >@> ?@: =<@< ?@8 ?@<LMF/NN B@> C;@: C;@: C=@D =@B >@? =@; C<@; C=@< C>@BT,P7+.O0,�V/SW/ =9<?D9?8;9<D: <@8 C=@B C=@B <@8 B@: =<@? ;@: D@= CC D@=*+E1LXU�T,P7+.O0,�V/SW/�T,S/M C<@A B@: B@: CB@: <@= =A@< >@> CC CC CCLMF/NN <@? C;@= C;@= A@; B@? CB@B CB@> CC CC CCYOQ2OSO.3 8=A98;A9ADD <@> =@B =@B B@B CC CC CC CC CC B@BYOQ2OSO.3�10EZ0NO./�I/,FJE+6K =@A =@; =@; =@D CC CC CC CC CC =@DLMF/NN C<@D C<@B C<@B <@D CC CC CC CC CC <@D

�#� �#[ �#[ �#\ ]�#̂ ��#� '#' #̂[ #̂( #̂̂�#� \#_ \#_ �#[ ]�#̂ [#_ #̂� (#\ (#� #̂[C8@<<@<8@<=<@<
=8@<

=�-.J@ A�-.J@ G̀a R̀ Ga =�̀6@ A�̀6@ 8�̀6@ >�̀6@ =<�̀6@ TGa
���
���	��������

*+,�-+./0�102,.3�45/67+3 *+EF/6+�G0.+7�H7+,�I/,FJE+6K

B�0P�=;bcdefghcijkl



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������	�����������
��������� ��������� 
���!� �����" �����" #�$ %#�$ ��#�" ��#�" &�#�" '�#�" ���#�" (�$)*+,-�./01+2 3455647534893 3:5 6:3 6:3 9:7 ;8:3 <=:= 6:9 9:3 7:> >:>?,@ABC,�)*+,-�./01+2�DBEAF@,CG 3:< 6:9 6:9 <H:< ;=:6 <6:3 >:5 <H:H 9:= 7:5.IABJJ H:3 ;H:> ;H:> ;H:5 <:5 ;H:> ;H:= ;H:7 ;H:7 ;H:6K*@BJ+1A�./01+2 <43374=9=487= <:7 8:= 8:= 7:9 ;=:9 <7:3 9:6 <<:= <<:3 7:9?,@ABC,�K*@:�./01+2�DBEAF@,CG 3:> >:3 >:3 9:> ;7:6 <7:= <H:= <3:H <<:6 9:5.IABJJ ;H:9 ;3:> ;3:> ;H:9 3:> ;H:5 ;H:7 ;H:6 ;H:= ;H:8L,CMB�N,O�./01+2 <4<3H459=49H9 3:6 8:6 8:6 7:= ;6:< <>:6 <H:H <<:7 <<:> 9:=P0JJB--�<HHH 5:3 >:= >:= 9:9 ;7:8 <7:6 <H:9 <3:3 <3:H 9:9.IABJJ ;H:6 ;3:7 ;3:7 ;<:= 3:3 ;<:H ;H:9 ;H:8 ;H:5 ;H:8D-,AGC*AG�P0JJB--�<HHH 8734H96436= 5:3 >:= >:= <H:H ;7:8 <7:7 <<:H ;; ;; <<:9P0JJB--�<HHH 5:3 >:= >:= 9:9 ;7:8 <7:6 <H:9 ;; ;; <<:7.IABJJ H:H H:H H:H H:H H:H H:3 H:< ;; ;; H:<K.�?F,Q�N*@@1EM-BR�S0ER 3H848664H8= <:6 6:H 6:H 9:> ;7:7 <7:H 9:3 <3:< ;; <H:6P0JJB--�<HHH 5:3 >:= >:= 9:9 ;7:8 <7:6 <H:9 <3:3 ;; <H:6.IABJJ ;<:= ;<:8 ;<:8 ;H:3 ;H:8 ;H:6 ;<:6 ;H:< ;; H:HTA,R1,E�U?�VWK�X;?L 3H64=5847H9 5:5 3:> 3:> >:> ;8:H <5:> ;; ;; ;; 9:=P0JJB--�<HHH 5:3 >:= >:= 9:9 ;7:8 <7:6 ;; ;; ;; <8:3.IABJJ H:< ;8:7 ;8:7 ;3:5 8:8 ;8:7 ;; ;; ;; ;8:>Y,E,M*C,�KBZ0JB/�;?L 33>43974>9H <:6 H:< H:< =:5 ;<:6 <6:3 ;; ;; ;; <3:3P0JJB--�<HHH 5:3 >:= >:= 9:9 ;7:8 <7:6 ;; ;; ;; <8:3.IABJJ ;<:6 ;>:8 ;>:8 ;8:6 6:7 ;3:8 ;; ;; ;; ;3:HK*@BJ+1A�./01+2�[\BC-,2 H 5:H 7:H 7:H 3=:6 9:8 ;; ;; ;; ;; <3H:>]N.�D*ZTVL�U?�5;V*E+F�)CB,J0C2�D1-- H:8 <:< <:< 3:8 3:= ;; ;; ;; ;; H:9.IABJJ 3:6 >:H >:H 35:3 6:7 ;; ;; ;; ;; <<9:7?@,--�N,O�./01+2 <H74<994=>6 ;=:9 3:9 3:9 <H:5 ;6:8 33:6 8:= >:H 6:> 6:<P0JJB--�3HHH ;8:7 3:> 3:> 6:7 ;<<:6 <>:= 8:> 7:6 7:H >:8.IABJJ ;<:< H:3 H:3 5:= =:3 =:< ;H:3 ;<:6 ;<:8 ;<:35�*Z�<8^_̀abcd_efgh



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������	�����������
��������� ��������� 
���!� �����" �����" #�$ %#�$ ��#�" ��#�" &�#�" '�#�" ���#�" (�$)*+�,-�-./00�1/2 3456377689: ;8<7 =<7 =<7 34<> ;:<? ==<: ?<8 ;; ;; 9<3@ABBC00�=444 ;?<5 =<9 =<9 :<5 ;33<: 39<8 ?<9 ;; ;; 9<>DEFCBB ;3<3 4<= 4<= ><8 8<= 8<3 ;4<= ;; ;; ;4<3GHICJH/IKLH/0�DMAKIN 363456=>96449 =<7 5<= 5<= 34<7 ;=<> 3=<8 ><9 :<? 8<4 8<?-/.1D@+�1ABIL.�OCPQC�GHI0 3<? :<8 :<8 34<> ;=<= 3><> ><8 :<9 ?<7 8<4DEFCBB 3<? 3<9 3<9 4<: ;4<3 ;4<7 4<3 ;4<> 4<3 4<>R/K00KC�SKTTLJP >?86>5>65:= 8<4 7<5 7<5 3><5 ;9<: 7<? ><? :<? 8<9 :<8*-1G�+1UG�CE�,-+�SJLVIW ?<9 5<9 5<9 33<> ;:<4 7<5 ><9 :<5 8<? ;;DEFCBB 4<> 3<3 3<3 =<8 ;3<8 ;4<? ;4<> ;4<? 4<> ;;R0/FXJLFX�*-1G�+1UG�CE�,-�G*G >856=736737 =<> :<9 :<9 34<4 ;8<8 ;; ;; ;; ;; 8<7*-�+1�U0PE,-�G*G�YI =<3 :<: :<: 7<7 ;8<5 ;; ;; ;; ;; 8<5DEFCBB 4<3 4<3 4<3 4<= 4<? ;; ;; ;; ;; 4<3*LHPJK/H�GHZCBI.CHI�[/JIHCJB >:>6>>96854 =<9 5<9 5<9 5<? ;=<= 33<5 3<: ?<? ><: ?<:*-1G�+1UG�E,-+�\/0AC 4<8 8<> 8<> 7<? ;><> 3?<8 3<7 8<9 ><9 ?<9DEFCBB =<= ><? ><? ;3<4 3<3 ;=<9 ;4<> ;3<= ;4<4 ;4<31AJJCHFN�OCPQC�]AIAJCB 4 3<? ;4<8 ;4<8 ;3<: ;5<3 ;; ;; ;; ;; ;=<7G1D�RLT+*̂ �,-�>;*LHIW�_JC/BAJN�RK00 4<? 3<3 3<3 =<? =<8 ;; ;; ;; ;; 4<7DEFCBB 3<4 ;3<: ;3<: ;?<4 ;34<: ;; ;; ;; ;; ;><51AJJCHFN�OCPQC�]AIAJCB�̀TTBCIB 4 4<4 4<4 4<4 4<4 4<4 ;; ;; ;; ;; 4<4G1D�RLT+*̂ �,-�>;*LHIW�_JC/BAJN�RK00 4<? 3<3 3<3 =<? =<8 ;; ;; ;; ;; 4<7DEFCBB ;4<? ;3<3 ;3<3 ;=<? ;=<8 ;; ;; ;; ;; ;4<7GHICJH/IKLH/0�DMAKIN�̀ZCJ0/N ?=6?8>6357 =<9 :<= :<= 9<> ;8<9 ;; ;; ;; ;; 7<3G1D�RLT+*̂ �,-�>;*LHIW�_JC/BAJN�RK00 4<? 3<3 3<3 =<? =<8 ;; ;; ;; ;; 4<7DEFCBB =<= 8<3 8<3 ?<7 ;5<= ;; ;; ;; ;; 5<=]KECP�GHFL.C 36>3?6434645> 3<= =<8 =<8 4<? ;?<8 4<> 3<: =<5 =<? ?<5-/.FCJ/�]KECP�GHFL.C�RCHFW./JX =<> ><= ><= =<5 ;><= ;4<4 3<7 =<4 3<7 ?<?DEFCBB ;3<3 ;4<9 ;4<9 ;=<? ;3<> 4<> ;4<= 4<5 4<8 4<8?�LT�3?abcdefgbhijk



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������	�����������
��������� ��������� 
���!� �����" �����" #�$ %#�$ ��#�" ��#�" &�#�" '�#�" ���#�" (�$)*+,�-./,0�123*4, 567879:859; 6<6 =<6 =<6 >?<? >@<: >7<: ?<5 7<@ 7<: @<=AAB�CD�EFF+,FGH, 6<; =<? =<? >?<7 >@<: >6<: ?<9 ?<9 7<@ @<?I/3,JJ >?<= ?<6 ?<6 ?<7 >?<? ?<9 >?<6 ?<; ?<@ ?<=-1EK�A�)*+,�A*20 6L=869;8L75 6<7 6<9 6<9 ?<= >;<? >7<? 7<5 7<5 >> 6<?AAB�CD�EFF+,FGH, 6<; =<? =<? >?<7 >@<: >6<: ?<9 ?<9 >> 7<7I/3,JJ >?<@ >?<? >?<? ?<@ >?<6 7<: ?<: ?<9 >> ?<9M*NOP,Q.2, 6=686:;86L: 6<? @<? @<? >?<7 >;<= >6<@ >> >> >> >6<6AAB�CD�EFF+,FGH, 6<; =<? =<? >?<7 >@<: >6<: >> >> >> >6<9I/3,JJ >?<; 7<? 7<? ?<? >?<; ?<@ >> >> >> ?<LR1DE�)*+,�A*20 66;8L75897? 6<; =<? =<? ?<= >@<= >> >> >> >> >=<?AAB�CD�EFF+,FGH, 6<; =<? =<? >?<7 >@<: >> >> >> >> >=<@I/3,JJ >?<? ?<7 ?<7 ?<@ ?<; >> >> >> >> ?<;)*+,�-./,0�123*4,�ST,+PGU ? =<; 7<: 7<: >7<: >;<9 >> >> >> >> >=<?1)I�A*VEKQ�CD�=>K*2HW�X+,GJN+U�A.PP ?<@ 7<7 7<7 6<@ 6<; >> >> >> >> ?<9I/3,JJ =<7 ?<5 ?<5 >@<6 >:<@ >> >> >> >> >=<9SYY*+HN2.JH.3�)+,0.H ;968:7786:: ?<? 7<L 7<L 7<= >=<: @<@ =<= ;<; ;<7 5<6AAB�AE�12H,+4,0.GH,�Z[�120 6<? =<@ =<@ 5<6 >7<6 ;<= =<5 @<@ @<7 ;<9I/3,JJ >6<? >7<: >7<: >;<9 >6<L >?<: >?<@ 7<7 7<? 7<=\.43*�\+.TGH,�123*4, ;?866:85:: ?<? >?<L >?<L >7<; >?<= 5<@ >> >> >> L<:AAB�AE�12H,+4,0.GH,�Z[�120 6<? =<@ =<@ 5<6 >7<6 ;<= >> >> >> =<?I/3,JJ >6<? >@<7 >@<7 >:<5 7<? 6<6 >> >> >> =<:EB�)]IM1X�DSQ�-C�Q\ 7@877;8=L@ ?<? >?<6 >?<6 >L<6 >;<= 7?<@ >> >> >> 7@<;AAB�AE�12H,+4,0.GH,�Z[�120 6<? =<@ =<@ 5<6 >7<6 ;<= >> >> >> 7<;I/3,JJ >6<? >=<5 >=<5 >7=<@ >@<7 ;<7 >> >> >> 7=<?EB�)D-�EM-�11 =85L58@6L ?<= ?<: ?<: >> >> >> >> >> >> >>AAB�AE�12H,+4,0.GH,�Z[�120 6<? =<@ =<@ >> >> >> >> >> >> 7<7I/3,JJ >7<5 >6<L >6<L >> >> >> >> >> >> >>EB�)D-�11 7@89?;89L7 ?<? >?<= >?<= >5<7 >;<5 >> >> >> >> >@<9AAB�AE�12H,+4,0.GH,�Z[�120 6<? =<@ =<@ 5<6 >7<6 >> >> >> >> >=<7I/3,JJ >6<? >=<5 >=<5 >7@<@ >@<; >> >> >> >> >7<:;�*V�7@^_̀abcd_efgh



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������	�����������
��������� ��������� 
���!� �����" �����" #�$ %#�$ ��#�" ��#�" &�#�" '�#�" ���#�" (�$)*�+,,-./0123/24�56-78�9-:1 ;;<=>? @=A= @=A= @=A= =>A; B>AB =CAD =EAE =BA= @@ B>A=FF*�F)�G1/8.H8I2:/8�JK�G1I =AL EAM EAM ?A= @BA= CAE EA? MAM @@ EADNO4833 @MA= @CA> @CA> BDA> B?AE =LA> BDA> B>A? @@ B=AEF7:4P.-4P�Q2.84/�981I21R�S88I8 E?<;M;<L;> LAL BAC BAC MAE MA; >A> @@ @@ @@ EA=FF*�F)�G1/8.H8I2:/8�JK�G1I =AL EAM EAM ?A= @BA= CAE @@ @@ @@ EALNO4833 @=AL @BAD @BAD @=AD >AL BAM @@ @@ @@ LA=F8:46�T-21/�U8784/�S01I BLD<B=C<BLE @BAE =AC =AC BAE @MAC ?A= >AM ?AD @@ ?ACFF*�F)�G1/8.H8I2:/8�JK�G1I =AL EAM EAM ?A= @BA= CAE EA? MAM @@ MALNO4833 @EAE @LAD @LAD @>AL @EAE =AL =A? EAC @@ EACF.2R:I8�V:,�W1RH/ BL><?MM<EEE @BA? =AC =AC @BAC @;AL DA; =AD CAD EAD CAEFF*�F)�G1/8.H8I2:/8�JK�G1I =AL EAM EAM ?A= @BA= CAE EA? MAM MAB CAMNO4833 @EA? @LAD @LAD @;A; @>A; MAC @LA; BAC @LAE @LAB562/8�+:P�KUS�X =?<EEL<EMC LAL @BAC @BAC @LAD LA> @@ @@ @@ @@ LA;FF*�F)�G1/8.H8I2:/8�JK�G1I =AL EAM EAM ?A= @BA= @@ @@ @@ @@ @LA>NO4833 @=AL @MAD @MAD @;AB BA; @@ @@ @@ @@ BAM562/8�+:P�K287I�U,84 =D<D=M<EMD LAL @LAD @LAD BAC EA= MA? CAM @@ @@ @@FF*�F)�G1/8.H8I2:/8�JK�G1I =AL EAM EAM ?A= @BA= CAE EA? @@ @@ EACNO4833 @=AL @MAM @MAM @CA? MAM @LA> BA; @@ @@ @@TGWV+�Q2YA�G14-H8�S01I B=D<E>?<=?> BA= =A> =A> MA? @MA; LA? BA= @@ @@ BA=FF*�F)�G1/8.H8I2:/8�JK�G1I =AL EAM EAM ?A= @BA= CAE EA? @@ @@ EABNO4833 @LA; @LA; @LA; @=AC @EA> @MA> @=AC @@ @@ @BADZVT�Q2.84/�981I21R�XGGG BM<CCC<C;> LA> LA? LA? BA= =AE CAL CAB @@ @@ @@FF*�F)�G1/8.H8I2:/8�JK�G1I =AL EAM EAM ?A= @BA= CAE EA? @@ @@ MA=NO4833 @BAM @=A; @=A; @>AL EA> @LAE BAM @@ @@ @@S.:1P721�Z8H,78/-1 CM<;BL<MLM EA= =AM =AM CAL @?A> @MA? @MA= @BA= @BAL LA;F7--H[8.R�W07/2Y8.38�G1I8O EAB EAL EAL LA> @?AD @EAB @BA= @LAB LA= LA;NO4833 LAB @LA> @LA> MAM LAE @BA? @=AD @BAB @BAE @LAL)7/8.1:/2Y83 ?EB<?=M<?C; LA= LA= LA= @MA; @EAM BCAC BLAE DA> ?AC LA;U:H48.:�)7/8.1:/2Y83�F8146H:.P @=AM CAB CAB @EA= @MA> ?A? ;AD BLAL ;AC ;ALNO4833 =A? @MAD @MAD @BA> BA= ?A; BAM @LAM @BAL @?A=>�-\�BM]̂ _̀abĉdefg



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������	�����������
��������� ��������� 
���!� �����" �����" #�$ %#�$ ��#�" ��#�" &�#�" '�#�" ���#�" (�$)*+,-./�012+.3 456758978:; 8<5 ;<= ;<= >?<: >;@<5 84<6 8;<8 ;9<; ;?<= >6<9A-BC/*-�)0�D/ECFB-*G >6<= ?<9 ?<9 >;8<8 >;=<4 ;@<; ;;<9 ;:<@ ;:<; ;:<90HC/II 5<: >=<4 >=<4 :<9 6<6 ;4<: 9<: 6<; 4<6 >8@<5JKILM2./�N/.2*E 4:6759676;? >8<: >;<4 >;<4 >4<4 4<4 :<4 >8<= >;<4 ;<6 ;<:A-BC/*-�AOPN�Q�:R @<? 8<; 8<; 6<= =<5 6<@ 6<6 6<4 6<@ :<90HC/II >4<; >4<: >4<: >5<9 >4<6 >@<? >5<; >=<= >4<6 >4<:JK/*S//E�A.S�TJNA @ >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >>A-BC/*-�AOPN�Q�:R @<? 8<; 8<; 6<= =<5 6<@ 6<6 6<4 >> 6<40HC/II >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >>T*-F-B�TMLK-M�UE,/I.B/E. 9@7;@67@:@ >=<4 @<: @<: >6<: 8<5 ?<4 >> >> >> 6<4A-BC/*-�AOPN�Q:R @<? 8<@ 8<@ 6<6 =<? 6<@ >> >> >> 6<@0HC/II >?<@ >;<= >;<= >;@<9 >4<9 8<4 >> >> >> @<4)UVWO�VJJNA�P2ES�X<)< 5576:4785@ >;<@ >8<4 >8<4 >;<: =<9 ?<= >> >> >> ?<=A-BC/*-�AOPN�Q:R @<? 8<; 8<; 6<? =<9 6<; >> >> >> 6<;0HC/II >;<5 >:<6 >:<6 >?<@ >@<@ 8<6 >> >> >> 8<6JC-S+-E�VJJN�P2ES�XXW 5;74=:7?89 >4<: >@<9 >@<9 >;<6 ;<6 >> >> >> >> ;<@A-BC/*-�AOPN�Q:R @<? 8<; 8<; 6<? =<9 >> >> >> >> 6<80HC/II >:<; >4<@ >4<@ >?<; >6<: >> >> >> >> >:<8WPV�AYA�TMLK-M�V-C*L�P2ES 5675587:=5 ;<6 >8<; >8<; >;<4 ;@<5 >> >> >> >> 9<?A-BC/*-�AOPN�Q:R @<? 8<; 8<; 6<? =<9 >> >> >> >> 6<80HC/II @<5 >:<8 >:<8 >?<@ 4<9 >> >> >> >> :<6UEZM-.+LE�[/S\/ ;7@5=756:7@=9 @<6 >;<8 >;<8 @<6 8<9 ;@<5 :<9 =<; >> =<;A-BW0NJ�UEZM-.+LE�[/S\/�UES/H >@<4 8<9 8<9 >8<9 @<; ;4<@ ?<? >> >> >>0HC/II @<5 >:<; >:<; 4<: 8<5 >8<8 >8<? >> >> >>N/-M�0I.-./ 6:47?;876=5 @<4 >4<8 >4<8 >@<9 ?<: ?<9 ?<? ?<9 >> ?<9A-BC/*-�]WN0UP�Ô W0�_\*LIÌ @<@ @<@ @<@ >:<6 @<; 9<= 5<8 5<8 >> 5<80HC/II @<4 >4<8 >4<8 4<6 ?<: >;<? >@<6 >@<4 >> >@<4?�LZ�;:abcdefgbhijk



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������	�����������
��������� ��������� 
���!� �����" �����" #�$ %#�$ ��#�" ��#�" &�#�" '�#�" ���#�" (�$)*+,-./�0/1,�2,34�5-636, 789:;9<:=89 >?> @<?A @<?A @B?A 9?; =?B =?> =?7 8?; 9?=C3D.,13�E025)F�GH05�IJ1/--K >?> >?> >?> @;?< >?A 8?L =?7 =?7 8?= =?A5M.,-- >?> @<?A @<?A A?B 9?B @A?7 @>?7 @>?> @>?; @>?7)*+,-./�NC�O34�)O =99:>=9 >?> @7?; @7?; @;7?8 @;7?L @A7?; @7?= >?B @@ A?9C3D.,13�E025)F�GH05�IJ1/--K >?> >?> >?> @;?< >?A 8?L =?7 =?7 @@ =?L5M.,-- >?> @7?; @7?; @B=?; @;7?9 @7A?8 @AA?> @9?8 @@ @L?8)*+,-./�O34P,@QRR�FP*R A8:B7A:A7< L?7 @7?> @7?> @@ @@ @@ @@ @@ @@ A?=C3D.,13�E025)F�GH05�IJ1/--K >?> >?> >?> @@ @@ @@ @@ @@ @@ @;?<5M.,-- L?7 @7?> @7?> @@ @@ @@ @@ @@ @@ L?BST)U�2,34�5-636,�NC�H,V6�FP*R 9<:AB>:8>8 >?L A?= A?= <?> L?9 <?= <?= @@ @@ <?7C3D.,13�E025)F�GH05�IJ1/--K >?> >?> >?> @;?< >?A 8?L =?7 @@ @@ =?75M.,-- >?L A?= A?= 8?< L?L @B?= @7?; @@ @@ @B?>)*+,-./�NC�OQW�O 78:A>B:AAB >?> @L?A @L?A @<?< @7?B 8?> @@ @@ @@ =?AC3D.,13�E025)F�GH05�IJ1/--K >?> >?> >?> @;?< >?A 8?L @@ @@ @@ @@5M.,-- >?> @L?A @L?A @A?> @7?; @>?L @@ @@ @@ @@X311Y-/*�C61,,6�0/1,�S1/Z,16[ 8L:;8<:L8= >?> @A?L @A?L @>?< =?< 9?A @@ @@ @@ L?LC3D.,13�E025)F�GH05�IJ1/--K >?> >?> >?> @;?< >?A 8?L @@ @@ @@ 8?A5M.,-- >?> @A?L @A?L ;?> =?< @7?; @@ @@ @@ @7?LC6/.\V1YRJ,�O34P,�)O 7<:B>=:9B8 >?> 7?; 7?; A<?A 7;?B @@ @@ @@ @@ AA?LC3D.,13�E025)F�GH05�IJ1/--K >?> >?> >?> @;?< >?A @@ @@ @@ @@ A;?>5M.,-- >?> 7?; 7?; A8?L 7;?7 @@ @@ @@ @@ @7?;SPV4Y.�2,34�Q--,6- 77=:=;A:<B< A?7 >?B >?B 7?> @L?< AL?= A?; @@ @@ @@C3D0,13�WY]PYR�2,34�Q--,6�)*R, A?A >?A >?A A?9 @L?8 A9?A ;?L L?; @@ L?;5M.,-- >?A >?7 >?7 >?B >?; @>?7 @B?7 @@ @@ @@CCTQ�0Ĉ �25QW�QCC5̂ �EW 77=:=;A:<B< A?7 >?B >?B 7?> @L?< AL?8 ;?L @@ @@ @@C3D0,13�WY]PYR�2,34�Q--,6�)*R, A?A >?A >?A A?9 @L?8 A9?A ;?L @@ @@ <?L5M.,-- >?A >?7 >?7 >?B >?; @>?7 >?> @@ @@ @@=�/_�A;`abcdefaghij



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������	�����������
��������� ��������� 
���!� �����" �����" #�$ %#�$ ��#�" ��#�" &�#�" '�#�" ���#�" (�$)*+,-./�0/-1�233/.3 456789979:: ;<4 5<= 5<= 8<9 58<: 54<; ><; 5;<; ?? 5;<;@-ABC02�)*+,-./�0/-1�233/.�DEF ?8<= 58<5 58<5 ?=<6 =<5 :<= :<= 5;<G ?? 5;<GCFH/33 8<G ?5;<: ?5;<: G<4 ><= :<6 ;<= ?;<G ?? ?;<GI+JK+E+.L =547=6474:: ;<> 5<8 5<8 8<8 ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? 8<8I+JK+E+.L�BMANM3+./�O/PHQA-*R 5<4 5<6 5<6 5<: ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? 5<:CFH/33 ?;<: ?;<8 ?;<8 ;<: ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ;<:B-3Q�S1MT�?�U-.HQ�I+JK+E+.L 4:4794>7>5> ;<9 5<8 5<8 5<G ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? 5<GOOV�W@�2XX�VM,.�B*/E+.�5?4 5<= 5<= 5<= ;<9 ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ;<9CFH/33 ?;<: ?;<4 ?;<4 ;<9 ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ;<9DP3+XQ.�DP,/3.A/P. 4=:785=76:: ;<9 5<6 5<6 5<8 ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? 5<8OOV�W@�B*/E+.�5?4�Y*3 5<5 5<4 5<4 5<4 ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? 5<4CFH/33 ?;<5 ;<5 ;<5 ?;<5 ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ?;<5BMKP.L�Z*/-3K*L�)MM1 >7>8878=5 ;<; ;<4 ;<4 ;<G 5<8 5<8 5<= 5<6 5<5 8<=95�[-L�Z?O+11 ;<6 5<5 5<5 8<6 8<= ;<9 5<6 5<8 ?? ??CFH/33 ?;<6 ?;<G ?;<G ?5<: ?5<4 ;<6 ;<5 ;<5 ?? ??B-3Q�\�B-3Q�],/*1-L 5697:;=7:69 ;<6 5<5 5<5 8<= ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ??DBC�OM̂2UI�W@�4?UMP.Q�Z*/-3K*L�O+11 ;<6 5<5 5<5 8<6 8<= ?? ?? ?? ?? ;<9CFH/33 ?;<5 ?;<; ?;<; ;<5 ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ??V/P/*-1�2HHMKP. 5487:6G7555 ;<6 5<8 5<8 8<> 8<G 5<; 5<= 5<4 5<; 5<9Z*-P3+.+MP�2HHMKP. ; ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ??B-3Q�],/*1-L 5:79=>7==5 ;<6 5<; 5<; 8<; 5<9 ?? ?? ?? ?? ;<:BK**/PHL�_/EX/�B-3Q�],/*1-L 54 ;<5 ;<> ;<> 5<9 8<; ?? ?? ?? ?? ;<>@-P�U-./M�BMKP.L�],/*1-L =796;7=557=>G 5<4 8<9 8<9 4<6 ?8<: 5;<5 =<= :<9 :<> :<:@-AH/*-�ZM.-1�)1-P�O/PHQA-*R 5<; 6<G 6<G 4<9 ?4<: 9<G :<; ><6 ><; :<9CFH/33 ;<4 ?5<9 ?5<9 ?;<= 5<5 ;<4 ?;<= ?;<= ?;<6 ?;<49�M̂�56`abcdefaghij



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������ ���������������������� ������������ ���� ���!"!#$�%&'()*+,--,-+�./01*2�3/45* 6789:7;<=7:8> ;79;?7>==7?>?@A-20,B52,A-C ?::7DD<788> D><7D>D7:8;E,2FG0/H/4C I887D6678D; ID9:7?:D7DD?J-KAL*�M*K*,N*G >=7=:<7D=9 ???7;;=79>6O/,-P$ACC ?D=7?;6798= I>6;79:97:==Q-G,-+�./01*2�3/45* 67=:976??768< 67=:976??768<
�I�?7999R99�>7999R99�D7999R99�:7999R99�67999R99�;7999R99�87999R99��SS����

T���������U�S
����V��������WX���Y

?9�AZ�?:[\]̂_̀a\bcde



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������

��� ���
�� ������ ��������� ��� !
��� "#$% "&$" '%$% (%$# '"$%)���*�+����� ,-$. ,,$- ,"$. (-$' ,.$./������� !
��� .$% 0$. #$% (%$. &$%�1���
������
�� .$% .$2 #$% (-$, &$%����� ����� #$% &$, &$% %$, --$%/
1��������������� ,$% "$& '$% (%$- 0$%/������������������ ,$% .$" '$% -$" 0$%3�!
�*��� #$& .$. ,$'
�45� ��5� 657 758 45� �54 75� 954

:�5� ��57 95� 95� 45� :5� :5� 757%$%.$%-%$%-.$%,%$%
,.$%"%$%".$%'%$%'.$%

 !
��� )���*�+����� /������� !
��� �1���
������
�� ����� ����� /
1��������������� /������������������ 3�!
�*���
���
�������������;������

<=>?@A B@CDE>

--�FG�-'HIJKLMNIOPQR



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������
��

�����
������
 �!�"�
#����

 $��$���� #$��$���� ��$��$���� �$��$����

%�����%&&���������'���(���

)*+,-./+01,2 3/24 3/24�51,-*/6 708,9�:.;<=, :.>*/+0<.�?,9@, A0BC090+6 D<+/*�EBC0+6
���<>���FGHIJKLGMNOP



����������	�
���	�����������
����
������������������
��

�������
���� �!�
"�#����

 $��$���� #$��$���� ��$��$���� �$��$����

�
%&'�����	(����'((��������)*���+���
,-./0123�432156 78.9 78.9�:;3508<=/>3.2?@�AB1?2< C?D3E�F6@/>3 F6235682?/680�AB1?2<G5?;823�AB1?2< G5?;823�4380�,..32. G1-0?@�4380�,..32.�4380�A.2823 HFGI 78.9�C0/J���K82@9�L?B1?E?2< ���/M���NOPQRSTOUVWX



���������	
������������������������������	������� �������������	�
!����!�"����#���$�������������%�����#�$	�$�	��������	#�����	&� '�	(�����������$��������	�����������)
!'���!����������	�*+��	,�-���#������ ���'��	�".�������$�����-���)
!�*+!�������������� �	����������	���	��	�����	$�	�����������"������"�����������	���)������	'���-�*+-��	�������	$�	����#��#������&��(�	���$����(��������	������������� ����������&������%$	����	��$����"�		�������		�$	�����������"���	��$���������������	��	������ �������
�	���	�����������������������������	�� �-����������$�	������	����%$	����������������"�		������� �	�(�������-����	���-���$��������-��	��������������� ������ �	�$�	������	$�	$���"���	��$��������� ����������	��	������ �������)/�������������(���� ��� �	�(���(-�����#��������'���-�*+-���� ����	�  ��������	������	�$�	����#��#������&��(�	���$����(��������	������������� ����������#������������� �	�����	���-����	���-�$�����-$�����#�-�����0��������	�������	����(��
��������(����$	� �����#��� ���� ���� ���$����������� ��������(��)�����"1����/�����	�����%���	�����������-����	�����������	&��������"1����*���$���-���)$�	����������(	���������"�����"1�������/�����	������#������������� �	���)2���������� �����"1����/�����	�����%��34556��"1����*���$���-���)*/�����	�2�������������	$�	����)������	����+��	,���������(�����������	���	$�	������
!�*+!������#������ ���'��	�".�������$�����-���)��$	��������� �*+����%2��	������� �	���$	���������%��$�"������$	��	"	�����$�	�������� �*+)7������� ���$����������� ������	�����������		�	���*+���	���-�*+�	����	�-�*+�������(��	������������	���-���0����-���$���������	�#����������� ����� �	��������������	��$������� �	����		�	��	����������	 �	���	�������������� 	��������� ������ �	������)�*+(�#������%$	����	��$����"�		������-��������(-���������������-���"�		�������	��	�������������	 ������ �	�$�	������	$�	$����	���)�����#���������*+�������� �	�������	���-�$������	�����0�����������(��������������"��������	���	,��	����	�,���� �*+����%2��	��)2��'����0�������	����	�����	�������%��$� �	��#�����8����-+	�����7��&9����-+	�����������	���(����+	�����	���(������"�	������������������	���	��	������$���):���;����	�����	&� <���������&�%����(�+��������:�������������<�����������������:�������	�������)2��	�(��������:����������#�����:������=�	����������	�)������	:�����	����������	�����$������������� �	����		�	��	��������������:�����������	����	����(����)���'�		���<������������	�����"���$�	�������)��$�	�(��455>-'�		���<����-+��	��-:����	*���������	$�	����)2��	�(���	���	#��)���'�		���<���������������������$���-����-�	����	������"������'�		���<����,�$	��	"	������$$	�#��)�����������%������$	�#�������������!2���!������������(	���������� �������%�����������	����	��&)��������%��&����	�$	������������	"�		������-�%$	����	��$����-������	�������	$�	����	������-��������("�������������������"�		����� ��	������������-�	�(�������-������������	 ������ �	�$�	������	$�	$���� �������%�����	�������	�����	�����"�		������(�#�������������%����"������ �	����������	�$�������	�� �	�� 	��� ���������-�		�	�-����		�$������	�� ����)?)�����#����������������%��������������	�������	$�	����	������ �	�����	���-����������-����	���-�$������	�����0�����������(��
��������(-"����������������-

����$	� ����		�#�����-����� ����-����� ����	������� ���	�$�	�����-�	����(���� �	����������	������������"������	���� 
�	����������������������%����-"�����	�	��������#�������#����� -�	����	"�����(����#�������$�������$����������� -��������(��)/��������������������� �	�(���(-�����&��"���(������������%��������������$�����	���������-�� �	�� �	������$�	$��������������������������-������������������	�������-���  �	�	������������"���	��$��������$�	������	����� �������	���)2���$������������������$	�#��������������@��(�������� ����		��$����#����������	����@���������(�"������������)��������-�� �	������-�$�������������������	� �	��������$�	�� �(���	����	#���-"������	�(�	������	$�	������	��	����������-�����������%���������������� �	�������(�����������������	�"���)��������%���������	��&��(������(�������	������ ������	�"���	��$��������	���������	���� ���	����(���	 ������	�����������������&��"���(�����(	�������������%������������������������	#������$	���	������ �	�����#��������������������"���	��$�����������������)����	��;���7���&���&;�	�	�(����	���	�����	&�� 7���&���&-���)�������  �������
!7���&���&!�����	���������	�������)7���&���&�������������	�����	�����	&�����	��������� 7���&���&�������	���	��	������$���)�����	���	��	������$���,�$	�����������	#�����	�����$����	��-����	���-����-�	$	��������7���&���&-���7���&���&��&����	�$	������������	"�		������	������������$	�������	��	#���������	�������	���	��	������$����	�������	$�	����	������-��������(��������������������#���������� ��#�����(�����$	������� �����	���	��	������$���)7���&���&���������(������	���������������������"�������$�	�����-��	&����(-�	����(�	����� ���$	�������	��	#���� 	�������	���	��	������$���)+�����������������	�$�	��������$	�$�	������(�����#�����������)����	�$�	����������������� �	������$	�#���������	�$�	����-��	�#�������	�$�	�����	��	�#�� 	�����	�$�	���������=�	�������������#���������(�	�A���	����	"���	�$�	���������$����������	������.��	���	��	������������	��$���������� �	�������	���-�����������	���$��������� ��������� �	������)� �����#�0��������	�(�	���(���	�$�	�������	��	����������	������������	�$�	�-$���������������	��	���	��	���	����������$����)��9���'���2�9���������B���������������������������������	�$�	��� �	�� �	��������$�	$��������)��$	�#����(����� �	�����������������	���-�����	���	��	������$������������	��&��(��$	�#���C��#���������#���D�	��(�#���#������ ������	���$����� �	$�	$����� �����$���������	���������������	���2��� EF>?-���������)������(������	�$�	�������������-�	������������	�������-�	�����������������	�-	�����-�	��	����������#�����������(�	�	��(�(������$�	������	�����	���������"������������(�	�	��� �������������(��)�����	���	��	������$������=�	����  ������������#���������	����������$�"�������	��	���#�����������(�	��	 ���� �	��������������	�$�	�-������	����#����$�������� �	$	�#����(�������-��������	�����-���&��(-�	�&�	�(�- �	��(��%����(��	����	��	#������������#�����������(�	��	 ����)�����	���	��	������$����������  ��������������#���	��$���������� �	��������0������� ��#����������������������	����������� �	���������������������	�$�	�)
GHIJKLMHNOPQ



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 6.2 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Board of Retirement   

Michael Coultrip, Chief Investment Officer 

Approval of Asset Allocation Policy Portfolio Implementation Plan 

Recommendation 
Approve the implementation plan for the new asset allocation policy. 

Background 
As the final part of its asset liability study, the Board approved a new asset allocation policy in 
February.  The new policy increases Growth assets by 2%, with a corresponding 1% decrease to 
both Diversifying and Inflation Hedge assets.  

Discussion 
Implementation of the new policy is anticipated to consist of two stages (interim and final).  
Table One shows the proposed Interim Policy, which is expected to be completed by July 1st.  
This policy will contain all the changes approved by the Board, except for the 1% increase to 
private equity, which is expected to take multiple years to complete.  As a result, staff 
recommends taking the 1% to private equity and temporarily adding it to the domestic equity 
policy weight until the actual private equity allocation approaches the new 8% target.   

At this point the final policy in Table Two will be effective, which shows the resulting 1% 
reduction to domestic equity and the corresponding 1% increase to private equity. 

Verus will present the implementation plan and will be able to answer any questions from the 
Board. 



Page 2 of 3 

SamCERA Implementation Plan 

Table One 
Current Policy New Interim Policy Difference 
Growth 57.0% Growth 59.0% 2% 
Total Equity 40.0% Total Equity 41.0% 1% 
Domestic Equity 21.0% Domestic Equity 23.0% 2% 
DE Shaw 3.0% DE Shaw 3.0% 
Russell 1000 8.0% Russell 1000 14.0% 6% 
Acadian Low Vol 4.0% Acadian Low Vol 0.0% -4% 
PanAgora Low Vol 4.0% PanAgora Low Vol 4.0% 
QMA Small-Cap 2.0% QMA Small-Cap 2.0% 

Intl Equity 19.0% Intl Equity 18.0% -1% 
Mondrian 6.3% Mondrian 4.5% -1.8% 
ACWI IMI 6.3% ACWI IMI 9.0% 2.7% 
Baillie Gifford 6.3% Baillie Gifford 4.5% -1.8% 

Private Equity 7.0% Private Equity 7.0% 0% 
Opportunistic Credit 10.0% Opportunistic Credit 11.0% 1% 
Diversifying 19.5% Diversifying 18.5% -1% 
Defensive Fixed 12.5% Defensive Fixed 12.5% 
FIAM Core 4.5% FIAM Core 1.5% -3% 
DoubleLine Securitized 4.0% DoubleLine Securitized 4.0% 
NISA Core 4.0% NISA Core 4.0% 
Long Treasury 0.0% Long Treasury 3.0% 3% 

Absolute Return 7.0% Absolute Return 6.0% -1% 
Inflation Hedge 18.0% Inflation Hedge 17.0% -1% 
Public Real Assets 4.0% Public Real Assets 3.0% -1% 
Real Estate 9.0% Real Estate 9.0% 
Private Real Assets 5.0% Private Real Assets 5.0% 
Liquidity 5.5% Liquidity 5.5% 
Cash Flow Match 4.5% Cash Flow Match 4.5% 
Cash & Cash Overlay 1.0% Cash & Cash Overlay 1.0% 



Page 3 of 3 

Table Two 
Interim Policy New Final Policy Difference 
Growth 59.0% Growth 59.0% 0% 
Total Equity 41.0% Total Equity 40.0% 
Domestic Equity 23.0% Domestic Equity 22.0% -1% 
DE Shaw 3.0% DE Shaw 3.0% 
Russell 1000 14.0% Russell 1000 13.0% -1% 
PanAgora Low Vol 4.0% PanAgora Low Vol 4.0% 
QMA Small-Cap 2.0% QMA Small-Cap 2.0% 

Intl Equity 18.0% Intl Equity 18.0% 
Private Equity 7.0% Private Equity 8.0% 1% 
Opportunistic Credit 11.0% Opportunistic Credit 11.0% 
Diversifying 18.5% Diversifying 18.5% 
Defence Fixed 12.5% Defence Fixed 12.5% 
Absolute Return 6.0% Absolute Return 6.0% 
Inflation Hedge 17.0% Inflation Hedge 17.0% 
Public Real Assets 3.0% Public Real Assets 3.0% 
Real Estate 9.0% Real Estate 9.0% 
Private Real Assets 5.0% Private Real Assets 5.0% 
Liquidity 5.5% Liquidity 5.5% 
Cash Flow Match 4.5% Cash Flow Match 4.5% 
Cash & Cash Overlay 1.0% Cash & Cash Overlay 1.0% 

Attachment 
Verus Implementation Plan Presentation 



���������	
����
������������������������������������ �!"#$� ��%&����'(�"�����%%�)'��'��



�����������	����
��	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 !"#�$%&'(&)!*+%�,"�*(�-.!&!*#%%�('�'.#.&%�&%"./#"0�1234�56789:;<�34�=>6?35:5�@6>�3;@6>9A<36;AB�=8>=64:4�6;BC�A;5�34�53>:7<:5�<6�3;4<3<8<36;AB�7B3:;<4�A;5�:B3D3EB:�3;4<3<8<36;AB768;<:>=A><3:4�6;BC�A;5�34�;6<�3;<:;5:5�@6>�>:<A3B�3;?:4<6>4F�G6<23;D�2:>:3;�76;4<3<8<:4�3;?:4<9:;<H�B:DABH�A7768;<3;D�6>�<AIA5?37:H�6>�A�>:7699:;5A<36;�<6�E8CH�4:BB�6>�26B5�A�4:78>3<C�6>�=8>48:�A�=A><378BA>�3;?:4<9:;<�?:237B:�6>�A;C�<>A53;D�4<>A<:DCF�1234�56789:;<�9AC�3;7B85:�6>�39=BC�:4<39A<:4H�68<B66J4H�=>6K:7<36;4�A;5�6<2:>�L@6>MA>5NB66J3;D�4<A<:9:;<4FO�G6�A448>A;7:�7A;�E:�D3?:;�<2A<�@8<8>:�>:48B<4�5:47>3E:5�6>�39=B3:5�EC�A;C�@6>MA>5�B66J3;D�3;@6>9A<36;�M3BB�E:�A723:?:5F�P;?:4<3;D�:;<A3B4�>34J4H�3;7B853;D�=6443EB:�B644�6@�=>3;73=ABF��Q553<36;AB�3;@6>9A<36;�AE68<�R:>84�Q5?346>CH�P;7F�34�A?A3BAEB:�6;�<2:�STUV4�M:E43<:�A<�MMMFA5?34:>3;@6F4:7FD6?F�R:>84�WAB46�J;6M;�A4�R:>84�Q5?346>CXF

YZ[\]�̂_�̀̂ab]abcdabêfg̀bĥa ����iêjbk �����lhm]ech_nhao ������da_\Zbĥa�p]fo] �����
q



���������	
����
���������������� �



���������	
���

	���	�� ������������������������� !"���!�"�"�����#!$��""����%%�$��!�����"��������"��!�"��&�'()�*��"�����!��"+�,���$���#�"��������*�%!$���%%�$��!��������!#�%!#�������%�-+

'*�!%�./.01234567 8

49::;<=�>?@ABC D;E�>?@ABC FAGG;:;<B;H?=2@�I9<J H?=2@�I9<JK:?E=L MNOPQ K:?E=L MROPQ STQ,���%�UV�!�� W/+/X ,���%�UV�!�� W/+/X �Y�Z�UV�!�� .[+/X Y�Z�UV�!�� ..+/X \[X���%�UV�!�� []+/X ���%�UV�!�� [̂+/X �[X_�! ����UV�!�� +̀/X _�! ����UV�!�� +̂/X \[Xa**�����!"�!$�b���!� [/+/X a**�����!"�!$�b���!� [[+/X \[XFAc;:dAGCA<e fROMQ FAc;:dAGCA<e fgOMQ hfQY�&��"���!i�� [.+jX Y�&��"���!i�� [.+jX �'�"�%����k����� +̀/X '�"�%����k����� l+/X �[Xm<G@2=A?<�n;Je; fgOPQ m<G@2=A?<�n;Je; fNOPQ hfQ(!V�!��_��% W+/X (!V�!��_��% 0+/X �[Xk��%�U"���� ]+/X k��%�U"���� ]+/X �_�! ����k��%�'""��" j+/X _�! ����k��%�'""��" j+/X �oAp9AJA=C MOMQ oAp9AJA=C MOMQ hb�"���%�-�)��$� W+jX b�"���%�-�)��$� W+jX �b�"��q�b�"��a ��%�� [+/X b�"��q�b�"��a ��%�� [+/X �



���������	

��������������� �



��������		�
����� ������������������������������������������� �!�"� �#���$ %���$&��'��������#��$����&����� �'�� �(�)��������%���� �!�"� �!�  �#��$  ��$�������*����  �+,,,( -�����$����$ ��������!$����������#��+.��!����$�+.������$���������������������(�/����#���'������' �#$ ��������$  ��$������������ ����!��������#�����$�&�'��'�$������� ��( -�����$����$ ��������$������ $���!$������ �%����!����$���'����$  ��$���������$���"�( -����$������"$����������$������������������������#��+.��$��(�
0��� �1,123456789 :

6;<<=>?�@ABCDE F=G�@ABCDEH<AG?I� JKLMN H<AG?I JOLMN/��$ �P����� Q,(,. /��$ �P����� Q,(,.RSTUVWXY�Z[\XW] 1+(,. RSTUVWXY�Z[\XW] ^̂LMN_P�̀�$! 2(,. _P�̀�$! 2(,.*����  �+,,, a(,. *����  �+,,, bcLMN0�$��$��d�!�e� Q(,.)$�0'��$�d�! Q(,. )$�0'��$�d�! Q(,.fg0 1(,. fg0 1(,.hiWUjikWXSikl�Z[\XW] +m(,. hiWUjikWXSikl�Z[\XW] bnLMNg�����$� o(2. g�����$� pLJN0q�-�-g- o(2. 0q�-�-g- OLMNr$�  �� o(2. r$�  �� pLJN)��"$���P����� s(,. )��"$���P����� nLMNt�������������q����� +,(,. t�������������q����� bbLMN



���������	�	�
�	��������	��� ������������������������������������ ��!���������"������������#�$�%�#�&�����#����'&�����(�  ��!����)�&�����������"���*������������#����$��"��'&���������������#�$�%�#��������+���������������������#&"����������"����$���������,-,,(�  ��!����"�������%���*#������������������%����"�����������*�����'&����������#�$�%�#��������(
!&��#�,-,./012345 6

7��8�����#��9:; <�=� .�=�� ,-,, ,-,< ,-,- ,-<> ?���&�?���&��@���5A0BC0D�E/�FGH�I ,,-+J.-+<JJ �<<(KL .(>L �<<(KL ,.(,L ,(ML ,N(,L M(>L <M�@��O0D5PQR0HSTUVSW ,KX+X<X+,.M �,(NL J(.L �,(NL ,-(XL K(>L ,>(.L <,(KL <M�@��YZ[[\]]�̂___ `̂ab̂c dbec `̂ab̂c fgbhc f̂c êbic f̂bac ĵ̀k\l



����������	�
���
����������������� �



����������	
��������	� ������������������������� ���!�"����#����$%��$�#��&'���� %�$����������������(��"�)*� +��)���������� ���!,�"������--��$���$��-��!�.'� ��-�/012�3������� %�$��)��4����%�������������*�� +��)��)����$�-5������ �1#��$����6���$��$�(176,��)����������������1#���%���7��%���"����#������)����"����!���� �8*9'*
15����:9:.;<=>?@A B

>CDDEFG�HIJKLM NEO�HIJKLMPKQEDRKSMKFT UBVWX PKQEDRKSMKFT UYVWX�� �����/�Z�$ &:*[' �� �����/�Z�$ &:*['/012�3��� \*[' /012�3��� UVWX��%#��]��� \*9' ��%#��]��� \*9'0̂61 \*9' 0̂61 \*9'4����%�� _V̀X1#���%���7��%�� aV̀X 1#���%���7��%�� bV̀X



���������	
���
����	�����	�����	��� �������������������������� �!�"���#��$�������"%��������������&�����'�(��!�"���#����%)���'#����*�� �'"�%)������"%�����%���"%����&!�)�"��'��#��+��%''�(!#�)����,���������)����������"���"�-%��-�)��"�'%)��+���)*��.�%���%���/�"�)�+�#��-��%�'%)��+����!�"���#���,��#��+��%�(�"��%!!"�!"�%��$�%�����)���(�$���"��+�%������0"�%)�"1��&!�)�"�*��� 2�-�������1��#��'�"-����-�"��(����%���-�#%��#��1����"%��)����%1$�,��%"���%-������)'�))���)�%+���������!��(%#�,%1�����(!#�(����%�#������"%�����0"�%)�"1�(%��%��*�����!"���"�%�(�"��!%))�-��%!!"�%'�����(%�%�����0"�%)�"��)���-�������#�(�����%#!�%�%-%�#%+#��,��������-�"�(����)�'�"����)*��0�%��)%��$�,��%"��'��)���"����,%1)����#��������%�#����"���"%�����!�"���#����-�"���(�*� .�%���%���/�"�)�!#%�����'�(��+%'3��������4�%"��%��%�#%��"��%��,����%�(%�%��"�"�'�((���%���������(!#�(����%�0"�%)�"1�!�"���#��*��0������������������0"�%)�"1�(%��%���,�##�'�(���"�(�%�5*67�"���(!������������8 9:���"��)�"%���1*��
9!"�#�;6;5<=>?@ABCDEFGHI�JKDDLMHFN OP67Q7;757R7

S7
:%"�;5 .�!�;; :%"�;;

TU<U�VA@B<TAW�WX@YZ�?TA[@



���������	
������
����������������� ��



���������	
���	����������� ������	����������	��	���������	�����	�� 	!��"���	#�	$%&'	��	�"��	��	���!�� �	��	(!����%	)�*����	�!�+	���,�-"��	����	����#�" �����"��*!�.����-"���	��++��+��� 	�.�!	��+�%
/*!��	0&012345678 9:

5;<<=>?	@ABCDE F=G	@ABCDEH>IB3?CA>	J=KL= 9MNOP H>IB3?CA>	J=KL= 9QNOP,�-"��	���� R%&' ,�-"��	���� SNOPT���	U ���� V%&' T���	U ���� V%&'�!�.���	T���	/  �� W%&' �!�.���	T���	/  �� W%&'



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023  Agenda Item 6.3 

TO: Board of Retirement  

FROM: Doris Ng, Investment Analyst 

SUBJECT: Report on Cash Overlay (Parametric) Annual Review 

Recommendation 
Accept the report on the annual review of SamCERA’s overlay manager.  

Background 
Parametric’s institutional overlay program (formerly The Clifton Group) was hired in May 2013 to 
provide overlay management services to SamCERA.  Parametric initially provided securitization of 
total fund cash, manager cash equitization, and overlay transition management services.  
Subsequently, portfolio rebalancing was added in January 2014, and currency hedging was added 
in September 2018.    

Parametric Policy Implementation Overlay Services (PIOS) provides increased operational 
efficiency for fund cash flow management, exposure management during manager transitions, 
elimination of performance drag due to residual manager cash, and rebalancing during times of 
meaningful deviation from policy targets.  All of Parametric’s overlay services are performed out of 
the Minneapolis (MN) Investment Center.   

Discussion 
On March 2nd, SamCERA staff and consultant held an onsite annual review meeting for the 
Parametric cash overlay and currency hedge strategies.  The meeting lasted approximately 1.5 
hours, and consisted of a firm/organizational update, investment process review, and 
performance review and attribution.   

Overall overlay program results were in line with long-term expectations.  From inception 
(8/6/2013) through December 31, 2022, the overlay program produced a synthetic index overlay 
return of $34.4 million, or 10 basis points return as a % of total fund assets.  From inception 
(9/17/2018) through December 31, 2022, the passive currency hedge program produced a 
synthetic index overlay return of $50.7 million (as the U.S. Dollar strengthened), or 308 basis 
points as a % of the overlay hedge target. 

There were no major concerns identified during the review.  Meeting notes summarizing the 
findings from the annual review are attached to this memo. 

Attachment
Parametric Cash Overlay Annual Review Meeting Notes 2023 



Parametric Portfolio Associates, LLC Cash Overlay 

1 

 

 

 
 

 
Date of meeting: 3/2/23 

Location: SamCERA 
 

Manager Representative Verus Representative(s) 
Dan Ryan (Client Relations) Joseph Abdou (Consultant) 
James Thorson (PM)  

Client Representative(s) 
Kimathi Marangu (Trustee) 
 Mike Coultrip (CIO),  
Doris Ng (Analyst) 
Lili Dames (Analyst) 

Product Description 

Parametric’s cash overlay program is an efficient way for SamCERA to maintain its target asset allocation in a 
systematic fashion through cash securitization at the fund and manager level, transition/reallocation support and 
asset class rebalancing back to target within defined bands.   The cash overlay program is invested synthetically using 
liquid futures with cash balances reviewed daily. A combination of large and small cap futures implementation is the 
proxy for private equity.  SamCERA’s investment guidelines initially allowed only for cash overlay.  Rebalancing was 
added to the SamCERA program in January 2014. 

 
Parametric estimates that their overlay services should add 10-20 basis points to portfolio returns over time using 
their systematic approach. Since inception through 12/31/22, SamCERA’s overlay program has added 10 basis 
points to portfolio returns since inception, in line with expectations. 

Organization 

Parametric Portfolio Associates was a wholly owned subsidiary of Eaton Vance Corp.  As of March 1, 2021, Morgan 
Stanley acquired Eaton Vance Corp.  Parametric is still running the day-to-day business autonomously from Morgan 
Stanley.  Many of the back office functions that Eaton Vance supported (HR, Finance, billing) is now being taken care 
of by Morgan Stanley. Parametric is comprised of three investment centers – Seattle, Minneapolis and Westport, CT.  
The firm’s institutional overlay strategies reside within the Minneapolis investment center which was formerly The 
Clifton Group prior to Parametric’s acquisition of the firm in 2012.  Just before the review marked the 2-year 
anniversary of the acquisition by Morgan Stanley.  The day-to-day operations and executive committee has remained 
autonomous and no concerns were evident about the acquisition. 

 
Parametric’s firm-wide assets under management were $389 billion in total as of 12/31/22. The firm manages over 
$121 billion in overlay strategies representing 789 accounts managed out of Minneapolis. Over the past year, 19 
accounts and $1.3 billion were gained, and no relationships were lost.   

Investment Team 

The investment team consists of Dan Wamre, CFA, Ricky Fong CFA, and James Thorson, CFA.  Justin Henne left and 
was replaced by Ricky Fong who is responsible for implementation and enhancement of Parametric’s customized 
exposure management strategy.  Dan leads the team responsible for trading, designing, and managing overlay 
portfolios.  And James is responsible for the designing, trading, and managing of the overlay portfolio.   
 



Parametric Portfolio Associates, LLC Cash Overlay 

2 

 

 

Investment Strategy 

Parametric’s cash overlay services are known internally as Policy Implementation Overlay Services (PIOS). The 
objectives of PIOS are to: 1) increase day-to-day availability of cash and provide operational efficiency for cash flow 
management, 2) eliminate performance drag due to unintended cash, 3) enable staff to obtain a daily snapshot of 
total fund exposures, and 4) maintain asset class exposure during manager changes. 

 
Parametric uses liquid futures in the implementation of PIOS.  US equity exposures are maintained using large cap and 
small cap futures. Non-US equity exposures are replicated using developed and emerging markets futures.  Fixed 
income Treasury futures are used for bond replication so interest rate sensitivities are addressed. Credit exposure is 
not addressed so there is some tracking error within the fixed income asset class compared to SamCERA exposures.  
This tracking error detracted during part of 2017 and 2018 but has added value since due to overlay performance. 

 

Performance & Positioning 

Parametric has implemented its overlay strategy within SamCERA’s guidelines, reducing cash and maintaining the 
portfolio target asset allocation within tight tracking error bands.  SamCERA had an average cash position of $115 
million, with an effective cash position of just over $1 million or 0.03% of the Plan. SamCERA’s overlay added 0 bps to 
the portfolio over the past year.  Over the long term the portfolio is in line with expectations gaining 10 bps, mostly 
from cash equitization. 

 
Currency hedging was fully implemented in 2019 and has gained 3.08% since inception through December 31, 2022.  This 
passive currency hedging strategy will be closed as SamCERA funds Record, the new dynamic currency hedge manager. 

 

Conclusion 

Verus continues to have confidence in Parametric’s overlay capabilities and Parametric’s implementation of 
SamCERA’s program.  Alpha and tracking to the fund’s strategic asset allocation are in line with expectations. 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023  Agenda Item 6.4 

TO: Board of Retirement  

FROM: Doris Ng, Investment Analyst 

SUBJECT: Report on Global Custodian (Northern Trust) Annual Review 

Recommendation
Accept the report on the annual review of SamCERA’s custodian bank.  

Background  
Northern Trust became SamCERA’s custodian effective July 1, 2014.  Northern Trust provides 
SamCERA with global custody and securities lending services.    

Discussion  
On March 2nd, SamCERA staff held an annual review meeting with Northern Trust in a hybrid 
meeting format.  Colleen Brennan (Client Executive) and Matt Pfaff (Client Service Manager) 
attended in-person from Northern Trust, and representatives from their Accounting (Maurie 
Jacobeit), Performance & Analytics (Shane Crea and Amanda Stinnett), and Securities Lending (Don 
Anderson) teams joined virtually.   

The meeting lasted approximately 1.5 hours, and consisted of a firm/organizational update, global 
custody overview, securities lending review, and a service performance review. 

Overall, Northern Trust continues to provide consistent and reliable levels of service to staff. There 
were no major concerns identified during the review.  Annual review materials will be sent 
separately to the Board.     



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023   Agenda Item 7.1 

TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM:    Tat-Ling Chow, Finance Officer 
  Tariq Ali, Chief Technology Officer 

         Lilibeth Dames, Investment Analyst 

SUBJECT: SamCERA’s Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve SamCERA’s proposed budget for fiscal year (FY) 2023-24 totaling $46.8 million, which is 
2% higher than the adopted budget for FY 2022-23. 

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 % of 
Proposed Adopted Increase Change

Professional Services 37,552,118$  36,641,192$   910,926$         2%
Administrative 7,956,983       7,830,772       126,211           2%

Information Technology 1,270,200       1,238,700       31,500              3%

   Total Budget - SamCERA 46,779,301$  45,710,664$   1,068,637$      2%

BACKGROUND 
SamCERA's budget consists of three units: professional services, administrative, and information 
technology. 

Professional Services Budget – covers professional fees that are authorized by Government Code 
§31596.1. This code authorizes the Board of Retirement (the Board) to expend funds from
investment earnings of the pension trust for specific professional services, which include actuarial
consulting, custodial, investment management, investment consulting, and external legal
services.

SamCERA employs professional investment managers to manage its portfolio. Some 
management fees are performance driven, primarily dependent upon the market value of the 
assets under management and negotiated fee schedules.  As the market values of invested assets 
increase, so do management fees. Other management fees are based on contractual agreements. 
Fees for the actuarial consulting, investment consulting, and global custodian services are either 
on per-service or per-retainer basis. 

Periodically, the Chief Investment Officer and the investment consultant review the portfolio’s 
performance and report the results to the Board. Investment staff examine professional service 
expenses to ensure fees charged to SamCERA are following respective contractual agreements. 



2 
 

The professional services budget for FY 2023-24 is projected to be $37.6 million, 2% above the 
adopted budget for FY 2022-23.  

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 % of 
Proposed Adopted Increase Change

Investment Management Fees 36,402,618$   35,511,692$   890,926$ 3%
Other Professional Service Fees 1,149,500        1,129,500       20,000      2%

     Total - Professional Services Budget 37,552,118$   36,641,192$   910,926$ 2%  
 
• Investment management fees increase by 3%, mainly driven by projected increase of assets 

under management. These fees are either driven by contractual agreements or based on the 
value of assets under management, the amount of capital committed, and the investment 
performance. 

FY 2022-23
Adopted

Investment Manager
Fee 

(bps)  Annual Fee
 Performance 

Fee  Total Total 
% of 

Change
Total Public Equity 20.8 4,661,490$   314,480$          4,975,970$     6,459,305$    -23%
Total Fixed Income 56.5 7,805,668      -                          7,805,668        8,437,498       -7%
Total Alternative Assets 183.7 13,541,436   869,169             14,410,605     12,407,148    16%
Total Inflation Hedge 75.4 8,510,375      -                          8,510,375        7,532,241       13%
Total Cash Overlay n/a 385,000         -                          385,000           300,000          28%
Total Liquidity 8.9 315,000         -                          315,000           375,500          -16%
      TOTAL 60.3 35,218,969$ 1,183,649$       36,402,618$   35,511,692$  3%

n/a - Not applicable.

Investment Management Fees

FY 2023-24 
Projected

 
 

Below entails further details regarding changes in fee projections for FY 2023-24 when 
compared to FY 2022-23. 

 
 Total Public Equity - The 23% decrease is mainly due to the removal of one active low 

volatility manager and anticipated increase to passive management (which have lower 
fees). 

 
 Total Fixed Income - The 7% decrease results from the removal of one manager in core 

fixed income since the assets under management were liquidated to fund SamCERA’s new 
cashflow-match account. 

 
 Total Alternative Assets - The 16% increase is mostly attributed to the addition of new 

private equity managers and projected increase in performance fees. 
 
 Total Inflation Hedge - The 13% increase stems from the addition of new managers in real 

asset and real estate investments. 
 
  



3 
 

 Total Cash Overlay - The 28% increase is triggered by the addition of a Dynamic Currency 
Hedge manager. 

 
 Total Liquidity - The 16% decrease reflects the actual fee arrangement with the newly 

hired cashflow-match manager. The budget for FY 2022-23 was projected using a higher 
fee without an actual manager in place.  

 
• Other professional service fees, mostly on per-service basis, are expected to have a net 

increase of 2% from the two events described below. 
  

% of  
 Service  (bps) Projected Adopted Change

Milliman Inc. Actuarial Consulting 0.2 149,500$      149,500$       0%
Cheiron Inc. Actuarial Audit 0.1 40,000           50,000            -20%
Verus Investments Investment Consulting 1.0 600,000        570,000         5%
Northern Trust Custodian 0.6 360,000        360,000         0%
      TOTAL 1.9 1,149,500$  1,129,500$   2%

Contractor

Other Professional Service Fees
FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

 
 
 In February 2023, SamCERA rehired Cheiron Incorporation to conduct the triennial 

actuarial audit. Capitalizing on the knowledge built from the previous engagement, 
Cheiron offered to provide its services at a discounted price of $80,000 in aggregate 
rather than the initial projected amount of $100,000. The audit will be carried out in two 
phases, with phase one on the Experience Study beginning in May and ending in June of 
2023 (FY 2022-23) and phase two on the Annual Valuation beginning in July and ending 
in October of 2023 (FY 2023-24).  

 
 In March 2023, SamCERA signed a new contract with its investment consultant, Verus 

Investments, for three years. Under this contract, the consulting fee for FY 2023-24 is 
adjusted upwards by 5% to be in line with consumer price index increase and adjustment 
to the scope of services subscribed. 

Administrative Budget – accounts for administrative expenses such as salaries and benefits. 
Government Code §31580.2(a) of the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 limits 
SamCERA’s administrative budget to twenty-one hundredths of one percent (0.21%) of the 
accrued actuarial liability of the retirement system.   
 
The proposed administrative budget for FY 2023-24 is $8.0 million, slightly above the adopted 
budget for FY 2022-23 by 2%. This amount approximates to 0.12% of the total accrued actuarial 
liability of $6.5 billion as of June 30, 2022.  



4 
 

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 Increase % of
Proposed Adopted (Decrease) Change

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries 4,180,040$ 3,983,577$ 196,463$       5%
Benefits 1,771,977    1,965,718    (193,741)       -10%

Total Salaries and Benefits 5,952,017    5,949,295    2,722              0%

Services, Supplies and Other Charges
Board Expense 8,000            8,000            -                       0%
Insurance 110,000       105,000       5,000              5%
Medical Record and Appeal Hearing 95,000          95,000          -                       0%
Member Education 68,000          63,750          4,250              7%
Education and Conference 137,826       123,948       13,878           11%
Transportation and Lodging 111,448       100,115       11,333           11%
Property and Equipment 28,000          28,000          -                       0%
General Office Supplies 43,000          42,000          1,000              2%
Postage and Printing 22,000          20,000          2,000              10%
Leased Facilities 705,000       685,000       20,000           3%
County Services 502,692       439,664       63,028           14%
Audit Services 60,000          60,000          -                       0%
Other Professional Services 114,000       111,000       3,000              3%

Total Services, Supplies and Other Charges 2,004,966    1,881,477    123,489         7%

   Total - Administrative Budget 7,956,983$ 7,830,772$ 126,211$       2%
 

 
Budget items with changes of ±5% or above are discussed below. 
 
• Salaries are up by 5% to incorporate negotiated increases of 4% in October 2023, merit 

increases, and longevity pay based on the years of County service. 
 

• Benefits are down by 10%, mainly due to a significant reduction in pension contribution. With 
the full amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability layer established in June 2008, 
the employer pension contribution rate slipped from 38.51% for FY 2022-23 to 26.19% for FY 
2023-24.  

 
• Fiduciary liability insurance premium is adjusted upwards by 5% to cover potential fee 

increase due to change in consumer price index. 
 

• Member education outlay increases by 7% to be in parallel with scheduled increase in 
accordance with the contract with Financial Knowledge, a vendor specializing in financial 
planning education. 

 
• Education and conference spending is expected to rise by 11%. After pandemic disruptions, 

“in-person” conferences regain popularity and are considered a more effective means to 
promote communication and collaboration than virtual. Registration fees for in-person 
conferences, in most cases, are higher than teleconferences.  
 

• Transportation and lodging outlays are adjusted upwards by 11% in anticipation of growing 
participation in on-site trainings and meetings at different geographic locations. 

  



5 
 

• Postage and printing expenses increase by 10% to support an upcoming election of a Board 
members in 2024. 

 
• County service charges are projected to increase by 14% based on the latest figures released 

by respective servicing departments. 

 
Information Technology Budget – covers projected expenses for information technology that are 
authorized by Government Code §31580.2(b).  The Code states that “Expenditures for computer 
software, computer hardware, and computer technology consulting services in support of these 
computer products shall not be considered a cost of administration of the retirement system.”  

The information technology budget for FY 2023-24 is estimated to be $1.3 million, about 3% 
above the adopted budget for FY 2022-23.   
 

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 Increase % of 
Proposed Adopted (Decrease) Change

Computer Equipment and Software 25,000$       25,000$       -$                     0%
IT Infrastructure:
   Software License Maintenance 760,200       496,700       263,500         53%
   Maintenance Tools & Equipment 200,000       150,000       50,000            33%
   Contract IT Services 251,000       533,000       (282,000)        -53%
   Imaging 25,000          25,000          -                       0%
Technology Research and Development 5,000            5,000            -                       0%
IT Subscription 4,000            4,000            -                       0%
     Total - Information Technology Budget 1,270,200$ 1,238,700$ 31,500$         3%

n/a - Not appl icable  
 
Areas with significant changes over the year include the following: 
 
• Budget for software license maintenance increases by 53%. The increase is aimed at financing 

the scheduled purchase of 1,050 service support hours at $227,850 under the new contract 
with Vitech Corporation, a vendor providing technical support to SamCERA’s pension 
administration software system. 
 

• Budget for maintenance tools and equipment increases by 33%. The increased funding will 
be used to replace staff laptops that are approaching the end-of-life cycle. 
 

• Appropriation for contract IT services diminishes by $53%. Two significant projects, the 
migration of data hosting services from Vitech Corporation to Amazon Web Services and the 
development of a new member portal, were fully completed in FY 2022-23.  No major projects 
are in sight for FY 2023-24. 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 7.2 

TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Amendment to Felony Forfeiture Policy 

Recommendation 
Adopt a resolution amending the Board of Retirement’s “Procedure for Felony 
Forfeitures.” 

Background 
Under the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), members 
who have been convicted of a felony, as described below, after January 1, 2013, must 
forfeit certain accrued rights and benefits in the public retirement system that they are 
a member of at the time the felony is committed retroactive to the first commission 
date of the crime and shall not accrue further benefits. (Govt. Code sections 7522.72 
and 7522.74.)  In general, these statutes require the forfeiture after the conviction for 
any felony (state of federal) for conduct: 

• Arising out of or in the performance of the member’s official duties, or
• In pursuit of the office or appointment, or
• In connection with obtaining salary, disability retirement, service

retirement, or other benefits.

Elected public officers may be subject to a felony forfeiture based on different conduct. 
The employer is required to notify SamCERA within 90 days of an employee’s conviction. 

Discussion: 
The amended procedures reflect staff’s current process for handling felony forfeiture 
matters which includes providing the member with notice, a right to be heard, and the 
right to appeal staff-level decisions prior to any forfeiture action.  Both the member and 
employer can provide input regarding whether there should be a forfeiture, and if so, 
what the amount of contributions and benefits effected by the forfeiture should be.  
The procedures also include, if timely requested, the matter being brought to the Board 
and the Superior Court.  Finally, the amended procedures clarify that the employer 
should provide SamCERA’s staff with the member’s official job duties and any other 
documents which describe the member’s official duties. 

Attachments 
Resolution amending the Board of Retirement’s “Procedure for Felony Forfeitures.” 
Amended Procedure for Felony Forfeitures (Clean) 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 Amended Procedure for Felony Forfeitures (Redline) 



 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-__  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT OF THE 
BOARD OF RETIREMENT’S PROCEDURE FOR FELONY FORFEITURES 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, under the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), 
members of SamCERA who have been convicted after January 1, 2013 of a felony, as 
described Govt. Code sections 7522.72 and 7522.74, must forfeit certain accrued rights 
and benefits in SamCERA if they are a member at the time the felony is committed 
retroactive to the earliest date of the commission of the crime and shall not accrue 
further benefits; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2018, this Board adopted a procedure for felony forfeitures that provided the 

member with notice, a right to be heard and right to appeal staff level decisions prior to 
any forfeiture action; and.  

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the recent processing of certain felony forfeiture matters, staff has 

determined that certain clarifications of the procedures would be beneficial; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the amendments to the “Board of Retirement Procedure for 

Felony Forfeitures” and desires to adopt such policy; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board hereby adopts the attached amended “Board of 

Retirement Procedure for Felony Forfeitures.” 
 
 

* * * * * 
Regularly passed and adopted, by the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association, 
Board of Retirement, on April 25, 2023. 
 
Ayes, Trustees: 
  
Noes, Trustees:  
 
Absent, Trustees:  
 
Abstain, Trustees:  
 
__________________________________________ 
Alma Salas, Board Secretary 
SamCERA 



1 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT PROCEDURE FOR FELONY FORFEITURES 
 
 
I.  PURPOSE 
 
Under the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), members (also 
referred to herein as “employees”) who have been convicted on or after January 1, 2013, by a 
state or federal trial court of any felony for conduct as described below, must forfeit all accrued 
rights and benefits in any public retirement system in which they are a member at the time the 
felony is committed, retroactive to the earliest date of the commission of the crime, and shall 
not accrue further benefits in that public retirement system, effective on the date of the 
conviction. (Govt. Code sections 7522.72 and 7522.74.)  Following the conviction for any felony, 
these statutes require the forfeiture of all accrued rights and benefits for conduct: 
 

 Arising out of or in the performance of the member’s official duties, or 

 In pursuit of the office or appointment, or 

 In connection with obtaining salary, disability retirement, service retirement, or 
other benefits. 

 
Elected public officers convicted of certain felonies may be subject to a felony forfeiture based 
on different conduct. 
 
The employee and the prosecuting agency are required by law to notify the employer within 60 
days of the felony conviction.  The employer is required by law to notify SamCERA within 90 
days of an employee’s conviction. 
 
II.  FELONY FORFEITURE PROCESS 
 

A.  Notifying SamCERA of Felony Conviction and Providing Information. 
 
The employer is required by law to notify SamCERA within 90 days of an employee’s 
conviction. (Govt. Code sections 7522.72(f) and 7522.74(f).)  In notifying SamCERA of 
the felony conviction, the employer is required to provide SamCERA with the following 
information, with a copy sent to the member: 

 
1.  Name of member and Social Security number and/or employee ID. 
 
2.  Date of conviction which is the date that the member pleads guilty, or when 

the judge (or jury) decides the case. 
 
3.  Date of the earliest commission of the subject felony (or felonies) as 

reflected in the court proceeding. 
 
4.  Name of the court(s) in which the case was heard. 



2 

5.  Name and contact information for the prosecuting attorney. 
 
6.  Description of the felony charges for which the member was convicted. 
 
7.  Copy of court documents related to member’s conviction/guilty plea. 
 
8.  Information relating to whether the felony offense for which the conviction 

was entered was committed during the conduct or performance of the 
member’s official job duties. Such information shall include the member’s 
official job duties as well as any other departmental documents regarding 
any special projects or other official responsibilities carried out by the 
member which may not otherwise be set forth in such job duties. 

 
B.  Review of Information. 

 
Staff will review the charges and determine what additional information, if any, is 
needed from the employer, the member, and/or the prosecuting agency to make the 
required determinations.  Staff is not limited to the records of the criminal proceeding in 
gathering the information it believes is appropriate.  Staff may request the Board to 
exercise its subpoena power under Govt. Code section 31535. 

 
C.  Notice of Initial Determination. 

 
After staff’s initial review, staff will send a Notice of Initial Determination to the member 
and the employer as to the applicability of the felony forfeiture law to the facts.  The 
Notice will include: 
 

1.  A copy of this Procedure. 
 
2.  A statement on applicability of the felony forfeiture statutes and, if 

applicable, a statement of the impact of the forfeiture on the member’s 
benefits, and the applicable proposed actions as set forth in Section C.3. or 
C.4. below. 

 
3.  For those members who are retired: 

 
(a) The Notice will state the amount of member contributions to be 

refunded to the member (which shall be returned without interest). 
Such refunds, if any, shall be paid to the member in accordance with 
applicable law and SamCERA’s standard procedures for the payment 
of refunds. 

 
(b) Staff will review the member’s account to determine the member’s 

service credits and final average compensation (“FAC”) as if the 
member deferred as of the earliest date of the commission of the 
subject felony. Staff will then determine whether the member had 



3 

sufficient service credit to retire as of the earliest date of the 
commission of the subject felony. 

 
(i) If the member did not have sufficient service credit to retire as 

of the earliest date of the commission of the subject felony, 
the Notice will state that the retirement will be rescinded, and 
the member placed into a deferred status until the member 
qualifies for retirement. 

 
(ii)  If the member did have sufficient service credit to retire as of 

the earliest date of the commission of the subject felony, the 
Notice will state the member’s recalculated retirement 
allowance reflecting the changes to service credits, age factor, 
and final average compensation. 

 
(c) If, as a result of the member’s recalculated retirement allowance (see 

subsection 3(b)(ii) above), staff determines that the member has 
received an overpayment of benefits, then any contributions (without 
interest) to be refunded pursuant to subsection 3(a) above) will be 
offset against such overpayment.  If the contributions to be returned 
to the member exceed the overpaid benefit amounts, then the 
difference in such amounts shall be paid to the member in 
accordance with applicable law and SamCERA’s standard procedures 
for the payment of refunds.  If the overpayment in benefits to the 
member exceed the contributions to be refunded, then staff shall 
contact the member to arrange for the collection of the difference in 
accordance with applicable law and SamCERA’s standard collection 
procedures.  For purposes of this Procedure, “overpayment” includes 
compounded interest on the principal amount of any such 
overpayment at SamCERA’s actuarial assumed rate(s) of interest in 
effect during the forfeiture period. 

 
4.  For those members who are active or deferred: 
 

(a)  Staff will determine the amount of contributions paid, interest 
accrued on said contributions, and service credit earned on and after 
the earliest date of the commission of the subject felony to the date 
of conviction. 
 

(b) The Notice will list the amount of service credit and funds to be 
removed from the member’s account and the amount of interest on 
those contributions to be forfeited.  Said funds (without interest) shall 
be paid to the member in accordance with applicable law and 
SamCERA’s standard procedures for the payment of refunds. 
 



4 

(c)  The Notice will state that, for non‐forfeited funds remaining in the 
account, interest will continue to accrue. 
 

(d) The Notice will list the date that the member will be deemed to be a 
deferred member for all purposes, including but not limited to 
retirement eligibility. This date will be the earliest date of the 
commission of the subject felony. 
 

5.  The Notice of Initial Determination shall list the deadline to respond which 
shall be no less than three weeks from the date of the Notice. 

 
D.  Response to Initial Determination 

 
Prior to the deadline stated in the Notice of the Initial Determination, both the member 
and the employer may provide additional input regarding the applicability to the felony 
forfeiture provisions and/or the impact of the forfeiture as described in the Notice.  
Such additional information from the member or employer shall be shared by SamCERA 
with the employer or member, as applicable.  After the member and or employer have 
submitted any additional information or comments, staff’s initial determination may be 
amended (or not). Staff will notify the member and the employer if the Initial 
Determination will be amended.  Any amended Initial Determination will be sent to the 
employee and employer for information only.  The Initial Determination, as may be 
amended (or not), and all supporting documents will be given to the Chief Executive 
Officer for review. 

 
E.  Chief Executive Officer Determination 

 
After the review of the materials, the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Executive 
Officer’s designee, will send a written decision to the member and the employer that 
will, among other items, state the Chief Executive’s Officer’s determination on the 
following: 
 

1.   Whether or not the felony conviction arose out of or in the performance of 
official duties, or in pursuit of the office or appointment, or in connection 
with obtaining salary, disability retirement, service retirement, or other 
benefits, or was otherwise subject to forfeiture.  If the determination is that 
the member’s account is subject to forfeiture, the Notice will state:  
 

2.   The earliest date of the commission of the subject felony and date of 
conviction. 
 

3.  The amount of service credit, contributions, and interest to be forfeited by 
the active, retired, or deferred member. 
 

4.  For a retired member, the amount of any overpayments, the monthly 
adjustment going forward and the manner and time in which SamCERA will 



5 

recover any overpaid benefits due from the member and the effective date 
of the changes. 

 
5.  Any additional proposed actions to be taken as set forth in Section C.3. or 

C.4. above. 
 
6.  The ability to challenge the Chief Executive Officer’s determination by 

bringing the matter to the Board of Retirement and the deadline to submit 
that written challenge. 

 
F.  Challenging the Chief Executive Officer’s Determination 

 
The member may challenge the Chief Executive Officer’s decision by submitting a 
written challenge no later than 30 days from the date of written notice of the Chief 
Executive Officer’s Notice of Determination. 
 

1. If the Chief Executive Officer’s decision is not timely challenged, it will be 
deemed final and binding. 

 
2. A timely challenge will be heard by the Board of Retirement.  Notice of the 

date and time of the hearing by the Board of Retirement will be provided to 
the member along with any instructions regarding the submission of 
documents and other evidence as necessary. 

 
3.  The matter will be placed on the Board of Retirement’s regular public agenda 

for its review, findings, and decision. In making its determination, the Board 
may appoint a hearing officer to make findings and recommendations in 
accordance with Govt. Code section 31533. 
 

G.  Appeal of the Action of the Board. 
 
If the member is dissatisfied with the Board’s action, the member may obtain judicial 
review by filing a petition for a writ of mandate in accordance with the Code of Civil 
Procedure within 90 days of the date of the written notice of the Board’s action. If a 
petition for writ of mandate is not timely filed, the Board’s action shall be deemed final 
and binding. 

 
III.  ACTIONS TAKEN AFTER A DECISION TO FORFEIT IS FINAL  
 
SamCERA will notify the Court and District Attorney at least three business days prior to any 
release of the forfeited funds to the member.  (Govt. Code sections 7522.72(d)(2) and 
7522.74(d)(2).) 
 
Any corresponding employer contributions will stay in the employer’s advance reserve account 
and will be taken into consideration at the end of the fiscal year as part of the reconciliation 
process used for employer contributions. 



6 

 
If there is a reversal of the conviction by an appellate court decision, the member has the 
option to redeposit the contributions from the forfeited period.  (Govt. Code sections 
7522.72(h) and 7522.74(h).) 



1 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT PROCEDURE FOR FELONY FORFEITURES 
 
 
I.  PURPOSE 
 
Under the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), members (also 
referred to herein as “employees”employees herein) who have been convicted on or after 
January 1, 2013, by a state or federal trial court of any felony under the law for conduct arising 
out of or in the performance of his or her official dutiesas described below, must forfeit all 
accrued rights and benefits in any public retirement system in which they are a member at the 
time the felony is committed, retroactive to the earliest date of the first commission date of the 
crime, and shall not accrue further benefits in that public retirement system, effective on the 
date of the conviction. (Govt. Code sections 7522.72 and 7522.74.)  Following the conviction for 
any felony, these statutes require the forfeiture of all accrued rights and benefits for conduct: 
 

 Arising out of or in the performance of the member’s official duties, or 

 In pursuit of the office or appointment, or 

 In connection with obtaining salary, disability retirement, service retirement, or 
other benefits. 

 
Elected public officers convicted of certain felonies may be subject to a felony forfeiture based 
on different conduct. 
 
The employee and the prosecuting agency are required by law to notify the employer within 60 
days of the felony conviction.  The employer is required by law to notify SamCERA within 90 
days of an employee’s conviction. 
 
II.  FELONY FORFEITURE PROCESS 
 

A.  Notifying SamCERA of Felony Conviction and Providing Information. 
 
The employer is required by law to notify SamCERA within 90 days of an employee’s 
conviction. (Govt. Code sections 7522.72(f) and 7522.74(f).)  In notifying SamCERA of 
the felony conviction, the employer is required to provide SamCERA with the following 
information, with a copy sent to the member: 

 
1.  Name of member and Social Security number and/or employee ID. 
 
2.  Date of conviction which is the date that the member pleads guilty, or when 

the judge (or jury) decides the case. 
 
3.  Date of the earliest of the commission of the subject felony (or felonies) as 

reflected in the court proceeding. 
 



2 

4.  Name of the court(s) in which the case was heard. 
5.  Name and contact information for the prosecuting attorney. 
 
6.  Description of the felony charges for which the member was convicted. 
 
7.  Copy of court documents related to member’s conviction/guilty plea. 
 
8.  Information relating to whether the felony offense for which the conviction 

was entered was committed during the conduct or performance of the 
member’s official job duties. Such information shall include the member’s 
official job duties as well as any other departmental documents regarding 
any special projects or other official responsibilities carried out by the 
member which may not otherwise be set forth in such job duties. 

 
B.  Review of Information. 

 
Staff will review the charges and determine what additional information, if any, is 
needed from the employer, the member, and/or the prosecuting agency to make the 
required determinations.  Staff is not limited to the records of the criminal proceeding in 
gathering the information it believes is appropriate.  Staff may request the Board to 
exercise its subpoena power under Govt. Code section 31535. 

 
C.  Notice of Initial Determination. 

 
After staff’s initial review, staff will send a Notice of Initial Determination to the member 
and the employer as to the applicability of the felony forfeiture law to the facts.  The 
Notice will include: 
 

1.  A copy of this Procedure. 
 
2.  A statement on applicability of the felony forfeiture statutes and, if 

applicable, a statement of the impact of the forfeiture on the member’s 
benefits, and the applicable proposed actions as set forth in Section C.3. or 
C.4. below. 

 
3.  For those members who are retired: 

 
(a) The Notice will state that the amount of member contributions to be 

refunded to the member (without which shall be returned without 
interest). Such refunds, if any, shall be paid to the member in 
accordance with applicable law and SamCERA’s standard procedures 
for the payment of refunds. 

 
(a) If there has been an overpayment, the contribution refund without 

interest will be an offset to the overpayment and the refund amount 
will only be those the contributions exceed the amount of the 



3 

overpayment (see Govt. Code section 7522.72(d)(1).)  For purposes of 
this Procedure, “overpayment” includes compounded interest on the 
principal amount of any such overpayment at SamCERA’s actuarial 
assumed rate(s) of interest in effect during the forfeiture period. 

  
(b) Staff will review the member’s account to determine the member’s 

service credits and final average compensation (“FAC”) as if the 
member deferred as of the earliest date of the first commission of the 
subject felony. Staff will then determine whether the member had 
sufficient service credit to retire as of the earliest date of the first 
commission of the subject felony. 

 
(i) If the member did not have sufficient service credit to retire as 

of the earliest date of the first commission of the subject 
felony, the Notice will state that the retirement will be 
rescinded, and the member placed into a deferred status until 
the member has sufficient eligible service to qualifyqualifies 
for retirement. 

 
(ii)  If the member did have sufficient eligible service credit to 

retire as of the earliest date of the first commission of the 
subject felony, the Notice will state the member’s recalculated 
retirement allowance reflecting the changes to service credits, 
age factor, and final average salarycompensation. 

 
(c) If, as a result of the member’s recalculated retirement allowance (see 

subsection 3(b)(ii) above), staff determines that the member has 
received an overpayment of benefits, then any contributions (without 
interest) to be refunded pursuant to subsection 3(a) above) will be 
offset against such overpayment.  If the contributions to be returned 
to the member exceed the overpaid benefit amounts, then the 
difference in such amounts shall be paid to the member in 
accordance with applicable law and SamCERA’s standard procedures 
for the payment of refunds.  If the overpayment in benefits to the 
member exceed the contributions to be refunded, then staff shall 
contact the member to arrange for the collection of the difference in 
accordance with applicable law and SamCERA’s standard collection 
procedures.  For purposes of this Procedure, “overpayment” includes 
compounded interest on the principal amount of any such 
overpayment at SamCERA’s actuarial assumed rate(s) of interest in 
effect during the forfeiture period. 

 
4.  For those members who are active or deferred: 
 

(a)  Staff will determine the amount of contributions paid, interest 
accrued on said contributions, and service credit earned from on and 



4 

after the earliest date of first the commission of the subject felony to 
the date of conviction. 
 

(b) The Notice will list the amount of service credit and funds to be 
removed from the member’s account and the amount of interest on 
those contributions to be forfeited.  Said funds (without interest) shall 
be paid to the member in accordance with applicable law and 
SamCERA’s standard procedures for the payment of refunds. 
 

(c)  The Notice will state that, for non‐forfeited funds remaining in the 
account, interest will continue to accrue. 
 

(d) The Notice will list the date that the member will be deemed to be a 
deferred member for all purposes, including but not limited to 
retirement eligibility. This date will be the earliest date of first the 
commission of the subject felony. 
 

5.  The Notice of Initial Determination shall list the deadline to respond which 
shall be no less than three weeks from the date of the Notice. 

 
D.  Response to Initial Determination 

 
Prior to the deadline stated in the Notice of the Initial Determination, both the member 
and the employer may provide additional input regarding the applicability to the felony 
forfeiture provisions and/or the impact of the forfeiture as described in the Notice.  
Such additional information from the member or employer shall be shared by SamCERA 
with the employer or member, as applicable.  After the member and or employer have 
submitted any additional information or comments, staff’s initial determination may be 
amended (or not). Staff will notify the member and the employer if the Initial 
Determination will be amended or not.  Any amended Initial Determination will be sent 
to the employee and employer for information only.  The Initial Determination, as may 
be amended (or not), and all supporting documents will be given to the Chief Executive 
Officer for review. 

 
E.  Chief Executive Officer Determination 

 
After the review of the materials, the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Executive 
Officer’s designee, will send a written decision to the member and the employer that 
will, among other items, state the Chief Executive’s Officer’s determination on the 
following: 
 

1.   Whether or not the felony conviction arose out of or in the performance of 
official duties, or in pursuit of the office or appointment, or in connection 
with obtaining salary, disability retirement, service retirement, or other 
benefits, or was otherwise subject to forfeiture.  If the determination is that 



5 

the member’s account is subject to forfeiture, the Notice will state:  
 

2.   The earliest date of first the commission of the subject felony and date of 
conviction. 
 

3.  The amount of service credit, contributions, and interest to be forfeited by 
the active, retired, or deferred member. 
 

4.  For a retired member, the amount of any overpayments, the monthly 
adjustment going forward and the manner and time in which SamCERA will 
recover any overpaid benefits due from the member and the effective date 
of the changes. 

 
5.  Any additional proposed actions to be taken as set forth in Section C.(3.) and 

or C.(4.) above. 
 
6.  The aAbility to challenge the Chief Executive Officer’s determination by 

bringing the matter to the Board of Retirement and the deadline to submit 
that written challenge. 

 
F.  Challenging the Chief Executive Officer’s Determination 

 
The member may challenge the Chief Executive Officer’s decision by submitting a 
written challenge no later than 30 days from the date of written notice of the Chief 
Executive Officer’s Notice of Determination. 
 

1. If the Chief Executive Officer’s decision is not timely challenged, it will be 
deemed final and binding. 

 
2. A timely challenge will be heard by the Board of Retirement.  Notice of the 

date and time of the hearing by the Board of Retirement will be provided to 
the member along with any instructions regarding the submission of 
documents and other evidence as necessary. 

 
3.  The matter will be placed on the Board of Retirement’s regular public agenda 

for its review, findings, and decision. In making its determination, the Board 
may appoint a hearing officer to make findings and recommendations in 
accordance with Govt. Code section 31533. 
 

G.  Appeal of the Action of the Board. 
 
If the member is dissatisfied with the Board’s action, the member may obtain judicial 
review by filing a petition for a writ of mandate in accordance with the Code of Civil 
Procedure within 90 days of the date of the written notice of the Board’s action. If a 
petition for writ of mandate is not timely filed, the Board’s action shall be deemed final 
and binding. 



6 

 
III.  ACTIONS TAKEN AFTER A DECISION TO FORFEIT IS FINAL  
 
SamCERA will notify the Court and District Attorney at least three business days prior to the any 
release of the forfeited funds to the member.  (Govt. Code sections 7522.72(d)(2) and 
7522.74(d)(2).) 
 
The Any corresponding employer contributions will stay in the employer’s advance reserve 
account and will be taken into consideration at the end of the fiscal year as part of the 
reconciliation process used for employer contributions. 
 
If there is a reversal of the conviction by an appellate court decision, the member has the 
option to redeposit the contributions from the forfeited period.  (Govt. Code sections 
7522.72(h) and 7522.74(h).) 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

1 

April 25, 2023   Agenda Item 7.3 

TO:    Board of Retirement 

FROM:   Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Board of Retirement Strategic Plan For 2023-2028 

Recommendation 
Approve the Board of Retirement Strategic Plan for 2023-2028. 

Background 
The Board’s current Strategic Plan was approved in 2018 and set the Board’s strategy for the 
next five years.  In July of 2022, the Board gave direction to staff to begin the process to update 
the Strategic Plan.  Staff contracted with BridgeGroup, LLC, who led the Board through the 
process to update the Strategic Plan.  The process featured a survey of Board members that 
captured their comments and thoughts on the current strategic plan, including the Vision, 
Mission, Goals and the Focus Priorities and any new strategic priorities that should have the 
Board’s focus.  

Discussion 
After receiving input and direction from the Board through an iterative process, staff has 
developed an updated Strategic Plan that captures the Board’s intentions.  As a result of the 
process, the Board made some adjustments and updates to the Mission, Vision, Goals and 
Focus Priorities.  Additionally, the Board added a sixth priority, “Enhance the member 
experience.”  The draft Strategic Plan is attached. 

Part of the update to the Strategic Plan focused on metrics that the Board can use to gauge the 
progress as work begins to execute the plan.  Staff will propose some recommended metrics 
and methods that will provide insight into the Board’s progress over the next five years.    

Attachment 
Draft Board of Retirement Strategic Plan 2023-2028 



���������	
�������	��	�������������������



����������	

	��
����������������������������������������������������������������������������  �����������������!�������������������!������ ����������������������� ��������"#������$��%&'(��)���������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������� ����������������������"
������



�����



��������	
�	�	�������������



���������	
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��!��������"�����������#����$	%&&%'()%&%'( *'
+&



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 7.4 

TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Approval of SACRS Voting Delegate for the SACRS Spring 2023 Business 
Meeting and Direction to Voting Delegate 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board designate Scott Hood, CEO as the Voting Delegate to cast 
SamCERA’s votes at the SACRS Spring 2023 Conference. 

Staff further recommends that the Board provide direction to the Voting Delegate that is 
in the best interest of SamCERA.  

Background 
Prior to each SACRS conference the retirement boards are asked to select the individuals 
from each county system who are authorized to serve as voting delegate and alternate 
voting delegates at the conference business meeting. 

Discussion 
SamCERA normally selects from attendees who plan to attend the Friday morning 
business meeting.  Delegates can be either trustees or staff.   

The business meeting will occur on the last morning of the conference, at 10:15 a.m., 
Friday, May 12, 2023.   

Attachment 
Spring 2023 SACRS Business Meeting Packet 



�

�

��������������	
���	��	����		��������	������	
���������������� ���!"��"#"$�!#%!&��'�(�!!%$#��'���)�����*+�),�-.�/+*,�.�0�12��1�-�3�+4,��56�17-*+.�89888�:�;;�,,'���
<<=



�

�

�����������������	�
���������������������������������������������������������� �!��"�#�����������"������$�� #�%����������������&!�&���'������������������(�)!��*��+,�,�-��,��.�/�
0���������&�����������&�����"�&!�&���������� #���������&��(�������!�������������������1�2��3)��1�����������(�)�&��1��4&���������������&�����������56���!��"�������������"�������4�����1�!��������� �!��"�7�&)�"����#����������8�3����9:;<�$ 7#8%��������������� �)��������=�(�������� ������������;9>?6���*���@*'���������������������2���������(����)���������)�1��)���(��&�����������������������!��"�������������"�����*����������+,�,�-��,�����������������������1���A���������))����������(������9:;<�����#�����������"�������"��4����1��1������������'�&��(����1���!��������������)"A��1�)�1��)�����*��	�
������������3��2��B���1���"��7�!�����������(���������!&&����� CCD



�

�

�� ������������������	
�������	
�����
�����	�������������������������������������������	�����	
���������� ����
�!	����������
���"#"""���$$������ ���������$	���
��	�
���!�%	��&�
'������
����
���	
���(����������
������������	�
�)	$$	�������
�����(��� �� *+�,-./,�,01234�/566�.766����$��8���$����9��
����(������������:������� ;+�,3<=327=0>1�/3?5=2�@�/3<3AB3�7CD�EA63����$��8���$����9��
����(������������:������� FG�H�%��I�����������������	
�������	
���	
����� J+�K=371L=3=>1�/3?5=2�@�/3<3AB3�7CD�EA63�M����
�N��O��
��N��
��(����������8���������� FG�M�$�����������I������������	
�
:	�$��� P+�,-./,�Q=31AD3C2�/3?5=2�@�R5�-<2A5C�S	%	�
�T�����&����
��$����(��������������	��
�� FG�����������	��
�U ����� V+�,-./,�W3XA1672AB3�.544A2233�Y?D723�Z�R5�-<2A5C�(�	:����
����:����
���(����
��!�%��H�$��
���$�������(�����������&��	�$�	%������	�����#�[�	���� FG������&��	�$�	%���� ����� \+�,-./,�R54AC72A5C�.544A2233�@�]̂]_@]̂]̀�,-./,�a57=D�5b�cA=3<25=1�d63<2A5C1�Z�-<2A5C�!�
��:�$$	�������
�!	�����(����������H��	
�	�
�����	����[�	��� FG��������������O�!	��:����($�:	�
������#���e��������� ffg



�

�

�����������	
�������������
������������������������� !"����# "��#$%&�� '((&����� )�&��� *+��# "��,-,./,-,,�#��$���#$%&��� 0��������1	��2�
�����33
�������������4�����
���55�6'7'8&9)��:';�#�����;� !"#���# "��!%$9��&'�� '((&����� )�&��� *+��# "��#��$����7�&���,-,<� '�=����9��!���$��&'�;>?��%@�9A�� B��������C��D�23���33
�������������4�����
������&%�E�9�'���%�� '����� ';��� !"#���# "��6�'���(� '((&����� )�&��� *+��# "��#��$����7�&���,-,<� '�=����9��"�7'���� FG���������HH
I
2�����33
�������������4�����
���5'���������%;����%��E&�����&$(���# "��#==&�&���� '((&����� )�&��� *+�#==&�&���� '((&�����J7%����� FF��������KLI2MN���33
�������������4�����
���O��@����P����)������O�����%&�'� !"#���# "��O���8;� '((&����� )�&��� *+�O���8;� '((&�����J7%����� FQ����������
�D����H�������K��2R���������N���4�����
���#���7��;�����&���=�'(���9)�@���A'$��8&����&�������7'���'���)�&��@���A'$�;�=�'(�S�%��;%����E���.-�)T�� *+�#%(&�&;����'��O���A'$��U+�#==&�&����O���A'$��V+�#��'�����O���A'$��W+��&;�@&�&��>�7����&'�;�X�O���=&�;� '(@'�O���A'$��Y+�Z��������#$%&�'�;�O���A'$��[+�Z���;�(�����==&9���O���A'$��\+���=����]�$;����O���A'$��+̂�_�������]�$;����O���A'$��� F̀���	a����3����b�c��;9)�%$��%��# "��O$;&��;;�E���&���8&���@��)��%�?�&%����b'��(@���.-��,-,<������)���(�&�"��9)'�:�;�6��(�;�"�;'���X��7��&��"��9)'�E&������ #T� dde



�

�

�����������	
������������������������������������������������ ��!��"��

##$



�

�

�����������	
�������������������������������������
������������� ��������� ���� !���"#������������� ����!$��#��%&'()*'� � � �+,-./'�+,0.'� � � �1/)0-,� � � �2(3)/4'&� � � �5)/-� � � �6,0�%-7)&)0� � � �8'/4-� � � �8)-*,94-,� � � �8)/9)*� � � �:/'-7)� � � �;'9/'()-.,� � � �;'-�<)/-'/*4-,� � � �;'-�=4)7,� � � �;'-�>,'?@4-� � � �;'-�8'.),� � � �;'-.'�<'/A'/'�� � �;,-,('� � � �;.'-40&'@0� � � �B@&'/)� � � �C)-.@/'� � � �DE���� � � ��
FFG



�

�

���������	�
������������������	����������������������� !�"���#$%&��&�#%&�&�'!�(�!)�� �*�+����,-,,�&�#%&�./01"�00�2��(1"��21"/(�0���

334



�

�

���������	
�������	
���	
�������	������������������������������������� �����!�������
"��#�
�����"$�����
"��������%%������������&��%	���
��	�
���'��	��#�
(������
����
���	
���)���������
������������	�
�*	%%	�������
�����)���+,,-./0�1233,4�-5�564,6�2-�7897:�2;�<=�>2?.4�+21>5/234@�ABCDA�E.1,�F6,G.4,/-��ABCDA�H5264�5I�>.6,1-56G�./�B--,/42/1,9�'��	����"'�
�%���J	"��&���	��
K����%��L���%������"�����K�M����
�N��O��
��L��������K�'��	��P	%������������������K�J����*	%%	�����������������K�'�
��"�%%	�����Q����	���&���&���	��
��*�%%���	R�	���OO	%	�������	����$�	��B<G,/-9�J	�	�
�P�����������&���	��
���S���������������%%���%%����%��L���%����T��
����)������������"�������U���������������������&����
��%���������
�������������
���Q�V��	�%��N��
��#����
��%�������	
�����"����T��
������"����
�����
����
���	
�����
�'	�������
�M��W�	
����
���������
�������������
�������
	�%�����L�%������
��J�
����B<G,/����
��"	
���XY�A,16,-26=ZG�D,[56-�\�D,1,.?,�2/4�].3,����%��L���%����T��
����)������������"������� �S��V�	
����������������	
�������	
���	
�������	�
������	�
����VV�����$���V�	
����������������	
�������	
���	
�����̂������	��������
�'	�������
�S��
������	
����
��_�����U�����������
9���
��"	
����	�
�&�������Ù�̀��� ���� aab



�

�

���������	���
�������������������������������������� ��!��"���#$%&!�'&#%'�(�"�)��"��� &*���+,�-�&�.�)/�0100�23���43�+)�5*�010060107�&����+�5��."/�8�/3���&9�&� �/3���/���::��;"�/<"�(�"�)��"�=)��":��/�>�)�)�? 3//"��?,�2�")���#���/,*�0��9�@ :"�3�+�#���/,�A")9�BC�D�9�1�&?)"�/9�8"���43���8�/3���E�))")�BC616B��8�/3���59�&� �/3���/���::��;"�/<"�010060107�&����+�5��."/�>�)�)�? 3//"��?,�8��3��#���/,*�0��9�'�4�� "�/��#���/,�A")9�BC�D�9�1�&?)"�/9�8"���43���8�/3���E�))")�BC616B��F��GHI�G�J�����������������K�H�����L3;3���M��,!�N�)�&�."+")�#$%&!�'&#%'�E�")3�"�/�� &*�'&#%'�E�")3�"�/�O:��/"�P3)4�))3��!�����4/3���/�Q"�*�@��L3;3���M��,=)��?)"�4"!�P�;3��8�4P���+�!�L34"�E�")3�"�/!�:��;3�"����;"�?�+��:��/"�����:4� 3�.�)/��/".34�.��+)����/<"�5���������/<"�0107�,"��*��R��GHI�G�S�T���������IUU������V������W�K�H�����$�34�'/"��!�'�4�� "�/��#$%'�����P�;"�D"+)"�!�&+� "���#$%&�-�'&#%'�N".3)+�/3;"�#�  3//""�#�6#<�3�)�� &*�0100�N".3)+�/3;"�%":��/�-�D��&4/3���P3)4�))3��!�����4/3���/�Q"�*�$�34�'/"���.�;"���;"�?�+��":��/����/<"�4�  3//""=)��"43)3���/��:��;3�"� ��"���/�"�4<�/��/<"�),)/" )*�(<"�4�  3//""�>3++�?"�:��;3�3�.�/" :+�/")�����:�)3/3���+"//"�)�/��/<"�+".3)+�/��"!�+".3)+�/3;"��":�")"�/�/3���4��/�4/�3���� �/3�������.�3�"+3�")�����)�? 3//3�.�+"//"�)�/��/<"�+".3)+�/��"*��� XXY



�

�

����������	
����	���	

������������������������������	���	��������	�����	����������� !"#$%�&���� #'(�)*+�%�&�)+&�,(- ��" (��)(-- ""##�).� $�� �/�&�)+&�*�#�" (��,(" �#�010230104�� !�5!! (��(��6%��(���" (�/���������� !"#$��!7#8�!6!"#-!�"(���#$"�!"�99���8�"$5!"##!�".�"�- '."�:#� �"#$#!"#8� ��!#$; �'�(��".#�<(�$8�".�"�".#�#�#�" (�!�:#' ��=��5�$6�>%�0102/��?���������@A�����B	C�����	�����	��&"#;#��#���#6%�D$��'#�)*+&%�&�)+&��58 "�)(-- ""##�).� $�� �/��58 "�)(-- ""##�$#E($"F;#$:���5E8�"#�� !�5!! (��(��6%��(���" (�/�&"#;#��#���#6�$#E($"#8�".�"�".#����5����58 "�G ���:#�E$#!#�"#8�"(�".#�<(�$8� ��=��5�$6�0102���8�E$#!#�"#8�"(�".#�-#-:#$!. E��"�".#�&E$ �'�0102�<5! �#!!��##" �'/��H���������A@���	���	

��������B	C�����	�����	��==�I(E(G �.%�J(!���'#�#!�)*+�%�&�)+&�*85��" (��)(-- ""##�).� $�� �/�&�)+&����5���K����)(�9#$#��#�0100�*;��5�" (�!F;#$:���5E8�"#�� !�5!! (��(��6%��(���" (�/�==�I(E(G �.�E$(; 8#8���;#$:���$#E($"�(9�".#�*85��" (���(-- ""##�-##" �'���8�$#; #G�(9�����!#!! (�!/�==�$#E($"#8�".�"�".#�'$(5E�".(5'."� "�G�!���'$#�"��(�9#$#��#%�$#���6�� 7#8�L, �#�< 7#%M���$7�&�.�$#�:$( �.�7#6�("#�!E#�7#$%�-(8#$�"($�=(.���N�'(!" �(���8�".#�(;#$�����(�9#$#��#/�O#��("#8�".�"�".#�G. �#�".#��'#�8�� ���58#8���$��'#�(9�8 ;#$! "6�(9�!E#�7#$!%� ��".#�95"5$#� "�G(5�8�:#�'$#�"� 9�".#�I$('$�-��(-- ""##��(5�8� ���58#�-($#�G(-#�/�P.#�)(-- ""##�G ���E$(; 8#���95���$#E($"�"(�".#�<(�$8� ��=��5�$6�0102/��Q��������RC	SC
��	

��������B	C�����	�����	����; 8�����(���8%�)(�"$��)(!"��)*+�%�&�)+&�I$('$�-�)(-- ""##�).� $��/�I$('$�-�)(-- ""##�$#E($"F;#$:���5E8�"#�� � !�5!! (��(��6%��(���" (�/���; 8�����(���8�".��7#8�".#��(-- ""##�-#-:#$!�� ��8�G#��(-#8�9##8:��7�; ��".#�#;��5�" (�!�(�� �#/������� TUT



�

�

�����������		
�
�������
����������������
���������������������� �!������"#$%"�#&&����'(�$)  �''((�$*����� #+�#&&����'(�$)  �''((��(,)�'-.(�/���0,1�'(�2�34033�)5�)5����5)��4'�)5+�������������,�).�1(1���.(�/���0,1�'(�)5�'*(�#&&����'(�/�(��)0'��51�'*(�5(6��&&����'(� ( /(�3+�7(��55)054(1�'*�'�5) �5�'�)53�')�/(�)5�'*(�#&&����'(�$)  �''((���(�),(5��80���&�(1� ( /(�3� ���30/ �'�'*(����5'(�(3'�.���'*(�)5��5(�,)�'���)5�"#$%"�6(/3�'(+�9*(�3(�(4'�)5�,�)4(33��3��.����/�(��5�'*(�#&&����'(�:0�1(��5(3�&)��'*)3(�'*�'�6�5'� )�(��5&)� �'�)5��)��&((��&�((�')�4)5'�4'�������1��(4'��+�������������;<��=>�����
����������������
���!��/����7�55�*��"�5�!(�5��1�5)�$?%#��"#$%"�!���63�$)  �''((�$*����� #+�!���63�$)  �''((��(,)�'-.(�/���0,1�'(�@)��(,)�'+���A��������B�������	�������;���C�D������>��������
���#��(,�(3(5'�'�.(�&�) �(�4*�/�(��)0'�6����E�.(����(,)�'�)5�'*(��� (('�5E3+��� #+�#1 �5�3'��')�3�F�!���5�G4H(�.(���"�5�I)�80�5�$?%#��E�.(���.(�/����(,)�'�)5�'*(�#1 �5�3'��')�3�/�(��)0'��6(����''(51(1+�!���5�%�4*��13��"�5'��!��/����$?%"�6����/(�'*(�",��5E�JKJL� )1(��')�+�!+�$)053(��F�#��)5�M�*((5��90���(�$?%#��E�.(���.(�/����(,)�'�)5�'*(�$)053(��/�(��)0'+�9*(�E�)0,�1�34033(1�$�/(��"(40��'���#!�JNNO�!�)65�#4'�9(�(4)5&(�(54�5E��P�'�E�'�)5�0,1�'(��51�Q�),)3(1�"?$�%0�(3+�%�4*(����''��"�5�2�(E)�$?%#�6����/(�'*(�",��5E�JKJL� )1(��')�+��$+�2�3�/���'�-R,(��'�)53�S�!(5(&�'3�$) /)�T�$���)3�!����)3��#�� (1��$?%#��,�).�1(1���.(�/���0,1�'(��E))1�3(33�)5��51�6(����''(51(1+�9*(�E�)0,�1�34033(1�P#$?%#U3�!(5(&�'�Q�)'(4'�)5�V5�'��%('��((�!(5(&�'3�Q�)'(4'�)5��51�@(6�R5��5(�2�3�/���'��#,,��4�'�)5�Q�)4(33��51�Q�,(��')�2�E�'���,��'&)� 3+�$)��5�!�3*),��"�5�!(�5��1�5)�$?%#��6����/(�'*(�",��5E�JKJL�G)1(��')�+�2+�W5'(�5���#01�')�3�T�@)��(,)�'�?+�W5.(3' (5'�R&&�4(�3�T�@)��(,)�'��+�"�&('��9�03'((3�T�!���5������� 3��")5) ��$?%#��,�).�1(1���.(�/���0,1�'(��.)�05'((�(1��3�'*(�",��5E�JKJL�G)1(��')�+� XYY



�

�

�����������	�
�������������	��������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������	������
����� 
��������������� ������!"!��������������
�����
����������� 
���������#$%�&'()*+,-.,/�0�1��� ���
����2���2����� �������3
����������������������������4�����������!5��5"56���������7��������7������������8�2����2���9�����������������:���������������;�
������������������!":<<���������
�����������2���9�������
�����5��:����������������
����=��:�!>�0�:�"��������:������ ������������������!>?"?"������

@AB



�

�

��������	���
�������������������������������������� ��!��"���#$%&!�'&#%'�(�"�)��"��� &*���+,�-�."/����,�0102�.3���43�+)��

567



�����������	��	
����������� ���������������������������������������������������� !"��#""$����%&��"'()�(*�
+,�
�
�
+-�"'-
��������)((" $����"$��#"!.� /	��0� /������1���(�$��%) 2�$�% ��� .-�#"!.� / 3456473893�����1��%&��� $"("�$��#"!.� /�:�+; <=6=>?89=���
�1���(�$��%) 2�$�% ��� .�������!!$ 5>6=@@854�%$����#"!.� /	��0� /� ?7@63=<8?5�$#"(��)((" $����"$������1�����()�$�-��"2�)A��"(A =7?634?8<=�����1�����()�$�B�C)�2�$*��) 2 46<?3854�����1�����-������B�C)�2�$*��) 2 433637789>�%$����$#"(��)((" $����"$� 3653364@98<3�%$����)((" $����"$� 364@367=>8==����B������� �,+��,;D�EDDB����B������F��G����B��'���$�"��)((" $�B��'���$�"��("2�$���(2�

���1���(�$��%) 2�$�% ��("2�$���(2 978@@

���1���(�$��%) 2�$�% ����$"(���(2 H36<438@@�%$����("2�$���(2� H36<<?8@@�$#"(��)((" $�B��'���$�"�
�I��1��"&) 2�B��'���$* 3@8@@�%$����$#"(��)((" $�B��'���$�"� 3@8@@�%$����)((" $�B��'���$�"� H36<9?8@@�%$���B��'���$�"� H36<9?8@@�C)�$*�
����1��"$�� "2���( � /� 367@<6=95839�"$�� !%A" H3@36?958<>�%$����C)�$* 364@969778==����B�B����B������F��G���� �,+��,;D�EDD

���/"���%&��JKL



���



�����������	�
	����������� �������������������������������������������������� !�"�#�$ ���%&'(������")� &*)��+,�&��(�����%&'�-���.��+,�����/�0��(��01 2+	�34+0�+�01 2+5
���6��+2,+��)�4�7&+�5
�
�6��!!�'��"+� 89:;89<=<<5
���6�� 0��� !�"�.���*�0�>�"� 0� 8;?9<=<<5
���6�� 0��� !�"�.��(�"+2� ?;9<<=<<5
�5�6��(�"+2��.��+/�&2 98;<<<=<<5
���6��(�"+2��.�$��*+ @:;<<<=<<� "�'�5
���6��+2,+��)�4�7&+� @9A;9<<=<<5����6��� /&1"��01 2+5��
�6����$ B89=<<5��5�6�C+,��"+�% ,�� ��/ A<<=<<� "�'�5����6��� /&1"��01 2+ 989=<<5�D��6�����+�E+'+(��� *��25�D
�6��+*��"��"� 0� ?;9<<=<<5�D��6��4 0� ��)�4� B?;9<<=<<� "�'�5�D��6�����+�E+'+(��� *��2 89;<<<=<<5����6���''�� 0!+�+01+��+*��"��"� 05��
�6��!!�'��"+��.����'( BF8;9F<=<<5����6��!!�'��"+��.��+*&'�� :9;9A<=<<5����6��!!�'��"+��.�$�"+	�0��"+ BG;8<<=<<5��5�6�� 0��� !�" FA<=<<5����6��(�"+2� BF;8A<=<<5��H�6�� 0.�+2,+�� 89F;GG<=<<5��D�6��&0��&0 B;B89=<<5��I�6�� *� 999=<<5����6���''�� 0!+�+01+��+*��"��"� 0�.��")+� JG<<=<<� "�'�5����6���''�� 0!+�+01+��+*��"��"� 0 9A:;B?<=<<5����6��4��0*�� 0!+�+01+��+*��"��"� 05��
�6��!!�'��"+��.����'( F:;?<<=<<5����6��(�"+2� F;B:<=<<5��H�6�� 0.�+2,+�� :A;<F<=<<5��D�6��&0��&0 A9<=<<5��I�6�� *� @@<=<<� "�'�5����6��4��0*�� 0!+�+01+��+*��"��"� 0 B9G;?8<=<<5K���6��0"+�+�"����0+/ B9;@?G=<A� "�'��01 2+ B;B<B;8GA=<AL� ����� !�" B;B<B;8GA=<A�34+0�+�����6��/2�0��"��"�M+��++ B9<;<<<=<<���
�6��/2�0��"��"�M+��+�M�1+� B;@FF=<<�����6��N��/� 8@<=A?�����6���0E��)��*+�	��+/�"����/��++� 8:;?B:=A8��
��6��+�E+'+(�#��(24 ��&2��

�6��&/� 	O��&�' :;F:?=?G ���*+�
� !��PQR



�����������	�
	������������ �������������������������������������������������� !�"�#�$ ���%&'(������")� &*)��+,�&��(�����%&'�-���.��+,�����
/�0��  1�#��+2+��*+ 345676869��
��0���"+���'�	���:"�:*	;+��*: 9<=8><��
?�0����2+' 3564989@� "�'���
��0��+�A+'+(�#��(BC ��&B @95@@7876��/��0�� BB���� :��#��++� D>56D38D6��/
�0�� :�&'"�:* D35@<3877��/��0�;&+��#��&,�E��C"� :� @543>877�����0���''�� :!+�+:E+���
�0��&1� 	F��&�' D7357468>7�����0�;+'�2+�(�#��)�CC�:* @57<D8<>�����0��:"+�"��:B+:" 656D<846���/�0�G "+'���/H
�0�I+1:+�1�(���*)"��2+:" D@536>877���/H��0�� :!+�+:E+ @3566>8<@���/H��0��  1�#��+2+��*+ D>75777877� "�'����/�0�G "+' D9<57>78<@�����0��� *��B���"+���' 3@569<89=���?�0��C+�A+�� @953@7877���J�0��&CC'�+� 3DD86=���K�0����2+' 35=4>83@� "�'������0���''�� :!+�+:E+ @6=5<=78><��J��0��:�&��:E+ =5>@9877��J
�0�$+*�'�#��� !+��� :�'��++� D354@>877��J��0�$+*��'�"�2+��12 E�E( @<5<@4877��K��0���*�L�:+��K��0�;+��*:	���:"�:*	�"EH <57>>877��K��0���*�L�:+�.��")+� 45=7>877� "�'���K��0���*�L�:+ D=5=<7877?����0�� ��1�#�� BB�""++�?��
�0�� ��1� !�;��+E" ��?��
H
�0��  1�#��+2+��*+ D65D=98=@?��
H��0����:"�:*	�&CC'�+� =599<86=?��
H��0����2+'�.���;��++"�:*� D4567>87>?��
H/�0����2+'�.����E+''�:+ &����; D536389@?��
H��0�� ��1��!�;��+E" ���.��")+� D@57<68@<?��
�0�� ��1� !�;��+E" ���.��")+� @5@<6833� "�'�?��
�0�� ��1� !�;��+E" �� >45>>486@� "�'�?����0�� ��1�#�� BB�""++� >45>>486@?�
��0��!!�E+��MC+:�+��	��&CC'�+� D5=94893?�

�0�� �"�*+�#�;+'�2+�( 457@9849?����0��C��:*�� :!+�+:E+?��
�0��&1� 	F��&�' D7357468>7?����0�;+'�2+�(�#��)�CC�:* 35777877?����0��:"+�"��:B+:" =6<8=9?��/�0�G "+' ���*+��� !��NOP



�����������	�
	������������ �������������������������������������������������� !�"�#�$ ���%&'(������")� &*)��+,�&��(�����%&'�-���.��+,���/��01
�2�3+45+�4�(���*)"��6+5" 789:;<=>?</��01��2�� 5!+�+5@+ <:8A;>B;/��01��2��  4�#��+6+��*+ 7=7:AA<>7A/��0�2�C "+'�.��")+� ;:;B9><<� "�'�/��0�2�C "+' <D7:AA=>DD/����2��� *��E���"+���' =:D8=>;8/��/�2��F+�G+�� ;:9<8>B8/��H�2����6+' 79:A<;>7B� "�'�/����2��F��5*�� 5!+�+5@+ ;87:?7<>7;/����2��+@)5 ' *(	���	3+,��"+ 9B:A?7>D=/��0�2����6+' 7:<A7>9B� "�'��IF+5�+ 7:<8<:?<A>?7�+"���4�5��(��5@ E+ J787:<9?>;D.
�
K���10L

���*+��� !��MNO



���



���������������	��
�������� �����������
����������
���������������������������������� �����!"#$��%�&��'�!�(�)!(*�	�		����!#��$+�!��*�	�	�)!(�,		�-��$+�	� �!"#$� .��%$���!"#$� /�����!"#$���"�0��*��0'�1$��23$0�$�0'�1$4����5��$1+$���3�6!$�4����5�����(���$� 789:78;<;; 79=:>8;<;; ?@7:8;;<;; A8<B8C4��	�5���0��������-���#�0�D����0� 7:>8;<;; 7:>8;<;; ;<;; @;;<;C4����5���0��������-��*��$1� >:8;;<;; 9:;;;<;; @:8;;<;; @78<;C4��4�5��*��$1��-��$"�!1 87:;;;<;; 87:;;;<;; ;<;; @;;<;C4��E�5��*��$1��-� ��#$ B9:;;;<;; F7:;;;<;; ?9:;;;<;; =8<>@C����(�4����5��$1+$���3�6!$� B8F:8;;<;; B>@:8;;<;; ?@>:;;;<;; A8<F7C4	E��5����"!'���0'�1$4	E��5�
�� @78<;; ;<;; @78<;; @;;<;C4	E4�5�G$+���$�)�+�����" F;;<;;����(�4	E��5����"!'���0'�1$ 878<;; ;<;; 878<;; @;;<;C4	H��5��
��$�I$($*����#��14	H��5��$#��������0� >:8;;<;; 9;:;;;<;; ?87:8;;<;; @7<8C4	H	�5��3�0�����3� @>:8;;<;; F;:;;;<;; ?77:8;;<;; FB<>8C����(�4	H��5��
��$�I$($*����#��1 78:;;;<;; @;;:;;;<;; ?>8:;;;<;; 78<;C4����5���((�
�0�$�$0'$��$#��������04����5�����(���$��-����(* @=7:8=;<;; @F;:;;;<;; F7:8=;<;; @B;<F@C4��	�5�����(���$��-��$#!(�� 98:8F;<;; 9;:;;;<;; 8:8F;<;; @;A<7BC4����5�����(���$��-� ��$��0���$ @A:7;;<;; >;:F;;<;; ?8@:7;;<;; 7><7>C4��4�5���0������� =F;<;; A9;<;; ?@7;<;; =><8C4��E�5��*��$1� @=:7F;<;; 7;:;;;<;; ?@:>9;<;; A@<7C4��J�5���0-�$1+$�� 78=:AA;<;; 7;;:78;<;; 8=:>F;<;; @7A<BBC4��H�5��!0��!0 @:@78<;; 8;;<;; 978<;; 778<;C4��K�5���#� 888<;; @;;<;; F88<;; 888<;C4����5���((�
�0�$�$0'$��$#��������0�-���$� ?A;;<;; ;<;; ?A;;<;; @;;<;C����(�4����5���((�
�0�$�$0'$��$#��������0 8F9:@>;<;; FA7:7@;<;; 8B:A9;<;; @@;<A9C4�E��5��3��0#�
�0�$�$0'$��$#��������04�E��5�����(���$��-����(* =9:>;;<;; @F;:;;;<;; ?8B:B;;<;; 9@<ABC4�E	�5�����(���$��-��$#!(�� ;<;; 9;:;;;<;; ?9;:;;;<;; ;<;C4�E��5�����(���$��-� ��$��0���$ ;<;; >;:F;;<;; ?>;:F;;<;; ;<;C4�E4�5���0������� ;<;; A9;<;; ?A9;<;; ;<;C4�EE�5��*��$1� =:@9;<;; 7;:;;;<;; ?@@:=F;<;; F;<=C4�EJ�5���0-�$1+$�� 9F:;=;<;; 7;;:78;<;; ?@B9:@>;<;; B7<;C4�EH�5��!0��!0 F8;<;; 8;;<;; ?8;<;; A;<;C4�EK�5���#� BB;<;; @;;<;; 7B;<;; BB;<;C����(�4�E��5��3��0#�
�0�$�$0'$��$#��������0 @8A:>7;<;; FA7:7@;<;; ?BB7:FA;<;; B7<F8C4L���5��0�$�$������0$" @8:B>A<;F ?A8B<88 @9:BB7<8A ?@:9@7<=7C����(��0'�1$ @:@;@:7AF<;F @:F8F:A99<F8 ?B8B:9>7<F@ >8<9ACM����������� @:@;@:7AF<;F @:F8F:A99<F8 ?B8B:9>7<F@ >8<9AC�23$0�$E����5��"1�0�������%$��$$ @8;:;;;<;; 778:;;;<;; ?>8:;;;<;; 99<9>CE����5��"1�0�������%$��$�%�'$� @:B==<;; 8;;<;; ===<;; 7>><9C ���#$�������NON



���������������	��
�������� �����������
����������
���������������������������������� �����!"#$��%�&��'�!�(�)!(*�	�		����!#��$+�!��*�	�	�)!(�,		�-��$+�	� �!"#$� .��%$���!"#$� /�����!"#$�0��	�1��2��"� 345678 955655 :3;<694 7;65<=0����1���>?�
��#$��
�$"���
��"��$$� 3;@8A;673 4;@555655 :<@3B469B 8763A=0����1��$�?$($*����*CD���!C0����1��!"���E��!�( ;@B;868< 3@355655 7@;;868< 4A36A8=0��	�1�F$(�%$�*�����DD�># 5655 5655 5655 565=0����1�G��$( 5655 A3@955655 :A3@955655 565=0��H�1����"����$%$��#$ 3B@85868< A3@955655 A;@35868< 33<6;;=0��0�1����$���(�����>��>#�F$��#> <;769; 4@555655 :3@549677 436A9=0��I�1����%$( 3@8B<6<4 3@955655 3B<6<4 AAA6;=0��J�1��
��$�?$($* 5655 3A;@555655 :3A;@555655 565=����(�0����1��$�?$($*����*CD���!C 4<@445658 37B@855655 :35<@4;<6<4 A96BA=0�	��1�K$+�>����*CD���!C0�	��1�K$+�>����D$�?$� 5655 5655 5655 565=0�		�1�K$+�>����$'>�(�#* 5655 39@555655 :39@555655 565=0�	��1�K$+�>������' 5655 5655 5655 565=����(�0�	��1�K$+�>����*CD���!C 5655 39@555655 :39@555655 565=0����1�
�� 0����1����$���(�����>��>#�F$��#> 5655 A;@955655 :A;@955655 565=0��	�1���DD�># 5655 A@455655 :A@455655 565=����(�0����1�
�� 5655 A8@B55655 :A8@B55655 565=0�H��1�
�CC�����>�����$$� A9@8A36A8 35@555655 :7@3B86B4 8B69;=0�H��1�
�>�!(��># A3@4;3655 3A@A<3655 :B@B45655 9B644=0�H	�1�F!$�����!+�'��D���>� 4@B39655 4@855655 A39655 A5464B=0�0��1���((�
�>�$�$>'$0�0��1��!"���E��!�( A53@5B8695 <5@555655 A3@5B8695 AA4674=0�0	�1�F$(�%$�*�����DD�># 4@5;A6;9 3@955655 9;A6;9 A33678=0�0��1��>�$����>C$>� 8@8A;6B8 ;@955655 A@3A;6B8 AAB683=0�0H�1�G��$(0�0H&��1�K$">$�"�*���#���%$>� A4@389655 ;9@555655 :9A@839655 35673=0�0H&	�1�
�>�$�$>'$ 43@8896;4 A9@555655 A8@8896;4 3AB69=0�0H&��1����"����$%$��#$ A95@555655 395@555655 :A55@555655 ;565=����(�0�0H�1�G��$( A<;@5956;4 445@555655 :A44@<7<648 9<67A=0�00�1����#��C����$���( 34@8<;6<7 39@555655 :A@35465; <96A<=0�0I�1��D$�?$�� 4<@345655 95@555655 :A5@885655 8B67;=0�0J�1��!DD(�$� 3AA687 955655 :3BB63; 73649=0�0L�1����%$( 3@7B9634 A9@555655 :A3@9A7688 A;698=0�0��1���((�
�>�$�$>'$�-���$� 5655 5655 5655 565=����(�0�0��1���((�
�>�$�$>'$ 487@;7569; 9A<@955655 :A77@B9<677 836A3=0�J��1��>�!��>'$ 7@94<655 9@555655 :7;A655 <568B=0�J��1� $#�(�������$����>�(��$$� A3@B49655 49@555655 :33@A;9655 4;6;8=0�J	�1� $#��(���%$��"%�'�'* 4;@;4B655 ;3@B5B655 :3;@A85655 9B644=0�L��1���#�M�>$0�L��1�F$(�%$�*�����DD�># 5655 ;55655 :;55655 565=0�L	�1�F$��#>����>��>#���'& ;@599655 35@555655 :A4@<79655 4563B= ���#$�	�����NOP



���������������	��
�������� �����������
����������
���������������������������������� �����!"#$��%�&��'�!�(�)!(*�	�		����!#��$+�!��*�	�	�)!(�,		�-��$+�	� �!"#$� .��%$���!"#$� /�����!"#$�0�1��2���#�3�4$�-���$� 56789:88 ;6888:88 <6789:88 =78:85>����(�0�1��2���#�3�4$ =767;8:88 <;6;88:88 ?=<6=78:88 97:@;>A����2�����"���
�BB���$$�A����2�����"����C��$'����A���&��2����"����$%$��#$ =D6=7E:7@ <96888:88 ?D6598:9D ;5:;>A���&	�2����4��4#��!FF(�$� 76EE;:D7 76888:88 EE;:D7 =<7:E<>A���&��2����%$(�-���C��$$��4#� =56D89:89 ==6888:88 D6D89:89 =D8:89>A���&G�2����%$(�-����'$((�4$�!����C =6<D<:E@ 56888:88 ?;6D<D:8D =9:E=>A���&0�2�����"����C��$'�����-���$� =@68;D:@; @6888:88 =868;D:@; 7@9:95>A����2�����"����C��$'�����-���$� @6@;D:<<����(�A����2�����"����C��$'���� 956995:D@ 9=6888:88 D6995:D@ ==7:5<>A��	�2� $#��(���%$�
�BB���$$��$$��4#� 8:88 <98:88 ?<98:88 8:8>A����2����#��B�
�BB���$$��$$��4#� 8:88 <6988:88 ?<6988:88 8:8>����(�A����2�����"���
�BB���$$� 956995:D@ 9@6D98:88 76585:D@ =85:E9>A����2�����'$��HF$4�$�����!FF(�$� =67E5:E< <6988:88 ?=688=:85 9E:E;>A����2������#$���C$(�%$�* 568@E:5E ;6888:88 <68@E:5E =@7:8>A�	��2��F��4#�
�4�$�$4'$A�	��2��!"���I��!�( =8<685D:98 E86888:88 =<685D:98 ==@:7@>A�		�2�C$(�%$�*�����FF�4# <6888:88 <6988:88 ?988:88 58:8>A�	��2��4�$����4B$4� 7D;:7E ;6988:88 ?;68<@:9= D:@@>A�	G�2�J��$(A�	G&��2�K$"4$�"�*���#���%$4� =8@67<;:9< ;96888:88 @567<;:9< =9E:=<>A�	G&	�2�
�4�$�$4'$ <68E7:57 8:88 <68E7:57 =88:8>A�	G&��2����"����$%$��#$ =;=6EE<:=EA�	G&G�2�J��$(�-���$� 8:88 <96888:88 ?<96888:88 8:8>A�	G�2�J��$(�-���$� 7675@:<<����(�A�	G�2�J��$( <D=6EE;:DD E86888:88 =5=6EE;:DD @8<:<<>A�	0�2����#��B����$���( ;6D8;:78 <96888:88 ?=56<E@:;8 <;:5@>A�	A�2��F$�L$�� 76@<8:58 986888:88 ?796;DE:<8 5:;7>A�	M�2��!FF(�$� 8:88 =6888:88 ?=6888:88 8:8>A�	1�2����%$( =@6E<7:=5 =96888:88 ?=68D9:5< E<:5@>A�	��2��F��4#�
�4�$�$4'$�-���$� 8:88 8:88 8:88 8:8>����(�A�	��2��F��4#�
�4�$�$4'$ 78=69=<:=7 <586888:88 =<=69=<:=7 =7@:7>A�0��2������$#�'���'�(������ 8:88 =96888:88 ?=96888:88 8:8>A�0��2���H$���� �'$4�$� 8:88 ;88:88 ?;88:88 8:8>A�0��2��$'4�(�#*�����K$+���$ @56E9=:D; 796888:88 ?;6875:<7 5;:9;>A�0G�2����%$( =6<E=:@5 D6988:88 ?;6<85:;< =D:<<>����(��HF$4�$ =6<8<69<E:9= =6;9D6;98:88 ?7996=<8:7E D<:97>�$����"�4��*��4'�B$ ?=8=6<@9:7D ?<8<6;5@:99 =8=6775:85 7E:E9>-���N	�0&GM -	�	NA1�&00 ���NGG1&�1 GO&O0/
���#$�������PQQ



�

�

����������	
��
����
��	����������������������������� �!�"#$# �%&'!��(!%'(�)�# �*#�+�� !,�(!%'(�)�# �*#�+�-.*�+#��

/01



�

�

��������	
����	����������������	���

���



�

�

����������	
������	��������		������	�������������������� �!"��#��#$ !�%�&�'��#!(�)#* �+ ,- !"�.,#$ (#�&�'.�/��.&'��0 1�-,#��* �&%$$���  �&%2&3#��-�� .4�5657�0 1�-,#��* �' 8%���/�+%�.���%!�

9:;



�

��

� ����������	
	�������� ����������������������������������������������������������� ��������!��"������"����#�����$��%%��&'(�� )*+,-./0,1*�234/0*�5�637,.�898:�;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;��<*=*7/.�234/0*��>��$��$��"��������� ������� �� �����"�$�� ������$��%�?�����������@���������������������������$�����?�������$��������$����A��$��%�?���������@����$�B��������������	C����������������"��������"��$��� ��������������������A�D������$��� ����E��� ������������?�����������������$��
�F�������G
H���$��%�?���������@����"��"������� �����?�$�����?������"���������� ��� ��$�������A��I���$�������������������$��J����K����J������K�"�����E�����$�� ���"�����@��$������"������B�����?��?�H�$�B��������"�������� � �@��$���"������B�����?��?���$���@��������@��$��������B�����@�� �����$����?������B������������ �?�����$�����?��������������������A��L��M�������"�����@����$�B������������N����"��$��� ��������������������A��)*+,-./0,O=�OP�Q=0*7*-0��6R�S989�T<7/U-O=V�5�W'&)�X,-/Y,.,0U�Z7*-[\30,O=-A��$���"����@��� �����"���$���B�������@� ���"����������������������������������B���������]�������� ���������������$�����%����������������B��������$����̂��������$��%�"����� �A��$��"��������������� �"���$�������������_������������������?$����A���̀R�8a8�T<O=b/.*bV�5�Z'&̀ �/=4�̀c&̀ �dO--,.�d[*.�X,1*-0\*=0e���������!��f���f�������� ��� ��I�GGg�������������������A�%�h��������������$���"������������������_������ ����������� ����$�"�����$������������������������������@��?������h��?���@���B�������������������������������������@���������i�����?��$��������i�� �����̂�����?���B���������"��j����G��	
�
������?���$�����i���������A��$��"����@�������� ��� �����������������h�?���������������?��������A���̀R�kk9�T6.1/7/4Ol<,.V�l�W6�Z[Y.,m�&*0,7*\*=0�̀U-0*\�6+*=mU�WO-0�/=4�),/Y,.,0U�Z/=*.e��$���"����@��� �����"���$��$�����_�"�����������������������?������������ �nop



�

�

����������	�
���������������������������������
������������
���
��
��������������������������
������������������
�����
�������������
������������������
������������������
��������������
�����
����������������������������������������������
�������
������������������������
���������
���������
����������������������������������������
�������
�����������
���������� �����!���"#$%&'�())*&+,�-&%%.����
��������
������������/012345���
�����6�������
����
��
�����7���������������������������8��������
��������
��������
��9�������������6����������������
��
������������
����
�����������������
�������������
���:;:4�������������
����
���7������
6��
������
����������������������
��
��������<���=-�>>?�@ABC*D�E�=-�FGH�I#+.)*�JK*)+.&L+M�����������������������������
�����������������
��N�OP4� ��������!������������
�������������������������
�����N������������
��������
��
�������
�������
������
��������������������
��
�������O;���������QR�����������=-�SH?�@"B'T)'LD�U�VW)+�())*&+,�X%)K&$&%&*Y�ZLC�I#$.&[&BCY�-L[&).��������������������������������������������������
����
��
������������������������������������
����������������������
���\������
���������������������������������������������
��
��������������������
�����
����������
��������
��
���������������������=-�HF?]�@"BWB+D�E�̂)%)'L+Z)C)+')�X%)K&$&%&*&).M���N�4O_5��7��
��������������7�����������������������
������
��������N��
������
�����
�6�����
�������������6�����7�
����\������
������������
��������
����
����������
�6�����7�
��������
�\��������\������
��6�������
�������7����
��̀�
�����46�:;:P���
���������������7�����������
������
����6�������
������������
����������������������������������������
�����������������������
���������
���������6����
�����������
���������������������\����������������������������������������������������
����������������������������
������
��������
���������
������������
�����I-�aHH�@"LC*B+*&+LD�E�̂)%)'L+Z)C)+'&+,�ZLC�=WWL&+*)[�-L[&).M�������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������
����
��
���
����
�����������������������������
�������
�������
����������������
��
�������������������������
���������������
�������������������
�����
���������
��������������\��������:bO��������I-�>F?�@-)'c)CD�E�̂)%)'L+Z)C)+')�X%)K&$&%&*&).M�������������������
�������
��������������
�������
����������������������8����������
��6����������
�����������������������������������
����
��
���
����
�������
������������������������������������
����
�������������
���\������
��6��������\����
������������������������������������������������
��
����
����������������
�_������������������
����������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������d�������������������������9���������
�������������
����������
���
���������������������������������
������������������������������������������������
�����
���������
��������������\��������:bO���������� efg



�

�

��

���



�

�

����������	
����	���	

�������������������������	���	��������	���������	����������	��� !�"#$%%&'()*+�, !��&)-.�/01$+�,$/1,�2.3&! (&.!�/.33&(())�/4 &*�� 56�,$/1,�7. *8�.9��&*)#(.*'�0%)#(&.!'�:;:<=:;:>��

?@A



��������	��
������� ������������������������������������������� �����!������""�����	�������#���������$����$��������	�%�������&����������������������%�������&�������������� ������'����(�!��������"��������
��)�
����"�������*� ���"�'�""��������'�!��
��)�
����"������+������,�&���-�����.��
��/�$"�����+�0��������(���"�,�""������0���&���������������.���'����(��������������1���&�!�"�&����/���!��!2#%�� !����#$�#�%�������3	��
��� ��.���&�"������,�����.���,��������������(�������"������(���!�������������%�������&���������	�+�0���������%�������&���������������0��������������������"���������������������3�(��������"������.������&���"����(�4�������������3������'��������!�./������������������.�����(���".����((���/�5����)��������������(������(���"�,�""�	���������������(�������("����������.�(������"�����	����""����,������+���/��������6	��
��� ����%�������&����������4�""���+�����(���"�,�""�����������&�"������,�������.�������������.�����+�������������6���.�3�	��
��� %����789:��������������������"������������&�����������'��������������&���������+���&���(������	���.�;)3�	��
�����.�3�	��
��� '����(�!����������<��((����(��3�.����=����"��+���&��
����"������>�?@A�BCDEB�FGHIJKL�CAMNOH@�PQQQL�B@OMNRS�TU�FRIAV�RW�XNA@OMRA�ISV�B@OMNRS�YU�ZH@OMNRSK�RW�XNA@OMRAK[�\]̂_̀ab�cd�eafgh�ai�j̀g]̂_agkd�lm]�eafgh�kmfnn�̂abk̀k_�ai�_m]�aiì̂]gk�ai�\opq\�fk�h]k̂g̀r]h�̀b�og_̀̂n]�stu�\]̂_̀ab�cu�_m]�̀vv]h̀f_]�wfk_�wg]k̀h]b_u�fbh�_xa�yz{�g]|}nfg�v]vr]gkd�odtvv]h̀f_]�wfk_�wg]k̀h]b_d�~��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������edlxa�yz{�q]|}nfg��]vr]gk��~���������������������������������������������������������������������������������\]̂_̀ab�zd� n]̂_̀abk�ai�j̀g]̂_agk����¡������������������¡������������������������������������������¢���������������£���������������������¤������������£���������������������������������������������������������������������¥�����¦������������������¡��������������������������¥�����¦���������������¢�¡��§����������������¡������������¡�������������̈����©����������������������������������������������������������������������������¡�����������������������������������¤�����~���£���������������������������¤���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������¡�������������¡�����¤��������¥������ª���~���������������������������������������������¡�������������¡�����������������¤������������������������������£�������������������«��������������������������������������¤�����������������������¬¬



���������	
��������������	����������	�������	��������������������
�����	��	���	�
����	����������		��	����������	��������	�������������������		�����	
����	�	
�������������	����
	����������	�������	�������		��������	�
��
��	������	������	�	�	
�����������	�
����
�	����������	�������
�������	 ����������
��������������
�	�! ��	
�����"�����#������		�$�������	����	�	
�	�����	
������������	���	�������	������	�
��
�����������	��		�����������
����	����	�	�	
�	� ��������	�	%
	�����������	�����
	������	���	�����	���
���	�����	���	�������
�&	��	��������	��	����	�	
�	����	���	������������	�
����	����������	�
���	�����
����	����'()�)*)+,-./0�1-**�2)�()*3�4,�,()�56785�59:-/;�7./<):)/+)�./�=:-34>?�@4>�AB?�BCBD?�3E:-/;�,()�0+()3E*)3�2E0-/)00�F)),-/;�4,�,()�G4:43-0)�G.-/,�8)0.:,�H�594?�54/�I-);.?�76J�KLMNK�OPQRSTURSV�MPQQRUUWW�NWXPQQWSYWY�KZTUW[�\ ]̂_̀ab_cd�e�fghab�igjfkcglbm�nkcd̂g�nk̀dg�nopq\ raj_�]̂_̀ab_cd�e�qb_l_�sgtglkgm�ûgct_�nopv\ ŝ_g̀ŵ_̂�e�xk̂bgc�ygwz{gcm�y_̂c�nopq\ v_ĵ_dĝ|�e�}gcb̂g�n~kl{kcb_l_|m�vgcdg��ĝ�ĝg�nopv\ p_twlĝ�i_{�_̂�e�fghab��al{k̂_m�vgc�fa_tk�nopq\ p_twlĝ�i_{�_̂�e�u�_c'()�8);E*4:�@)F2):�*-0,)3�40���9)/��-0�3E)�,.�4�*4,)�1-,(3:414*�.<�4�0E2F-00-./�2>�4/�-/,):)0,)3�+4/3-34,)J��)�4:)�940,�,()�3)43*-/)�,.�0E2F-,�4�/.F-/4,-./?�4/3�1)�:)+)-�)3�/.�.,():�0E2F-00-./0�.<�-/,):)0,J�56785��>*410�3.�/.,�4**.1�/.F-/4,-./0�.:�1:-,)�-/�+4/3-34,)0�<:.F�,()�<*..:?�,():)<.:)�,()��.F-/4,-/;�7.FF-,,))�1-**�2)�:)4+(-/;�.E,�,.�,()�:);E*4:�F)F2):0(-9�-/�0)4:+(�.<�-/,):)0,)3�94:,-)0�,(4,�1.E*3�*-�)�,.�0):�)J����������������������������������������� ¡�����¢�£ �¤������¢��������������'()��>*410�0,4,)�,(4,�,()��.4:3�.<�I-:)+,.:0�+4/�F4�)�4/�499.-/,F)/,�-<�,():)�-0�4��4+4/,�9.0-,-./�./�,()��.4:3J��/+)�,()��.4:3�.<�I-:)+,.:0�4:)�)*)+,)3?�4,�,()-:�<-:0,�F)),-/;�-/�¥E/)?�,()>�1-**�<-**�,()��4+4/+>J������������������������������������������ ¡�����¢�¦ �¤������¢��������������8);E*4:�F)F2):0�-/,):)0,)3�-/�0):�-/;�40�4��8);E*4:�@)F2):��.<�,()�56785��.4:3�.<�I-:)+,.:0�F4>�+.F9*),)�4�§̈©©ª«¬«®̄ª�+4/3-34,)�<.:F�<.:�+./0-3):4,-./J�5)/3�°±²�³́µµ¶²·²̧°¹¶�+4/3-34,)�<.:Fº�̧»�¶¹°²¼�°±¹̧�½µ¼¾¶�¿Àº�¿Á¿Âº�,.�0E*)F4Ã04+:0J.:;�,.�2)�:)�-)1)3�2>�,()��.F-/4,-ÄÅ�7.FF-,,))J�6,�,()�56785��E0-/)00�F)),-/;�-/�@4>?�,()��.F-/4,-ÆÇ�7.FF-,,))�1-**�E934,)�,()�F)F2):0(-9�./�0E2F-00-./0�:)+)-�)3�4/3�F4�)�4�:)+.FF)/34,-./�,.�,()�/)1*>�)*)+,)3��.4:3�.<�I-:)+,.:0J��G*)40)�9:)94:)�>.E:��.,-/;�3)*);4,)�,.�(4�)�,()�42-*-,>�,.��.,)�2>�,()�:)+.FF)/3)3�24**.,�4/3�2>�)4+(�9.0-,-./�0)94:4,)*>J��È<�>.E�(4�)�4/>�ÉE)0,-./0?�9*)40)�+./,4+,�F)�4,�I4/�@+6**-0,):?�I4/J@+6**-0,):Ã03+.E/,>J+4J;.��.:�5E*)F4�G),):0./?�0E*)F4Ã04+:0J.:;�ÊËAÌÍ�ÎCA�ÏAÏÐJ���������	�� ÑÒÓ



��������	�
�����	������������������������������������������������������������� !"�#���$�%�������������#��&��'()%���	������%')��*�������&�'�������'�����''+�� �%')��,���-��
�#����������%')��*�������&�'�������$�.�����	����/��0����������%')��(1��	��2��#��������34456789:� ;<;=>;<;?�@5A9B9548�CDEFBCCBGAC�@5A9B9548�HGIF��

JKL



���������	
��	�
�����������������	��	�
����������������������	�������������	�
��� !!�"#$%&%'$%(�)*#("(*$%'�$+*$�,-.!(�!"/%�$-�0%�)-#'"(%&%(�1-&�*22-"#$3%#$�$-�$+%�4-*&(�-1�5"&%)$-&'�1-&�$+%�67689676:�;<=>�?=@AB ?�C=C4=?�2-'"$"-#�3.'$�)-32!%$%�$+"'�1-&3�*#(�'.03"$�*!-#D�,"$+�*�!%$$%&�-1�"#$%#$E����F��F��������
���F������������	
��
��������������	�����
���������F�
��G�	��HIJ�KLKMN�<!%*'%�'.03"$�$-�$+%�>-3"#*$"#D�O-33"$$%%�O+*"&�*$�PQRSTUVWWXYZ[\]ŶU_̀RZaSUQSb_c�� >5�$-�d O?d�*$�'.!%3*e'*)&'E-&DE�f1�g-.�+*h%�*#g�i.%'$"-#'j�2!%*'%�1%%!�1&%%�$-�)-#$*)$�d.!%3*�<%$%&'-#�*$�d O?d�*$�klmnop7m9qmqrE����������
�	����� >*3%s�����
�	�������
�����t
������	�
�u�������	
������v��F�
��������J����	�����������
����	�	
w��������x� C*"!"#D� ((&%''s��=3*"!� ((&%''s��<+-#%s�������������	����
���y�������
�	����������
��y����z���{
� dg'$%3�>*3%s���	���|���������
�����	�	�
��
����	����
��������u�F�	�J������
���J����	���J�}�
������������J����x� ~ O+*"&~  !$%&#*$%~ }�
������������~ ?%$"&%%~ ;$+%&�������������GG�y	
w���������������������	�����������	�	�
�u��������
�y��
�x� ~ <&%'"(%#$~ �	�������	��
�~ �&%*'.&%&~ d%)&%$*&g~ ?%D.!*&�C%30%&��	����	��	
�����w��GF��������

���



���������	
��������	���	�	�����	���������	
����	
���	
���

���



���



����������	�
���
	�	�����������	������������
�������

���



���



������������	
�
�������������
�	�������	�����	�����

���



���



����������	�
���������������
����	��������������������� !� ��"#$�

%&%



���



��������	�
����������������
������������
������������������

���



���



�

�

�����������	
�������������
������������������������� !"����# "��#$%&�� '((&����� )�&��*+��# "��,-,./,-,,�#��$���#$%&��

011



�

�

����������� ����������������	��
����	���������	������������ 
�	�	������������	�������� �	����	��	������������������ 
������
������������	����� ��	������������	���������������������������������
�� � �������������������	����������
����������������	��	�����������������������������������������������	�������������	������� !"�!��# �$%�  �& ' '�# �$%�  �& '" �
�(�)))*+,-.,/*.0-� 123



�

�

����������������	��
����	���������	����������� ��	���������������� ������
������������������������� !"# $%������&���'�(��)&�*"+ ��� !"# $%���(�&���,�-./���0� 1!2� ����&3)3���4�)(��5 +� %1�6�������'�))�783��9:: #"1% ��1!%��� !"# $%���3�3�;�))��/7�<=1�#�> :? �������&���)/(�3�<=1�#�> :? ���;�))��
�@���ABB"C"1% �DE1"���F�F�F�F���-)3/��G383�7(��A!!=+"1%"=$�>1$1H : $%���
IJK



�

�

� ����������������	��
����	���������	������������ ��	������������	����������� �������
���	��	������ ������������������ !���"#$%�#��"#�� � &���'�� �(� )�%�(��"���� %� ��*����"'�( %+�#�(����%� �����%,!#%�*���%� � -��� � �� �"��%��"��+��'�� �(� )�%� ��*���� � .���%!��)�*��� #/���'"#* ��"���� ("*,����0�%� ��*����"'�( %+�#�(����%� �����%,!#%�*���%� � 1���� 0# �+�( )��#�%��� ��"��"'�( %+�#�(����%� � 2���� 0# �+�( )��#�%��� ��"��"'�( %+���%,!#%�*���%� �&&���� ("�'�#��(��%!** #/�#��"#�� �&3���

456



� ���������������	��
���������������������������	�������������������	��	���������������� �!�����" � �!��#$%��$�"��&��'�(� �!��

)*+�,-./�01/23/4�5367/�894�5:;<:=/27-4�>0�?@AB@���?+CD??9D?E?E���F:G�?+CD??9D?EA?�...HIJ=;J:H;-=����I=:<7:KIJ=;J:H;-=�� +

�� �LMNO�OMNOMP��QNLPRSTU�SO�RSP�� �V-:<W�-F�X6</;7-<Y�57:7/�0YY-;6:76-2�-F�>-327Z�[/76</=/27�5ZY7/=Y�5:;<:=/27-4�>:\6F-<26:��S���	����	]������	����	]��̂���������U	�	����	���_̀ � ����a/�b:1/�:3W67/W�7b/�:;;-=J:2Z62c�F62:2;6:\�Y7:7/=/27�57:7/�0YY-;6:76-2�-F�>-327Z�[/76</=/27�5ZY7/=Y�d50>[5e�.b6;b�;-=J<6Y/�7b/�Y7:7/=/27�-F�;:Yb�</;/6J7Y�:2W�W6Yf3<Y/=/27Y�F-<�7b/�F6Y;:\�Z/:<Y�/2W/W�g32/�9*4�B*BB�:2W�B*B+4�:2W�7b/�</\:7/W�2-7/Y�7-�7b/�F62:2;6:\�Y7:7/=/27H����h2�-3<�-J626-24�7b/�:;;-=J:2Z62c�Y7:7/=/27�-F�;:Yb�</;/6J7Y�:2W�W6Yf3<Y/=/27Y�J</Y/27�F:6<\Z4�62�:\\�=:7/<6:\�</YJ/;7Y4�7b/�F62:2;6:\�J-Y676-2�-F�57:7/�0YY-;6:76-2�-F�>-327Z�[/76</=/27�5ZY7/=Y�:Y�-F�g32/�9*4�B*BB�:2W�B*B+�62�:;;-<W:2;/�.67b�7b/�;:Yb�f:Y6Y�-F�:;;-32762c�W/Y;<6f/W�62�i-7/�+H��j$' '�k�l�_̀ � ����a/�;-2W3;7/W�-3<�:3W67�62�:;;-<W:2;/�.67b�:3W6762c�Y7:2W:<WY�c/2/<:\\Z�:;;/J7/W�62�7b/�m267/W�57:7/Y�-F�0=/<6;:�dn005eH�o3<�</YJ-2Y6f6\676/Y�32W/<�7b-Y/�Y7:2W:<WY�:</�F3<7b/<�W/Y;<6f/W�62�7b/�03W67-<pY�[/YJ-2Y6f6\676/Y�F-<�7b/�03W67�-F�7b/�q62:2;6:\�57:7/=/27Y�Y/;76-2�-F�-3<�</J-<7H�a/�:</�</r36</W�7-�f/�62W/J/2W/27�-F�57:7/�0YY-;6:76-2�-F�>-327Z�[/76</=/27�5ZY7/=Y4�:2W�7-�=//7�-3<�-7b/<�/7b6;:\�</YJ-2Y6f6\676/Y4�62�:;;-<W:2;/�.67b�7b/�</\/1:27�/7b6;:\�</r36</=/27Y�</\:762c�7-�-3<�:3W67YH�a/�f/\6/1/�7b:7�7b/�:3W67�/16W/2;/�./�b:1/�-f7:62/W�6Y�Y3FF6;6/27�:2W�:JJ<-J<6:7/�7-�J<-16W/�:�f:Y6Y�F-<�-3<�:3W67�-J626-2H��st̀ u$' '��k�v$��wl�x�j$' '��k�������� �!��a/�W<:.�:77/276-2�7-�i-7/�+�-F�7b/�F62:2;6:\�Y7:7/=/27Y4�.b6;b�W/Y;<6f/Y�7b/�f:Y6Y�-F�:;;-32762cH�yb/�F62:2;6:\�Y7:7/=/27Y�:</�J</J:</W�-2�7b/�;:Yb�f:Y6Y�-F�:;;-32762c4�.b6;b�6Y�:�f:Y6Y�-F�:;;-32762c�-7b/<�7b:2�:;;-32762c�J<62;6J\/Y�c/2/<:\\Z�:;;/J7/W�62�7b/�m267/W�57:7/Y�-F�0=/<6;:H�o3<�-J626-2�6Y�2-7�=-W6F6/W�.67b�</YJ/;7�7-�7b6Y�=:77/<H��zw'̀��' { ( �|��k�v$�$!wtw���k�l��uw�&��'�( "$�w"�} �$�� $(�~�$�wtw��'���:2:c/=/27�6Y�</YJ-2Y6f\/�F-<�7b/�J</J:<:76-2�:2W�F:6<�J</Y/27:76-2�-F�7b/�F62:2;6:\�Y7:7/=/27Y�62�:;;-<W:2;/�.67b�7b/�;:Yb�f:Y6Y�-F�:;;-32762c�W/Y;<6f/W�62�i-7/�+4�:2W�F-<�W/7/<=6262c�7b:7�7b/�;:Yb�f:Y6Y�-F�:;;-32762c�6Y�:2�:;;/J7:f\/�f:Y6Y�F-<�7b/�J</J:<:76-2�-F�7b/�F62:2;6:\�Y7:7/=/27Y�62�7b/�;6<;3=Y7:2;/YH��:2:c/=/27�6Y�:\Y-�</YJ-2Y6f\/�F-<�7b/�W/Y6c24�6=J\/=/27:76-24�:2W�=:627/2:2;/�-F�627/<2:\�;-27<-\�</\/1:27�7-�7b/�J</J:<:76-2�:2W�F:6<�J</Y/27:76-2�-F�F62:2;6:\�Y7:7/=/27Y�7b:7�:</�F<//�F<-=�=:7/<6:\�=6YY7:7/=/274�.b/7b/<�W3/�7-�F<:3W�-<�/<<-<H� ���



�

� �

�����������	�
�������������������������	��������	��������������
������	�����	��������������������������������������	�	����������������	������	�������

��
������������	��������	������������������������	��	����������������	����������������	�	����������	��������
�	�
������������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������	��������	�������� ��!"#$%&'()�*+),&-)$.$/$%$+)�0&'�%1+�!"#$%�&0�%1+�)%2%+3+-%�&0�42)1�'+4+$,%)�2-#�#$)."')+3+-%)��5�����6���	��������������	����������������������������������������������������������	��������	��������������������������������������	����	������������������������������������������������	���������	�����������������	�������������	�	�� �������������������	����	
�����������������������	�����������������������������������	�������
��������������������	������������	��������������	���7�����	�����������������������	����	��������������	���8	� �9����	:��������������	�
��������	����	��������������	�
������������	��	
����������������������	�
�������������������������	������������	�������
�����	�����	�������		�����	����������	����������������	������	��������������� �;	����������������	�����������	���	���	��	�	����������	�������

��
������������������������������8����������	�������������������	�����		������������������������	�����������������������������	��������	�������� ������������	�
�������	��	��������������	���7�������<��� =�>8���	�������	�����6��
�����������	���	�������	�����:���	�	�������
������������	� ��=������	���������������	:���������	����	���������������������	�������	����	��������������������������������������������������	
�����������������	�����������������	������������	: ����������������	��������8��	�	�
�������������	����	��������
���	�
�����������������	�������	��������������������������	��������	�������� ��=�5���	��������������	�
����	�����������������������������������	��	�������������	
�����	����������������������������	����	�������	��������������������������������������8���	�
������	�	����������������	�����������������	��	����������������	��������������	��������������� �������	�
�������������	�	���	��8����� �=�>�������������������	����������������	�
����	�	�����������������������������	
�	�	������������	�
���	�����������������
���������������������������������������������	������������������������������	��������	���������=�������������������	������6��
��������������������	�	����������������	������	�������

��
������������	��������	������������������������	��	����������������	����������������	�	����������	��������
�	�
����������������������������	�������	�� ���?����������	�������������	������	������������
����	���
������������
���	�
������
�������������������������������������	�	�
�����������	���	
�	�	��������	���	��	�
�����������	��	���������������@�����������������������	����	�	������	�
��������	� ����
ABC



�

� �

��������	
������	��������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������!�������������������!�"�#���$��%���� �&������������$����'������������(��%���������)�*�������!�+���������������$����'�������)�*�������!�+���������������$����(��%���������)�����$����������&�����,�'�����)������ ���-����.�)����������������������������������������!����!,��������������������/��������������������������!����������"���#���$��%���� �&������������$����'������������(��%���������)�*�������!�+���������������$����'�������)�����*�������!�+���������������$����(��%���������)������ ���-����.0)����������������%�!��,�������� ������������������1��������������!�����������!,�������������!,�� ���������� �����������������������������������������������!����������"�&��������������������%������%2�������������������� ���������������!��������������������������������!��������������������������������!�����������)����!���� ��������� ������������!�� ������������������������!,�������������!,�� ���������� �����������������������������������������������!�����������������������������!���������������!�)��������������������!�������������������������������������� ����������� �����!!,�����������������3������&���������4������"�5�������������)�����$��%���� �&������������$����'������������(��%���������)�*�������!�+���������������$����'�������)�����*�������!�+���������������$����(��%���������)������ ���-����.0��������!,������������!!��������!���������������!���������������������!�������������������!�"��#���$����������&�����,�'�����)������ ��.�)���������%������%2�������������������� ���������������!������������������������%�������������!����������)������������� !,)������������6�����������������������1������,����������������"��7�8���9��:�;8���#�������������������������!�!,������������������������������������ ��������������%���������������������&�����4��������������$����,�'����������&,�����������������������������%����������!������%�������%,���,��������������������������������������"�� �<�����=�����>�$�����,�??+�$���������+�%!���4�����������&���������)�$�!��������(����%���0@)�0@00
ABA



�

��������������������������������

�����������	�
���

��



����������������	��
����	���������	������������������	���
���������������	�����������	����
������
������������	������	������������	���������

� �������������� !�"#$"%�"�&�'��(���"�$"&�%(�)�!�(&��*�&�$'�*$"�"�$�)�'&�&� �"&+������������������������������������������������������������������,���������������������������������������������

����-�� ����-���./0�121345/67�' 89:;,<=>������� ,99;?==>�������@�"*�(�"��A�)) ?=8;:?=��������� :=,;B:?���������C!($"% ?8,;?,<��������� ::D;::?���������C� $"�(' ::?;D?=��������� E8;===�����������F&��(��G $"�(���$!&' 8?=���������������� D=;=?=�����������F&��(���"*�(�"���(���$!&' 8?=���������������� 8?=����������������H"&�(�'& I����������������� B;?:<���������������&�)���'��(���$!&' :;,E?;?8<������ EB?;8,<����������./0��3/JKL/1M1N5/@�"*�(�"��A�))�I�9=9:��"G�9=9=O�&�)��"G� ��)' 8,?;D<E��������� 9;DDB�������������P7G$���"G�Q$'7�) BD;9<8����������� ,D;BBB�����������R(�%(� � �&�($�)' <?;9B<����������� ,:;:E,�����������C!($"%�I�9=99��"G�9=9:O�&�)��"G� ��)' 8=;<?D����������� D;,<=�������������P7G$���"G�Q$'7�) :99;D<,��������� 8<;=<E�����������R(�%(� � �&�($�)' ED;<9:����������� :8;E<=�����������C� $"�(' 9?=;B89��������� :<D;9?E���������@�"*�(�"����G $"$'&(�&$�" 8:;,D9����������� 99;B9D�������������&�)���"*�(�"���G$'S7('� �"&' :;=,=;:,,������ 8D<;:<=���������PG $"$'&(�&$�" 8?E;B=9��������� 9E,;E:,���������T�SS#$"% D?;=:8����������� ??;=::�����������U�V')�&&�(' 88;9ED����������� :?;=8:�����������@�  $&&��� ��&$"%' ?B;:?E����������� 9;=88�������������C!��$�)�!(�W��&' :E;B,:����������� :E;E?<�����������H"&�(�'& 89;98:����������� I�������������������&�)��G $"$'&(�&$�"�G$'S7('� �"&' ?D,;89=��������� 8D,;?,B�����������&�)�@�'��6$'S7('� �"&' :;D=,;,D,������ E88;E8B���������XY��''�Z6�*$�$&[��*�@�'��\���$!&'��Q�(�@�'��6$'S7('� �"&' Z:9B;<9?[�������� ?:;D::�����������@�'���"G�H"Q�'& �"&';�]�%$""$"% 9;=88;??<������ :;<B:;<,B������@�'���"G�H"Q�'& �"&';�X"G$"% :;<=,;D8,>���� 9;=88;??<>����_̂̀ àbcbdefgh�idjkgcfelkd@�'���"G�H"Q�'& �"&'��&�m7"��8=; 9=99 9=9:@�'���"G���'���n7$Q�)�"&' <?<;B:=>������� :;=?,;<::>����U�"��7((�"&�!�(&$�"��*�$"Q�'& �"&' <,,;B9, <EB;D,B�����������&�)�@�'���"G�H"Q�'& �"&' :;<=,;D8,>���� 9;=88;??<>���� opq



����������������	��
����	���������	�����������	������������
�	�	������������	���
������
������������	������	������������	���������

������������������������������������

�����������
����	�
���	�������	��	������������ ����� �!"#�$"�!�� %&'&(��))*+,'&,*-�*.�/*0-&1��(&,2(3(-&�%1)&(3)�4%�/�%5�,)�'�-*&6.*2672*.,&�'))*+,'&,*-�*.�89�/':,.*2-,'�+*0-&1�2(&,2(3(-&�)1)&(3);�(-'+&(<�0-<(2�&=(�/*0-&1�>37:*1(()��(&,2(3(-&�?'@�*.�ABCD��%�/�%�@')�.*23(<�,-�&=(�('2:1�ABD9E)�&*�72*F,<(�.*203)�.*2�<,))(3,-'&,-G�H-*@:(<G(�*.;�'-<�<(F(:*7,-G�(I7(2&,)(�,-;�&=(�*7(2'&,*-�*.�+*0-&1�2(&,2(3(-&�)1)&(3)�(I,)&,-G�0-<(2�+022(-&�:'@;�')�@(::�')�&*�.*)&(2�'-<�&'H(�'-�'+&,F(�2*:(�,-�&=(�:(G,):'&,F(�72*+())��$*�'++*37:,)=�%�/�%E�3,)),*-�*.�'<<2()),-G�,))0()�*.�,37*2&'-+(�&*�3(3J(2);�%�/�%;�+*-&2'+&,-G�@,&=�%0:(3'�K(&(2)*-�L��))*+,'&();�72*F,<()�'�F'2,(&1�*.�'))*+,'&,*-�3'-'G(3(-&�)(2F,+();�,-+:0<,-G�&=2((�3'G'M,-()�'�1('2;�3(3J(2)=,7�<,2(+&*21;�)(3,6'--0':�+*-.(2(-+();�'-<�*F(2),G=&�*.�%�/�%�*2G��$=(��))*+,'&,*-�,)�)077*2&(<�72,3'2,:1�&=2*0G=�3(3J(2)=,7�<0()�'-<�+*-.(2(-+(�.(()���N��N�%"%��O��//�P!$"! �� $=(�'++*37'-1,-G�.,-'-+,':�)&'&(3(-&�=')�J((-�72(7'2(<�*-�&=(�+')=�2(+(,7&)�'-<�<,)J02)(3(-&)�J'),)�*.�'++*0-&,-G;�@=,+=�,)�'�J'),)�*.�'++*0-&,-G�*&=(2�&='-�G(-(2'::1�'++(7&(<�'++*0-&,-G�72,-+,7:()��P-<(2�&='&�J'),);�&=(�*-:1�'))(&)�2(+*G-,M(<�'2(�+')=�'-<�,-F()&3(-&);�'-<�-*�:,'J,:,&,()�'2(�2(+*G-,M(<���::�&2'-)'+&,*-)�'2(�2(+*G-,M(<�')�(,&=(2�+')=�2(+(,7&)�*2�<,)J02)(3(-&);�'-<�-*-+')=�&2'-)'+&,*-)�'2(�-*&�2(+*G-,M(<��$=(�+')=�J'),)�<,..(2)�.2*3�G(-(2'::1�'++(7&(<�'++*0-&,-G�72,-+,7:()�72,3'2,:1�J(+'0)(�&=(�(..(+&)�*.�*0&)&'-<,-G�<0()�'-<�*J:,G'&,*-)�.*2�'))())3(-&)�0-7',<�'&�&=(�<'&(�*.�&=(�.,-'-+,':�)&'&(3(-&�'2(�-*&�,-+:0<(<�,-�&=(�.,-'-+,':�)&'&(3(-&��� $=(�N*'2<�*.�Q,2(+&*2)�=')�(:(+&(<�&*�0)(�&=(�+')=�J'),)�*.�'++*0-&,-G�.*2�&=,)�(-&,&1�G,F(-�&=(�-'&02(�*.�,&)�2(+(,7&)�'-<�<,)J02)(3(-&)R�2(F(-0(�,)�':3*)&�':@'1)�2(+(,F(<�'-<�('2-(<�,-�&=(�)'3(�7(2,*<�4(�G��'&�&=(�J(G,--,-G�*.�&=(�1('2�.*2�'--0':�3(3J(2)=,7);�'-<�)=*2&:1�72,*2�&*�(F(-&)�.*2�+*-.(2(-+(�'&&(-<'-+(5�'-<�3*)&�(I7(-)()�'2(�,-+022(<�(F(-:1�*F(2�&=(�1('2;�@,&=�&=(�(I+(7&,*-�*.�&=(�J,::,-G�.*2�&=(�+*-.(2(-+(�=*&(:�(I7(-)(��O,-'-+,':�2()0:&)�J1�+*-.(2(-+(�'2(�72()(-&(<�,-�&=(�/*-.(2(-+(�%033'21��(7*2&�,-�&=(�%077:(3(-&'21�"-.*23'&,*-�)(+&,*-�*.�&=,)�<*+03(-&���/��"!/�S>�$�T>%�� $=(��))*+,'&,*-�,)�(I(37&�.2*3�.(<(2':�'-<�)&'&(�,-+*3(�&'I()�0-<(2�%(+&,*-��9A4+54U5�*.�&=(�"-&(2-':��(F(-0(�/*<(�'-<�%(+&,*-�8CD9A.�*.�&=(�/':,.*2-,'��(F(-0(�'-<�$'I'&,*-�/*<(����Q��/�!$��/$P�?�� �>>S>!$%�� $=(��))*+,'&,*-�=')�(-&(2(<�,-&*�F'2,*0)�+*-&2'+&0':�'G2((3(-&)�.*2�72*.()),*-':�)(2F,+()��$=()(�'G2((3(-&)�,-+:0<(�+*37(-)'&,*-�.*2�)(2F,+()�2(-<(2(<�&*�&=(��))*+,'&,*-���>��/�SK���$"V>�Q�$���� /*37'2'&,F(�<'&'�.*2�&=(�72,*2�1('2�='F(�J((-�72()(-&(<�,-�+(2&',-�)(+&,*-)�*.�&=(�'++*37'-1,-G�.,-'-+,':�)&'&(3(-&�,-�*2<(2�&*�72*F,<(�'-�0-<(2)&'-<,-G�*.�+='-G()�,-�&=(��))*+,'&,*-E)�.,-'-+,':�7*),&,*-�'-<�*7(2'&,*-)���� WXY



����������������	��
����	���������	�����������	������������
�	�	������������	���
������
������������	������	������������	���������

������������������������������������

�����������
����	�
���	�������	��	��������������	��	��������� !"#$%$&'(��)$&$�* !+&'+,�)-��./012�.$ %.�3424�562�1746�874/4�9:�7119305/0;<�562�5/=/0;�9:�2>2054�70?�562�3@5/=752�4255@2=205�9:�8/@@4�=7A�>7BA�:B9=�A27B�59�A27B���C9B�2D7=E@2F�562�.EB/0;�190:2B2012�19454�193@?�82�4255@2?�8A�G302�*8A�A27B�20?-�9B�82�2D520?2?�/059�562�43842H3205�A27B��$@49�562�5/=/0;�9:�2>2054�193@?�7::215�I620�E7A=2054�7B2�=7?2�:B9=�A27B�59�A27B��#7A=2054�7:52B�A27B�20?�I/@@�82�E7/?�935�9:�562�43BE@34�;202B752?�935�9:�562�EB/9B�A27B�190:2B2012�B212/E54��.9�562�43BE@34�1746�75�A27B�20?�=7A�67>2�:353B2�?2=70?4�:9B�EB/9B�2DE20424��"707;2=205�EB2E7B24�7�190:2B2012�43==7BA�B2E9B5�5675�B21901/@24�56242�E7A=2054�I620�4255@2?F�56/4�B2E9B5�/4�EB242052?�74�43EE@2=2057BA�/0:9B=75/90������������	���	J�����	����  746�70?� 746��H3/>7@2054��.$ %.�1904/?2B4�469B5K52B=�6/;6@A�@/H3/?�/0>245=2054�59�82�1746�2H3/>7@2054�EB9>/?2?�5675�562A�7B2�8956�B27?/@A�190>2B5/8@2�59�1746�70?�67?�70�9B/;/07@�=753B/5A�9:�56B22�=90564�9B�@244�I620�E3B16742?��&62�87@7012�/0�1746�70?�1746�2H3/>7@2054�75�G302�LM�/01@3?2N�� OMOO OMOPQ70R�71193054� PST<LTUV���������� OSS<SWMV����������"902A�=7BR25�71193054 ������������TMP<XOP� ������������WUU<LXP�&957@�1746�70?�1746�2H3/>7@2054 USU<TPMV���������� P<MSX<UPPV������� � 746�/0�870R�71193054�75�G302�LM<�OMOO�1904/452?�9:�562�:9@@9I/0;N�� C/B45�C930?75/90 Q70R�9:�$=2B/17 &957@#2B�870R PXU<U�SV���������� X�<��UV������������ PU�<�LXV���������� 621R4�9354570?/0; ������������*LT<OXS- ��������������������K��� �������������*LT<OXS-&957@�870R�71193054 PPP<WOMV���������� X�<��U PST<LTUV���������� �� 746�/0�870R�71193054�75�G302�LM<�OMOP�1904/452?�9:�562�:9@@9I/0;N�� C/B45�C930?75/90 Q70R�9:�$=2B/17 &957@#2B�870R OSW<TSSV���������� P�<TTLV������������ OWX<WLTV���������� 621R4�9354570?/0; ������������*PU<P�T- ����������������������K� �������������*PU<P�T-&957@�870R�71193054 OLT<�TWV���������� P�<TTL OSS<SWMV���������� �� 746�87@70124�90�/052B245K827B/0;�71193054�62@?�/0�870R4�7B2�/043B2?�3E�59�VOSM<MMM�8A�562�C2?2B7@�)2E94/59BA�'043B7012� 9BE9B75/90�*C)' -���&62B2�I74�VM�70?�VW<TSS�/0�2D1244�9:��C)' �19>2B7;2�74�9:�G302�LM<�OMOO�70?�OMOP<�B24E215/>2@A�� YZ[



����������������	��
����	���������	�����������	������������
�	�	������������	���
������
������������	������	������������	���������

������������������������������������

���������	���	������	���������� !"#��$%&'()*'%)(��$%�+,-./�01234�56785�9%&'()':�9%�)/'�7,;<8=5<�+':9>*?<'-*�@>%:�A)/'�B@>%:CD4�:'EF(9)9%G�H2421I42J1K�</'�L,9-�&,;>'�M,;,%.'�,(�FL�N>%'�J14�0100�,%:�0102�E-'('%)':�9%�)/'�L9%,%.9,;�(),)'*'%)�9(�HOII4P0I�,%:�HO�P4QIPR�-'(E'.)9&';SK�</9(�M,;,%.'�9%.;>:'(�-'9%&'()':�9%)'-'()�9%.F*'�)F),;9%G�,%:�H1�,%:�HJ4J0O4�-'(E'.)9&';SK�</'�.>--'%)�EF-)9F%�FL�)/'�9%&'()*'%)�,..F>%)�-'E-'('%)(�>%:'-;S9%G�('.>-9)9'(�T/9./�,-'�9**':9,)';S�-':''*,M;'�A'KGK�'U>9)9'(D4�F-�T9;;�*,)>-'�T9)/9%�F%'�S',-K�</'�.>--'%)�EF-)9F%�FL�9%&'()*'%)(�,)�N>%'�J14�0100�,%:�0102�T,(�H1K�</'�@>%:�9(�%F)�-,)':�F-�9%(>-':K��������	������� 56785�/,(�'%)'-':�9%)F�.F%)-,.)(�T9)/�&,-9F>(�/F)';(�)F�-'('-&'�L,.9;9)9'(�,%:�G>'()�-FF*(�LF-�9)(�>E.F*9%G�.F%L'-'%.'(�,%:�'&'%)(K�7,%.';;,)9F%�L''(�,((F.9,)':�T9)/�)/'('�.F%)-,.)(�&,-S�MS�:,)'�FL�%F)9.'K�6;;�/F)';�.F%)-,.)(�(E'.9LS�)/'�)F),;�%>*M'-�FL�G>'()�-FF*�%9G/)(�-'('-&':�,)�,�G-F>E�-,)'K�$L�G>'()�%9G/)(�,))-9M>)':�)F�)/'�.F%&'%)9F%�L,;;�M';FT�,�(E'.9L9':�*9%9*>*4�56785�9(�FM;9G,)':�)F�E,S�,�-FF*�,))-9)9F%�-,)'�LF-�'&'-S�G>'()�%9G/)�M';FT�)/'�.F%)-,.)':�*9%9*>*R�(),%:,-:�-FF*�-,)'(�'V.'':�)/'�,))-9)9F%�-,)'K�</'�F-G,%9W,)9F%�9(�,;(F�-'(EF%(9M;'�LF-�LFF:�,%:�M'&'-,G'�*9%9*>*(�,(�(E'.9L9':�M';FTK�XF)';�.F%)-,.)(�'%)'-':�9%)F�,(�FL�)/'�,>:9)�:,)'�,-'�(>**,-9W':�/'-'Y�����Z![!�\! �]�\!̂̂]�����
!!_ �̀ !_����a�	�bc�_�����a a���a_����[�����@,;;�0100 H2JQ4�Q0?H0PP430I H2314111 22I3 O2Q H0IO�E;>(�),V5E-9%G�010J H00I4PIP?HI1I4�0Q H2�14111� 22I3 O2Q H0I��E;>(�),V@,;;�010J H20J4PJ0?HJO�4QQ3 H2314111� 22P3 OIP H01O�E;>(�),V�
��"�]�"�d!e![]b!�����a a_� ��a�	�bc�_�!_![e!"� ���f����	�������������� g9-'.)F-(�,%:�FLL9.'-(�/,&'�*,:'�,�(9G%9L9.,%)�.F%)-9M>)9F%�FL�)/'9-�)9*'�)F�:'&';FE�)/'�F-G,%9W,)9F%�,%:�9)(�E-FG-,*(K�hF�,*F>%)(�/,&'�M''%�-'.FG%9W':�9%�)/'�,..F*E,%S9%G�(),)'*'%)�FL�.,(/�-'.'9E)(�,%:�:9(M>-('*'%)(�,(�%F�.,(/�./,%G':�/,%:(�,(�,�-'(>;)�FL�)/'�:F%,)':�('-&9.'(K�����i����d��j��	�����	����56785k�*,%,G'*'%)�/,(�'&,;>,)':�(>M('U>'%)�'&'%)(�)/-F>G/�g'.'*M'-�014�01004�)/'�:,)'�T/9./�)/'�L9%,%.9,;�(),)'*'%)�T,(�9((>':K�+,%,G'*'%)�9(�%F)�,T,-'�FL�,%S�(>M('U>'%)�'&'%)(�)/,)�TF>;:�-'U>9-'�-'.FG%9)9F%�F-�:9(.;F(>-'�9%�)/'�L9%,%.9,;�(),)'*'%)K��� lmm



�

��

���������	
��������
	���

���



����������������	��
����	���������	����������������	�	���������	���
���������������	�����������	����
������
�����������	������	�������������

� �� �

�������� � �!"#�#$%�&%#�� ��%&'�&$(�� �#)%$*+,- ./������������������� 0123456/����������� 0123456/�����������789:,;,9<,=>?? @6032@6������������� .��������������������� @6032@6�������������AB;C9D @043@45������������� .��������������������� @043@45�������������A,EC9>;- 22@3F@6������������� 22@3F@6�������������GHI,;�>JEC9�;,<,CBH- .��������������������� 0@6�������������������� 0@6��������������������GHI,;�<89:,;,9<,�;,<,CBH- 0@6�������������������� .��������������������� 0@6��������������������K8H>?�7>-I�L,<,CBH- 232@03F55���������� 0123�46������������� 234M@3@05�����������&$(��#$NO�$�"��%$789:,;,9<,=>??�.�1612P8H,?�>9J�E,>?- 04@3F5M������������� .��������������������� 04@3F5M�������������Q+JC8�>9J�RC-+>? �F3150��������������� .��������������������� �F3150���������������S;8D;>E�E>H,;C>?- 5@31�5��������������� .��������������������� 5@31�5���������������AB;C9D�.�1611P8H,?�>9J�E,>?- 0635@F��������������� .��������������������� 0635@F���������������Q+JC8�>9J�RC-+>? 2113F54������������� .��������������������� 2113F54�������������S;8D;>E�E>H,;C>?- MF3512��������������� .��������������������� MF3512���������������A,EC9>;- 1@63�01������������� .��������������������� 1@63�01�������������789:,;,9<,�QJEC9C-H;>HC89 0234F1��������������� .��������������������� 0234F1���������������K8H>?�<89:,;,9<,�JC-T+;-,E,9H- 236463244���������� .��������������������� 236463244����������QJEC9C-H;>HC89 .��������������������� 0@M3�61������������� 0@M3�61�������������U8TTVC9D .��������������������� F@3620��������������� F@3620���������������W,X-?,HH,;- .��������������������� 0031MF��������������� 0031MF���������������78EECHH,,�E,,HC9D- .��������������������� @�32@M��������������� @�32@M���������������AB,<C>?�B;8Y,<H- .��������������������� 2M3�42��������������� 2M3�42���������������Z9H,;,-H .��������������������� 013102��������������� 013102���������������K8H>?�>JEC9C-H;>HC89�JC-T+;-,E,9H- .��������������������� @F43016������������� @F43016�������������K8H>?�7>-I�*C-T+;-,E,9H- 236463244���������� @F43016������������� 23F6434F4����������[\<,--�]*,:C<CĤ�8:�7>-I�L,<,CBH-����8R,;�7>-I�*C-T+;-,E,9H- 2203@@@������������� ]14134�6̂������������ ]21�351@̂������������7>-I�>9J�Z9R,-HE,9H-3�_,DC99C9D 0366F3�0@���������� ]5M031MF̂������������ 136003@@57>-I�>9J�Z9R,-HE,9H-3�[9JC9D 032163056/�������� ]2312@3M@F̂/������� 235643F04/�������� àb



����������������	��
����	���������	������������������������	�����	��
���������������
������
�����������	������	�������������

� �� �

������������������������

���



����������������	��
����	���������	������������������������	�����	��
���������������
������
�����������	������	�������������

� �� ��

������������������������

���



����������������	��
����	���������	������������������������	�����	��
���������������	����
������
�����������	������	�������������

� �� ��

����	�������	���������������	����

�����	
��	�����������������	����
���� ���



����������������	��
����	���������	������������������������	�����	��
���������������	����
������
�����������	������	������������

�� ��

�����	�������	���������������	����
����	
��	�����������������	�����
�� ���



����������������	
��
����	�������

��	���������� � ��	
��	�������
��������

� � � �
��

� �
������
���

������
���
�������
���

������
���
��������

��������
��������

��������
���� � �����!" ��#$  %

"!�%�&��� &��'(��� � �)!�!��!"!�%�&��� &��'(��� � �)!�!��!����!�!
%*"!�%� &���+!,����� �'

!�!#-�.!���� !
��%����+!��/

0123�45657892 0:;<545;65
=�>?=>@A�������=B�?�

=BA�����C?�
�=A�������B

D?�EBA��������
FA�����������������C

�@?DGBA������=@D?
=@BA������=@�

?=�BA������
H:91I�6123�45657892

=�>?=>@���������=B�?�
=B�������C?�

�=���������B
D?�EB���������

F�������������������C
�@?DGB��������=@D?

=@B��������=@�
?=�B��������

0123�J72KL425M5;92 N:95I�1;J�M51I2
DB?DD=������������D@?G

G=�����F��������������
F����������������

F�������������������D
CG?@C����������@=?

DGE����������D
?CGB��������

OLJ7:�1;J�P72L1I
��>?�>=���������EC?D

@���������E?@
G=����������>

C?EEE�����������
F�������������������

=C?>GG���������=G?
G�����������=D

?�EB����������
Q4:R41M�M195471I2

��?��=������������@?�
G>�������D?=

BB�����������
�?B>@�������������

F�������������������
DB?�E����������>D?

�>D����������D
?BEC����������

Q4:R41M�S851T542
>�?G=B�����������==?@

�=���������?D
@B�����������

E?�D=�����������
F�������������������

C�?�GD����������@?
GE>���������G>

?>=E����������
0:;<545;65�OJM7;7294197:

;D�?��=�����������
�=?@D���������?E

�B�����������
D?CCE�������������

F�������������������
�D?������������DE?

�=>���������DD
?G�E����������

H:91I�6123�J72KL425M5;92
D�B?=G����������=DG?D

G@�����=C?=
@=����������@

B?G�B�����������
F�������������������>

DB?�DD���������C�?
>E@��������>@>

?��D��������
U59�6123�84:P7J5J�KV�6:;

<545;65�B�?@GEA�������
WD>?�D@XA����=@?=

DBA���������
�?C=BA���������

FA�����������������D
�@?�>EA������DD@?

�B�A������@G
?�@EA��������

H:91I�1995;J552
=GG���������������=

>B�����������>>
���������������

�C����������������UY
OC>G��������������

=@B��������������
=EE��� ����������� �

��
Z[\



� ���������	��
��������������������������������������������� �! �"����������������������� �� #$������� #$��� "���� #$�! ��%!&� �� � ��

'()�*+,-�./-01-2�3145-�672�389:8;-05+2�<.�=>?@>���A=)BC�==7D=E=E�F8G�A=)BC�==7D=E?=�,,,HIJ;9J8H9+;����IK-+LMIJ;9J8H9+;�

�NO�PNQ�PR�SRQONRT���PRQNP��PUON�VSRTR�ST��NO�PNQSRW��SRXO�ORXORQ�TYXSQPNZ[�NO�PNQ���\+8:K�+F�]4:-95+:̂�3585-�.̂ +̂94854+0�+F�<+105_�̀-54:-;-05�3_̂5-;̂�389:8;-05+2�<8L4F+:048���a-�b8/-�81K45-K2�40�899+:K809-�,45b�81K4540c�̂580K8:K̂�c-0-:8LL_�899-J5-K�40�5b-�d045-K�3585-̂�+F�.;-:4982�5b-�F4080948L�̂585-;-05̂�+F�3585-�.̂ +̂94854+0�+F�<+105_�̀-54:-;-05�3_̂5-;̂�A3.<̀ 3C2�8̂�+F�80K�F+:�5b-�_-8:̂�-0K-K���e10-�7(2�@(@@�80K�@(@)�5b-�:-L85-K�0+5-̂�5+�5b-�F4080948L�̂585-;-052�,b49b�9+LL-954/-L_�9+;J:4̂-�5b-�3585-�.̂ +̂94854+0�+F�<+105_�̀-54:-;-05�3_̂5-;̂f�g8̂49�F4080948L�̂585-;-052�80K�b8/-�4̂̂1-K�+1:�:-J+:5�5b-:-+0�K85-K�]-9-;g-:�@(2�@(@@H��S�	����h����	��h��i���Vj���kj�h�N���	j�l��m0�JL80040c�80K�J-:F+:;40c�+1:�81K45�+F�5b-�F4080948L�̂585-;-052�,-�9+0̂4K-:-K�3.<̀ 3f�405-:08L�9+05:+L�+/-:�F4080948L�:-J+:540c�A405-:08L�9+05:+LC�8̂�8�g8̂4̂�F+:�K-̂4c040c�81K45�J:+9-K1:-̂�5b85�8:-�8JJ:+J:485-�40�5b-�94:91;̂5809-̂�F+:�5b-�J1:J+̂-�+F�-GJ:-̂̂40c�+1:�+J404+0̂�+0�5b-�F4080948L�̂585-;-05̂2�g15�0+5�F+:�5b-�J1:J+̂-�+F�-GJ:-̂̂40c�80�+J404+0�+0�5b-�-FF-954/-0-̂̂�+F�5b-�.̂ +̂94854+0f̂�405-:08L�9+05:+LH�.99+:K40cL_2�,-�K+�0+5�-GJ:-̂̂�80�+J404+0�+0�5b-�-FF-954/-0-̂̂�+F�5b-�.̂ +̂94854+0f̂�405-:08L�9+05:+LH���.�K-F494-09_�40�405-:08L�9+05:+L�-G4̂5̂�,b-0�5b-�K-̂4c0�+:�+J-:854+0�+F�8�9+05:+L�K+-̂�0+5�8LL+,�;808c-;-05�+:�-;JL+_--̂2�40�5b-�0+:;8L�9+1:̂-�+F�J-:F+:;40c�5b-4:�8̂̂4c0-K�F10954+0̂2�5+�J:-/-052�+:�K-5-95�80K�9+::-95�;4̂̂585-;-05̂�+0�8�54;-L_�g8̂4̂H�.�;85-:48L�,-8n0-̂̂�4̂�8�K-F494-09_2�+:�9+;g40854+0�+F�K-F494-094-̂2�40�405-:08L�9+05:+L2�̂19b�5b85�5b-:-�4̂�8�:-8̂+08gL-�J+̂ 4̂g4L45_�5b85�8�;85-:48L�;4̂̂585-;-05�+F�5b-�-0545_f̂�F4080948L�̂585-;-05̂�,4LL�0+5�g-�J:-/-05-K2�+:�K-5-95-K�80K�9+::-95-K�+0�8�54;-L_�g8̂4̂H�.�̂4c04F49805�K-F494-09_�4̂�8�K-F494-09_2�+:�8�9+;g40854+0�+F�K-F494-094-̂2�40�405-:08L�9+05:+L�5b85�4̂�L-̂̂ �̂-/-:-�5b80�8�;85-:48L�,-8n0-̂̂2�_-5�4;J+:5805�-0+1cb�5+�;-:45�855-054+0�g_�5b+̂-�9b8:c-K�,45b�c+/-:0809-H��o1:�9+0̂4K-:854+0�+F�405-:08L�9+05:+L�,8̂�F+:�5b-�L4;45-K�J1:J+̂-�K-̂9:4g-K�40�5b-�F4:̂5�J8:8c:8Jb�+F�5b4̂�̂-954+0�80K�,8̂�0+5�K-̂4c0-K�5+�4K-054F_�8LL�K-F494-094-̂�40�405-:08L�9+05:+L�5b85�;4cb5�g-�;85-:48L�,-8n0-̂̂ -̂�+:�̂4c04F49805�K-F494-094-̂H�p4/-0�5b-̂-�L4;45854+0̂2�K1:40c�+1:�81K45�,-�K4K�0+5�4K-054F_�80_�K-F494-094-̂�40�405-:08L�9+05:+L�5b85�,-�9+0̂4K-:�5+�g-�;85-:48L�,-8n0-̂̂ -̂H�*+,-/-:2�;85-:48L�,-8n0-̂̂ -̂�;8_�-G4̂5�5b85�b8/-�0+5�g--0�4K-054F4-KH����q������r�	sj��N���	��tb-�J1:J+̂-�+F�5b4̂�:-J+:5�4̂�̂+L-L_�5+�K-̂9:4g-�5b-�̂9+J-�+F�+1:�5-̂540c�+F�405-:08L�9+05:+L�80K�5b-�:-̂1L5̂�+F�5b85�5-̂540c2�80K�0+5�5+�J:+/4K-�80�+J404+0�+0�5b-�-FF-954/-0-̂̂�+F�5b-�-0545_f̂�405-:08L�9+05:+LH�tb4̂�:-J+:5�4̂�80�405-c:8L�J8:5�+F�80�81K45�J-:F+:;-K�40�899+:K809-�,45b�81K4540c�̂580K8:K̂�c-0-:8LL_�899-J5-K�40�5b-�d045-K�3585-̂�+F�.;-:498�40�9+0̂4K-:40c�5b-�-0545_f̂�405-:08L�9+05:+LH�.99+:K40cL_2�5b4̂�9+;;1049854+0�4̂�0+5�̂1458gL-�F+:�80_�+5b-:�J1:J+̂-H�� �e8;-̂�u8:58�v�<+;J80_�wwx�<-:54F4-K�x1gL49�.99+105805̂�]-9-;g-:�@(2�@(@@� yz{



�

�

����������	
�������������������������������������������� �!�"#$%&%!�'()"��*"')*�(+,�-.��#�'�//�..%%�'�-�0�� 12�*"')*�"##,-&�*�0�#$�3435�'�#6%0%#�%�(7-&,-.��#!89%%+:-�;��

<=>



�

�

��������	
����	����������������	���

���



�

�

����������	
�	���
���������
	�����
�����
����������������� �!��"#��!�$"��!%&' �('!&(�)#�*#�+�!�++�"",,�!-��#�� '.�('!&(�'��/���(0#��*�1213�!��4,#,��,�&,0�#"�

566



�

�

��������	
����	����������������	���

���



�

�

�����������		
�
�������
����������������
���������������� ��!�"�#$%%���$&'"��()*��(++$%$�,��)�''$,,���)-�$!�� (.�(++$%$�,��)�''$,,���!�/�!,0��!1�%�&/��,���

234



�

�

��������	
����	����������������	���

���



�

�

�����������	
���������������������������������������������� �!����"����#$�%�&'() �!)&(!��*+�,-�&%..$//""�&��$��� )0��*+�,-�&%..$//""��"1%�/23"���+�41#�/"��

565



�

�

��������	
����	����������������	���

���



�

�

�����������	
��������
������
���������	�
������������������������� ! "#��$�%&��!'(�)��!*%+ �,"--�."#��!����%� �%�� (�"��)��!*%+ ��$�%&�/�0���0!12�3!1�45 (6�� 78��0&"�"� �! %��9��!*%+ �:8��$$"-"! ��9��!*%+ �;8��  %���1�9��!*%+ �<8�="�!)"-" 1>?���! "%���@�9���$" ��A%&)%�9��!*%+ �B8�C� ���!-��+0" %���9��!*%+ �D8�C�#�� &�� �?$$"'���9��!*%+ �E8�F!$� 1�G�+� ���9��!*%+ �H8�I����!-�G�+� ���9��!*%+ ��

JKL



�

�

��������	
����	����������������	���

���



�

�

��������	
����������������������������������� �����!�"����#�������$%��&'(��)*�+#�%�,-(�.-./(�&������0+����&���)�1&��2&�+&�����)%��3��4&�����&���)� �%&!�(���5��

678



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

1 

April 25, 2023   Agenda Item 7.5 

TO:    Board of Retirement 

FROM:   Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Presentation on SamCERA’s Disability Process 

Recommendation 
Receive a presentation on SamCERA’s Disability Process. 

Background 
At last month’s Board Retreat, we had scheduled a presentation on SamCERA’s disability 
process.  Due to unforeseen circumstances, we were unable to provide the presentation. 

Discussion 
Elizabeth LeNguyen, Retirement Benefits Manager, will provide an informational presentation 
on SamCERA’s disability process. 


	2304 Board Agenda
	The Board of Retirement
	Benefit & Actuarial Services 
	Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda 
	5.1
	Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended March 31, 2023
	Board & Management Support 
	Approval of SamCERA’s Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget 
	Management Reports
	Consideration of Disability Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda
	  Approval of Proposed Alternative Investment to be heard in Closed Session, Confidential Under Gov.
	  Code §54956.81 and §7928.710, see item 6.5)

	2023 April Regular Board Meeting Packet - PUBLIC1
	23-04-3.1 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 032823
	23-04-4.1 CONS2023 April
	San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association
	Board of Retirement
	FROM:         Elizabeth LeNguyen, Retirement Benefits Manager

	23-04-4.9 Trustee Report on Educational Activities
	23-04-4.9 Sandie Arnott Proof of Participation Certificate and Summary
	23-04-4.10 Reaffirming CEO Authority During Emergency Declaration
	23-04-4.10 Resolution Reaffirming CEO Authority During Emergency Declaration
	AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO TAKE ACTION IN THE
	BEST INTERESTS OF THE RETIREMENT FUND DURING A DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY
	RESOLUTION -___

	23-04-4.11 Reaffirming CEO Authority to Execute Investment Docs up to $35M
	April 25, 2023 Agenda Item 4.11
	TO: Board of Retirement
	FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer
	SUBJECT: Authorization for the Chief Executive Officer to Execute Documentation for Investments as Required

	23-04-4.11 Resolution Reaffirming CEO Authority to Execute Investment Docs up to $35M
	AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE
	DOCUMENTATION FOR INVESTMENTS AS REQUIRED
	RESOLUTION -___

	23-04-4.12 Reaffirming Placement Agent Policy
	23-04 4.12 Placement Agent Policy and Disclosure Form - Final (Clean)
	23-04 4.12 Placement Agent Policy and Disclosure Form - Final (Redline)

	2023 April Regular Board Meeting Packet - PUBLIC1
	23-04-4.12 Placement Agent Form - Final (Clean)
	23-04-4.12 Placement Agent Form - Final (Redline)

	23-04-4.13 Trustee Special Request to Attend an Educational Event
	23-04-4.13 BOARD OF RETIREMENT TRUSTEE SPECIAL REQUEST TO ATTEND EDUCATION EVENT - ELAINE ORR
	2023 April Regular Board Meeting Packet - PUBLIC1
	23-04-6.1 Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended March 31 2023
	23-04-6.1 Verus Capital Market Update
	23-04-6.1 Northern Trust Preliminary Monthly Performance Report
	23-04-6.2 Approval of Asset Allocation Policy Implementation Plan
	23-04-6.2 Verus Implementation Plan Presentation
	23-04-6.3 Report on Cash Overlay (Parametric) Annual Review
	23-04-6.3 Parametric Cash Overlay Annual Review Meeting Notes   2023.03
	23-04-6.4 Report on Global Custodian (Northern Trust) Annual Review
	23-04-7.1 SamCERA FY 2023-24 Budget
	FROM:         Tat-Ling Chow, Finance Officer

	23-04-7.2 Amendment to Procedures for Felony Forfeiture
	23-04-7.2 Resolution Amendment to Procedures for Felony Forfeiture
	23-04-7.2 Procedure for Felony Forfeitures - Amended - Final (Clean)
	23-04-7.2 Procedure for Felony Forfeitures - Amended - Final (Redline)
	23-04-7.3 Approval of Strategic Plan
	23-04-7.3 Draft Strategic Plan 2023-2028
	23-04-7.4 SACRS Voting Delegates Spring 2023 Conf
	23-04-7.4 SACRS Spring Biz Mtg Packet 2023
	23-04-7.5 Disability Processing Information Presentation




